TS Wonders
Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Ofs Bl 2 B B ak b Z AR A H])

(Stock Code 3155 : 1767)

Annual Report

2021 ##




Contents
H %

Corporate Information 2
NEIEH
Chairlady's Statement 5
TREBE
Financial Highlights 8
MBHE
Management Discussion and Analysis 10

EREHBRAN

Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management 23

EELRRERERERS

Report of the Directors 30
ExgWmE

Corporate Governance Report 48
EERWME

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 65

R -4 RERRE

Independent Auditor’s Report 108
BB AN RS
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 115

reBmkEMEEKER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 116
A AR R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 118

HAREEDE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 119
HERERER

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 121
RE BTSRRI

In the event of any inconsistencies between the English and Chinese text in this annual report, the English text shall prevail.

RERPRXMERE  BARXAR L -

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 3% 1



Corporate Information

AREH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Ms. lim Seow Yen (#/)N#&) (Chairladly) WNFE L ()

Mr. Lim Fung Yee (#£35F) MEFIE

Mr. lim Fung Chor (#7578 ) MAEEE

Mr. Lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai) (#R4=87) AR B

Mr. Zhang Junli (358 B8] fretired on 31 May 2021) KREBGEAE (RZEFE=Z—FAA=F+—HREF)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIAFHITESE

Mr. Chan Ka Yu (BRZE=F) BRERFIhE

M. Llee Yan Fai (ZEE) AL L

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) ( EISE#E) AR E

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREE®

Mr. Chan Ka Yu (Chairman) MRFRE (EmE)

M. Llee Yan Fai TRERE

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) EER A&
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEEE

M. Llee Yan Fai (Chairman) TRERE (FEF)

Mr. Chan Ka Yu BRERFILAE

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) B AR E

Mr. Lim Fung Yee MITFERE
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) (Chairman) FEREE (/)

Mr. Chan Ka Yu BRERFIhE

M. Llee Yan Fai AL E

M. Lim Fung Chor M EEE
COMPANY SECRETARY DNAIWE

Ms. Chan So Fun =St
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERRE

Ms. Chan So Fun &St

Ms. Lim Seow Yen Mo e+
REGISTERED OFFICE TR ER

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350 PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108 Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands Cayman lslands

2 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2021



PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room @01, 9th Floor
Prosperity Tower

No. 39 Queen’s Road Central
Cenfral, Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

255 Pandan Loop
Singapore 128433

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman lslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
level 54 Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Michael Li & Co.

Solicitors, Hong Kong

Room Q01 & 19th Floor, Prosperity Tower
39 Queen'’s Road Central

Cenfral

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
6 Shenton Way, OUE Downtown 2

#33-00

Singapore 068809

Corporate Information
ATEH

BREEEERME
FETIR

2R KET IR
CRARKE
0129012

AR ETEERE I

255 Pandan Loop
Singapore 128433

FTEROGBFERE
Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman lslands

EREROBFETIRE

EERSECARQT
B

ERARER835
AP OS2

EEEE

TEHREMELA

BAEEED

E5

iR

ERFKBFRIOHN
LREARAEIVEREAT =

BB

Deloitte & Touche LLP
RS RIS

6 Shenton Way, OUE Downtown 2
#33-00

Singapore 068809

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 &



Corporate Information
ATEH

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank Lid
12 Marina Boulevard
Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3

Singapore 018982

Public Bank Berhad
Masai Branch

Nos. 1 & 3, Jalan Suria 3
Bandar Seri Alam

81750 Masai, Johor
Malaysia

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.taisun.com.sg

STOCK CODE
1767

4 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2021

FEFRET
ERBITHERAA
12 Marina Boulevard

Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3

Singapore 018982

RBIRTT

Masai Branch

Nos. 1 & 3, Jalan Suria 3
Bandar Seri Alam

81750 Masai, Johor
Malaysia

ENNS D
www.taisun.com.sg

IR A7 A 5R
1767



Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board [the “Board] of directors (“Directors”) of TS
Wonders Holding Llimited ("Company” or “TS Wonders"), it is my
pleasure to present fo you the annual report of the Company and

its subsidiaries (collectively, “"Group”) for the financial year ended

31 December 2021 ("FY2021").

As | reflect on 2021,
the challenges of economic uncertainty and a global pandemic.

| am proud that the Group had adapted to

Despite disruptions to our Malaysian production due to the movement
control order and closure for cleansing and sanitizing, the Group had
demonstrated its resilience and maintained our gross profitability. We
remain committed to the safety of our workers, quality of our snack
products and fo delivering value to our stakeholders.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2021, the Singapore economy expanded by 7.6%, rebounding
from the 4.1% contraction in 2020. The Group's revenue in Singapore
had also improved, and sales in Singapore made up 63.0% of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.

However, the Group's fofal revenue decreased by approximately
S$4.3 million or 6.2% from approximately S$69.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately S$65.3 million for

the year ended 31 December 2021
large order in 2020 from an OEM customer based in Hong Kong.

, mainly due to a non-recurring

The Group's fotal gross profit decreased by approximately S$1.0
million or 5.3% from approximately S$18.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately S$17.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021
Notwithstanding the decrease in gross profit, the gross profit margin
had improved from 26.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020
to 27.1% for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group's profit
for the year decreased by approximately $$3.4 million or 49.9% from

in line with the decrease in revenue.

approximately $$6.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately $$3.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Further explanation of the Group's financial performance for FY2021 is
provided in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis' section of this
annual report.
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Chairlady’s Statement
EBRE

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Overall, the Group expects that demand for snack products to remain
strong, in particular those with less sugar, artificial sweefeners and
flavourings as health awareness is increasing among consumers. For
Singapore where the majority of the Group's snack products are sold,
it is forecasted a gross domestic product growth (“GDP”) for 2022 of
between 3.0% and 5.0%.

Despite the forecasted GDP growth, the Minisiry of Trade and Industry,
Singapore, nofed in ifs press release that since the Economic Survey of
Singapore in November 2021, Singapore’s external demand outlook
has deferiorated slightly as the global surge in Covid-19 cases caused
by the spread of the highly-ransmissible Omicron variant has led to
a fightening of restriction measures in many economies. Meanwhile,
global supply botilenecks remain and are expected to persist throughout
the first half of 2022, thereby constraining industrial production and
GDP growth in some external economies in the near term. Persistent
supply bottlenecks, alongside rising energy prices due fo geopoalitical
tensions, have also exacerbated global inflationary pressures.

In view of the foregoing, the Group will continue to adopt a cautious
and prudent approach in managing ifs business without compromising
the quality of its products in line with its objectives to maintain
sustainable growth in its business and create longferm shareholders’
value.

The Group shall confinue to remain vigilant and monitor the Covid-19
outbreak very closely especially in ifs production facilities in Malaysia
as the number of cases remains high, and ifs priority is always the
wellbeing of its consumers and staff.

DIVIDENDS

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook
ahead, the Directors have resolved not to recommend any dividend
for FY2021 even though the Group was profitable. Nonetheless,
the Group's dividend policy has not changed and the Directors will
continue to assess whether to recommend dividend in the next financial
period.
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IN' APPRECIATION

We would like to pay tfribute to the following stakeholders whose
support has helped us, in one way or other, in navigating through the
difficult year.

Firstly, we are thankful for the government's approach and measures
taken to contain the spread of Covid-19 in Singapore, as well as
adjusting the measures progressively to prepare for a safe re-opening of
Singapore, which pave the way to being a Covid-19 resilient nation.

Secondly, we would like to thank our customers and suppliers. We
thank our customers for continuing to support our products, and the
Croup confinues fo be committed to delivering high quality and safe
food products while meeting consumers’ expectations and complying
with legal requirements. We thank our suppliers for ensuring minimal
disruption to our supply chain.

Thirdly, a word of thanks to our sfaff for their professionalism as they
responded and adapted to the changes fo their work and workplace
brought about by the pandemic.

Fourthly, to our shareholders, we thank you for your confidence in
TS Wonders. We shall commit ourselves to creating sustainable
shareholders’ value and strong financial performance.

last but not least, my heartfelt appreciation also goes to my fellow
Directors for their guidance, advice and insight in steering the Group
forward.

Ms. Lim Seow Yen
Chairlady and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Financial Highlights

I HEE

KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

REBEEXRNEIERAR

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—+F —E—)N\F —E-NF —ECEF —E-—F
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
¥ oo s oT N o ¥ oo F 3 T
Revenue g 55,511,946 58,581,851 61,058,604 69,562,227 65,269,727
Gross profit EF 13,627,409 14,318,933 15,472,139 18,683,266 17,684,380
Listing expenses a1tk 3 - (2,912,780) (785,1906) - =
Profit before taxation B B4 A& 7,202,451 3,714,906 4,082,824 8,870,506 5,131,694
Income fax expense Frisfif X (1,228,531)  (1,577,912)  (1,174,453)  (2,039,687) (1,708,579)
Profit for the year FREF 5,973,920 2,136,994 2,908,371 6,830,819 3,423,115

KEY ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #ZAMBRAXRNEEEHE

FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
®R+=ZB=+—H

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
¥ o s T 0% T ¥ oo 3 i3 T
Non-current assets FEREBEE 19,638,211 19,425,751 22,423,508 22,806,990 25,958,207
Current assefs MEEE 24,740,281 26,620,755 41,724,508 49,070,803 52,762,583
Current liabilities mEEE 10,785,787 10,272,099 8,247,741 9,711,289 11,693,257
Non-current liabilities EMEAE 1,970,878 1,931,663 4,316,388 3,826,144 5,235,996
Total equity T ARE 31,621,827 33,842,744 51,583,887 58,340,360 61,791,537
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Financial Highlights

MEHE
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS TEHKLEER
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—8H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E—tF —E-N\F —E-NF T FTF —E-—F
(times) (times) (times) (times) (times)
(f5) (f%) (%) (f5) (£%)
Current ratio mENE R 2.3 2.6 5.1 5.1 4.5
Gearing ratfio BEEBENRE
(Note) GES 0.1 0.1 0.05 0.04 0.06
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—2—+tF E-N\F T-NAF ZT_TF ZBZ-—F
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
(%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
Gross profit margin -~ EFI = 24.5 24.4 25.3 26.9 27.1
Profit before taxation  B& %4 il i F1 &
margin 13.0 6.3 6.7 12.8 7.9
Profit margin for F AR X
the year 10.8 3.6 4.8 9.8 52
Return on tofal assets 484 & [B] 3 1 13.5 4.6 4.5 9.5 4.3
Return on equity e % 8] i 18.9 6.3 5.6 1.7 5.5
Note: Mzt :

Cearing ratfio is calculated as sum of bank and other borrowings divided by EE&EL EILZABERE BHMBRITREMEREE
tofal equity as af the respective reporting dates. RIAERBRRGTE -

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 %3 9



Management Discussion and Analysis
=REY S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group which is headquartered in Singapore is primarily focused
on the production, packaging and sale of nuts and chips with frack
record of more than 50 years. The Group's core products include
roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and cassava chips. The Group's
products have been sold and disfributed to over 10 countries, including
Singapore, Malaysia, the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"),
India, the United Kingdom and Indonesia. The Group principally
sells ifs products on a wholesale basis o (i) key account customers
which include supermarkets, hotels, airlines and original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) customers; and (i) distributors.

The Group is committed to delivering high quality and safe food
products and continuously meeting consumers’ expectations and
complying with legal requirements. It implements comprehensive
and strict quality assurance procedures throughout all stages of the
production, from the procurement of raw materials to the packaging
and delivery of the finished products. In this regard, the Group
has been accredited with various certifications in relation to quality
management and food safety.

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately S$4.3 million
or 6.2% from approximately $$69.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately $$65.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to a nonrecurring large order
in 2020 from an OEM cusfomer based in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Products

The Group's revenue was primarily derived from the sale of nuts and
chips. The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020:

EEETRR ST

Em

AEBHNUZEERABRRNERERNEE -
TEHIBEE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HE=Z
TEF+ A+ A LFEAREENRESELA -

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-EF

S$ % S$ %

3 T Btk T Bt

Nuts BR 47,298,366 72.5% 50,611,699 72.8%
Chips E2q 16,179,724 24.8% 17,489,566 25.1%
Others (Noel H iy () 1,791,637 2.7% 1,460,962 2.1%
Total st 65,269,727 100.0% 69,562,227 100.0%

Note:  Others mainly refer to items such as disposable towels which were
normally sold together with nuts and chips products to food and
beverages companies.

The sale of nuts and chips products accounted for approximately
72.5% and 24.8% of revenue respectively for the year ended
31 December 2021. The product mix between the sale of nuts and
chips were relatively stable for the two years ended 31 December
2021.

i HibEBEAEEEYARGRRHARNE
BRREAEQE —HEENDS m—KK
ZMhe

HE-T--4+-A=+-ALEE B
RRE KBS B E S B 472 5% R
24.8% ERREFERMAHHENRE T
——F = A=t — AU WEF RIS -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

Geographical location

The Group's products are sold and distributed to customers in over
10 countries. The table below sets forth the breakdown of revenue
by geographical location of end customers for the years ended

31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

BNV E

AEENERHEERDETEBBIVEAERNE
F-TXRINEBEEZ-ZTE=-_—F+=-_A=+—80K
T EE+ A+ HAULFEREKSRER
BAEE D MIREEA:

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-HLEE

2021 2020
—E--% —E-Z2F
S$ % S %
g R AT ARt
Singapore IR 41,115,399 63.0% 39,595,455 56.9%
Malaysia BRAED 14,103,574 21.6% 15,881,052 22.8%
The PRC fincluding Hong Kong ~ H Bl (BIEEH RRM)

and Macau) 7,679,659 11.8% 11,612,353 16.7%
Others Ne! H fth (H) 2,371,095 3.6% 2,473,367 3.6%
Total Bat 65,269,727 100.0% 69,562,227 100.0%

Note:  Others include India, the United Kingdom and Indonesia. izt : HMBIENE EEREE-

The Group's products were mainly sold in Singapore and Malaysia
which accounted for approximately 63.0% and 21.6% of total revenue
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021. The composition
of sales from end consumers in the PRC decreased from approximately
16.7% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
11.8% for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to a non-
recurring large order in 2020 from an OEM customer based in Hong
Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit

The following table sefs forth a breakdown of the Group's gross profit

for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

2021

—E-_-&
Revenue Gross profit
1§ £7
S$ S$
3K T 3K T
Nuts BR 47,298,366 12,917,938
Chips e 16,179,724 4,260,008
Others Hits 1,791,637 506,434
Total/Overall @it/ e 65,269,727 17,684,380

The pricing of the Group's nuts and chips products are generally based
on prices comparable to competitors for similar products.

The Group's gross profit margin for nuts increased from approximately
26.9% for the year ended 31
27.3% for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to lower

December 2020 to approximately

average cost of cerfain raw nufs, as the Group purchased in bulk from
its suppliers.

The Group's gross profit margin for chips decreased from approximately
26.7% for the year ended 31
26.3% for the year ended 31 December 2021 due to higher average

December 2020 to approximately

cost of fresh potatoes.

Overall, the Group's gross profit margin for the year increased from
26.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 27.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

EERED 3L

EF
TEENEE_E-—F+_A=+—AK=-Z
—EF+ A=+ HULFEAEEHEFRRBMA:

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t+-BLEE

2020
—FoFF

Gross profit Gross profit
margin Revenue Gross profit margin
ERE Yz EH ERE
% S$ S$ %
BO H KT HangT B
27.3% 50,611,699 13,590,663 26.9%
26.3% 17,489,566 4,667,510 26.7%
28.3% 1,460,962 425,093 29.1%
27.1% 69,562,227 18,683,266 26.9%
AEEBRREBAEMNEEBFERBRFHTF

HEERNAI B LLREBRETE -
AEFNBRENEABE_T_TF+_HA
ST+ —BIEFENN220 0 EEBE_T_—F

T A=+—HRLEFENLN273% TETHER
AEBBEHEHERARBENE TERRNTY
PR T B o

AEEZRNENEREE T _TF+ A
=+ —BIEFEL206 758V E2HE_T_—F
T A=+ —HIEFELN263% TTHRFEHS

RETFHRAN LR
EEMs AKENENEHEEZE_T_FF
T A=+ —"BLEFEN0MEEHE_F

—Ft_A=+—RHILFEN27.1%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
=REY S

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

Economic performance in Singapore in the fourth quarter of
2021

The Singapore economy grew by 6.1% on a yearonyear basis in the
fourth quarter of 2021, moderating from the 7.5% growth in the third
quarter of 2021. On a quarteron-quarter seasonally-adjusted basis, the
economy expanded by 2.3%, faster than the 1.5% growth recorded in

the third quarter of 2021.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore]

Overall economic performance in Singapore in 2021

For the whole of 2021, the Singapore economy expanded by 7.6%,
rebounding from the 4.1% contraction in 2020.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Indusfry, Singapore]

Economic outlook for 2022

The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore forecasted a gross
domestic product growth for 2022 of between 3.0% and 5.0%.

Since the Economic Survey of Singapore in November 2021,
Singapore's external demand ouflook has deferiorated slightly as the
global surge in Covid-19 cases caused by the spread of the highly-
transmissible Omicron variant has led to a fightening of restriction
measures in many economies. Meanwhile, global supply bottlenecks
remain and are expected to persist throughout the first half of 2022,
thereby constraining industrial production and GDP growth in some
external economies in the near ferm. Persistent supply bottlenecks,
alongside rising energy prices due to geopolifical tensions, have also
exacerbated global inflationary pressures.

In Asia, China’s GDP growth is projected to slow down as its Covid-19
measures and property market slowdown continue to dampen
consumption and investment growth respectively. Meanwhile, the key
Southeast Asian economies of Malaysia, Thailand and Indonesia
are expected fo grow at a faster pace this year due to a pickup in
domestic demand and robust external demand. In particular, continued
progress in vaccine deployment in Thailand and Indonesia should
support the further easing of restrictions in these economies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Domestically, Singapore's high vaccination rate and steady rollout of
booster shots should facilitate further progressive easing of domestic
and border restrictions. This will support the recovery of our consumer
facing sectors and alleviate labour shortages in sectors that are reliant
on migrant workers. Air fravel and visitor arrivals are also expected o
improve with the gradual loosening of fravel restrictions and expansion
of Vaccinated Travel Lanes.

Against this external and domestic backdrop, the Singapore economy
is expected to confinue to expand this year, although the outlook for the

various sectors remains uneven.

(Source: The Ministry of Trade and Industry, Singapore]

Outlook for the Group and Strategies

The Group noted that the global snack food market, which includes
nuts and chips, will continue to grow at approximately 5.5% annually
for the next five years driven by changes in dietary habits and demand
for healthy and functional snacks.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue and
profits decreased.

Overall, the Group expects that demand for snack products to remain
strong, in particular those with less sugar, artificial sweefeners and
flavourings, as health awareness is increasing among consumers. Brand
awareness will play a bigger role in driving sales as consumers start to
pay more attention to the packaging and the messages associated with
their purchases. The Group has thus increased its markefing expenses
to promote brand awareness and product advertising.

In view of the foregoing, the Group will continue to adopt cautious and
prudent approach in managing its business without compromising the
quality of its products in line with its objectives to maintain sustainable
growth in its business and create longterm shareholders' value.

The Group shall continue to remain vigilant and monitor the Covid-19
outbreak very closely especially in its production facilities in Malaysia
as the number of cases remains high, and its priority is always the well-
being of its consumers and staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately S$$4.3 million
or 6.2% from approximately $$69.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately $$65.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to lower sales from the PRC
[including Hong Kong] which decreased from S$11.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to $$7.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, aftributed mainly fo a non-recurring large order in
2020 from an OEM customer based in Hong Kong.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales decreased by approximately $$3.3 million
or 6.5% from approximately $$50.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately S$$47.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 mainly due fo the decrease in cost of
materials, consistent with the decrease in revenue and the lower
average cost of certain raw nuts.

Gross profit

The Group's fotal gross profit decreased by approximately S$1.0
million or 5.3% from approximately $$18.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 fto opproximote|y S$17.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 in line with the decrease in revenue. The
Group's overall gross profit margin increased from approximately
26.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
27.1% for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due fo increase
in gross profit margin for nuts as discussed above.

Other income

The Group's other income decreased by approximately $$0.6 million
or 62.2% from approximately S$0.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately $$0.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 mainly due to lower amounts of government
grants received as part of the support measures by the government
which aimed fo aid businesses cope with challenges arising from the
Covid-19 pandemic and decrease in interest income mainly arising

from lower interest rates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other gains and losses

The Group reported other losses of approximately S$260,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021 compared to other losses of
approximately $$158,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
mainly due fo fair value loss on investment property of approximately
$$265,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021, for a property
1. On the other hand, the Group
recorded a lower fair value loss on derivative financial instruments
of approximately $$48,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021, compared to approximately $$236,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020.

that was newly acquired in 202

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately S$0.5
million or 17.6% from opproximofe|y S5$3.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately S$3.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021

activities including online brand and product advertising, and update

mainly due to increased marketing
of packaging designs.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately S$1.6 million
or 20.9% from approximately $S$7.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to opproximote|y S5$9.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 due to higher professional fees from consultancy
services provided for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately $$22,000 or 14.8% from
approximately $$149,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately S$127,000 for the ended 31 December 2021 mainly
due to decrease in inferest on bank loans arising from lower interest

rates in 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by approximately S$0.3 million
or 16.2% from approximately $$2.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately S$1.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 due mainly o lower profit before taxation. The
Group also had tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
of approximately $$0.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 as compared to approximately $$0.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year decreased by approximately S$3.4 million or 49.9%
from approximately $$6.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately S$3.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 mainly due to decrease in revenue, decrease in other income,
increase in ofher losses, increase in selling and distribution expenses
and increase in administrative expenses as discussed above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group's source of funds comprises a combination of internally
generated funds, bank and other borrowings and net proceeds from the
share offer. As part of the Group's liquidity risk management, the Group
monitors its working capital to ensure that ifs financial obligations can
be met when due by [i) ensuring healthy bank balances and cash for
payment of ifs shortterm working capital needs; |ii) monitoring frade
receivables and its aging monthly and following up closely to ensure
prompt payment from customers; and [iii) monitoring bank and lease
payments.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's current rafio, being
current assefs over current liabilites was 4.5 times and 5.1 times

respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank and other borrowings
amounted fo approximately $$3.8 million, which was higher as
compared fo approximately $$2.5 million as at 31 December 2020.
The Group maintained a relatively low gearing ratfio, based on
interestbearing bank and other borrowings divided by net assets, at
approximately 0.06 fimes as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 0.04

times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group
provided performance guarantee to cerfain customers with balances
amounted to approximately S$0.1 million and approximately $$0.3

million respectively.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and
building to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group with
carrying values of opproximately S$12.5 million and approximately
S$12.7 million as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020

respectively.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2021

capital expenditures of approximately $$3.2 million as compared to

, the Group had incurred

approximately $$2.0 million in the year ended 31 December 2020.
The expenditures were mainly related fo the purchase of property, plant
and equipment to support the growth of the Group's business.

The Group has capital commitments of approximately $$0.2 million as

at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately S$3.8 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December

2021 and 31 December 2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent to 31 December 2021

investment property located at No4 3, Jalan Istimewa 1,

, the Group redesignated the
Taman
Perindustrian Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Malaysia for Group’s own use and the lease to third party expired
on 31 December 2021. The property was fransferred from investment

property to property, plant and equipment on 1 January 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERR ST

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since

14 January 2019, being the Llisting Date, and the net proceeds

from the share offer (after deducting listing expenses) amounted to

approximately HK$66.8 million (equivalent to approximately S$11.7

million) (the “Net IPO Proceeds”). The Group has utilised approximately

HK$16.0 million [equivalent to approximately S$2.8 million] of the
Net IPO Proceeds as at 31 December 2021. The following sets forth
a summary of the allocation of the Net IPO Proceeds and its utilisation

as at 31 December 2021:

Approximate

FrERERR

ARBBRMPE-_ZT-AF-A+HEA(BNLHHA
H)RBXMED ROBEMSHKEFR(E
RAFBEERSHEFE]) (MR EMRAX)
Mmoo 8AEBIT (HERW 7AEH MK
L) BEZT-_—H+-_A=t—H0 AKED
BRERRRBEMSHETNI6OAEET (H
ENA28BEHMEIT) - TXEIR T =—
FtA=ZT—HIRELRBAERARABREME
PR FEOBE -

Unused
Approximate amount of
net proceeds

utilised as at as at

actual amount
Approximate

amount of percenfage of 31 December 31 December
net proceeds net proceeds 2021 2021
R=%B=-% R=B=-%
+=ZA=t-B +=A=t-H
FEREREN  AEREFEN BAOER HARE A
Use of proceeds FRREAR BrRe® BRE L BELE FRBNEFHE
(HK$'million] (%) [HKS million] (HKS million)
(ABET) (%) (ABAT) (BEBET)
Expansion of exisfing nuts and LERAERRK
potato chips products SRERER 267 40.0 9.8 16.9
Production and launch of HERERERR
fortilla chips 16.3 24.4 = 16.3
Expansion of workforce BREDN 17.6 26.3 = 17.6
Working capital EEES 6.2 93 6.2
Total @5t 66.8 100.0 16.0 50.8

As at the dafe of this annual report, the unutilised Net IPO Proceeds

were deposited with licensed banks in Singapore and Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As the Group sells a maijority of its food products overseas in which
these sales are principally denominated in US$ and sources its main
materials in which these purchases are principally denominated in US$,
Euro and AUD, the Group is exposed fo foreign currency exchange
fluctuations arising in the normal course of its business operations.

The Group generally hedges 30% of its expected monthly sales and
purchases denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group has a committee in place, comprising its finance manager
and ifs executive Directors. The commitiee meets regularly from time fo
fime when necessary and is responsible for reviewing, researching and
studying the future foreign exchange rafes and the methods of hedging.
In deciding whether to enter into any foreign currency hedging
transactions, the committee will underfake a cautious approach and
will consider factors including (i) the expected sales and purchases
denominated in foreign currencies; |ii) the historical foreign exchange
rates; and [iii] the perceived future foreign exchange rates. The finance
manager keeps track of the Group’s hedging activities and all hedging
confracts have fo be approved by the executive Directors. As sales and
purchases will confinue fo be denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group expects that it will continue fo enfer into hedging arrangements
where necessary.

DIVIDEND

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook ahead
as set out in the section headed "Outlook and Strategies” of this annual
report, the Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 even though the Group was
profitable (No dividend declared for the year ended 31 December
2020). Nonetheless, the Group's dividend policy has not changed
and the Board will continue to assess whether to recommend dividend
in the next financial period.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) will be held
at 10:00 a.m. on 30 May 2022 at 255 Pandan loop, Singapore
128433 and the notice of the AGM will be published and despatched
in accordance with the requirements under the Company’s articles of
association and the Listing Rules in due course.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i EREV S

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights fo affend and
vofe at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 25 May 2022 to 30 May 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote af the AGM, non-registered shareholders
must lodge all completed transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services limited, at
level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for
regisiration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2022.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 271 employees and 270 employees as at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively. The
Group incurred staff costs of approximately S$10.2 million and
$$10.4 million for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
respectively. Remuneration is defermined by reference to prevailing
market ferms and in accordance with the performance, qualification
and experience of each individual employee. The Company has
adopted a share opfion scheme [the “Share Option Scheme”) on
20 December 2018 to enable the Board to grant share options to
eligible participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with a view to achieve the following objectives: (i) mofivate
the eligible participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the
benefit of the Group; and |ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain
an ongoing business relationship with the eligible participants whose
confributions are or will be beneficial fo the longterm growth of the

Group.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no outstanding share option
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

Biographical defails of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lim Seow Yen (“Ms. Sandy Lim"), aged 65, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. She was re-designated as an executive
Direcfor and appointed as the chairlady of the Board on 5 July 2018.
She is the chairlady of the risk management committee. Ms. Sandy
Lim is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Sandy
Lim has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Ms. Sandy
Lim's core responsibilities lie in operations activities of the Group
including procurement where she sources and plans the supply of raw
materials as well as maintains close working relationship with suppliers,
finance and administration.

Ms. Sandy Lim is the sibling of Mr. Winston Lim and Mr. lawrence
Lim, both being executive Directors. Ms. Sandy Lim is the spouse of
Mr. James Loo and the mother of Mr. Terence Loo, both being members
of the senior management of the Group.

SWIL Limited ("SWL") is interested in /50,000,000 shares (“Share(s)"),
representing 75% of the issued share capifal of the Company. The
issued share capital of SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to
24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang ("Mdm. Han"), 24.5% by Ms. Sandy
Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by Mr. Lawrence Lim, 1.0% by
Mr. James Loo and 1.0% by Ms. Ong liow Wah ["Ms. Jillian Ong"),
who are family members. Ms. Sandy Lim is deemed to be inferested in
the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO").

Mr. Lim Fung Yee ("Mr. Winsfon Lim"), aged 64, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was redesignated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the remuneration
commitiee and the risk management committee. Mr. Winston Lim is
also a direcfor of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Winston Lim
has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Mr. Winston
Lim's core responsibilities lie in sales and marketing where he
strafegises business development and product innovation, ascertains
the viability of potential new markets and proactively maintains close
working relationship with the customers of the Group.
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Mr. Winston Lim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy Lim and Mr. lawrence
Lim, both being executive Direcfors. Mr. Winston Lim is the father of
Mr. Sean Lim, an executive Director.

SWL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston lim, 24.5% by
Mr. lawrence Lim, 1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian
Ong, who are family members. Mr. Winston Lim is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Lim Fung Chor (“Mr. lawrence lim"), aged 60, was appointed as
a Director on 19 April 2018. He was re-designated as an executive
Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member of each of the nomination
committee and the risk management commitiee. Mr. Lawrence Lim is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. lawrence Lim
has over 30 years of experience in the snacks industry. Mr. lawrence
Lim is currently responsible for overseeing the Group’s production
facilities in Johor, Malaysia to ensure that the production process as well
as the products adhere fo the relevant standards and/or certifications,
and customers’ requirements.

Mr. lawrence Lim is the sibling of Ms. Sandy Lim and Mr. Winston
Lim, both being executive Directors. Mr. lawrence Lim is the father of
Mr. Brandon Lim, a member of the senior management of the Group.

SWL is interested in 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL is legally and beneficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm. Han,
24.5% by Ms. Sandy lim, 24.5% by Mr. Winston Lim, 24.5% by
Mr. lawrence Lim, 1.0% by Mr. James loo and 1.0% by Ms. Jillian
Ong, who are family members. Mr. lawrence Lim is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which SWL is interested in under Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai) ("“Mr. Sean Lim"), aged 37, was
appointed as an executive Director on 5 July 2018. He is a member
of the risk management commitiee. Mr. Sean Lim joined the Group in
September 2013 as sales business development assistant manager.
He is currently assisting Mr. Winston Lim in overseeing the overall sales
function of the Group as business development manager.
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He obtained a Diploma in Microelectronics from Temasek Polytechnic
in June 2006 and a letter of Merit for High Achiever Award from The
Republic of Singapore Air Force in February 2008.

Mr. Sean Lim is the son of Mr. Winston Lim, an executive Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ka Yu (“Mr. Chan”), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He s
currently the chairman of the audit commitiee and member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Mr. Chan
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree in accounting from Hong
Kong Shue Yan University in October 2009. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2009.

Mr. Chan has over 10 years of professional accounting and financial
reporting experience. From July 2004 to July 2007, Mr. Chan was an
accountant at Kam & Cheung, Certified Public Accountants. From July
2007 to August 2010, he was a senior auditor at World Link CPA
Limited. From September 2010 to April 2012, he worked at BDO
Limited (which was formerly known as JBPB & Company), initially as @
senior accountant and subsequently promoted as a senior associate.
From May 2012 to April 2013, he worked as an investor relations
officer for Fantasia Group (China) Company limited, a subsidiary of
Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Since June 2013, he has been working as the chief financial officer
of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited (formerly
known as Runway Global Holdings Company Limited) (stock code:
1520), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan is currenfly an independent non-executive director of Dragon
Rise Group Holdings Limited [stock code: 6829) since January 2018
and Yield Go Holdings Lid. (stock code: 1796) since December
2018, both being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. lee Yan Fai ("Mr. lee"), aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2018. He s
currently the chairman of the remunerafion committee and member of
the audit commitiee and the nomination committee. Mr. lee obtained
his Bachelor of Accounting degree from the Napier University, United
Kingdom and his Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Llee has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong since 2014.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Insfitute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Insfitufe of Hong Kong. He is also a
member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. lee has over 10 years' exfensive experience by working in
infernational audit firms and other listed companies. Mr. lee was the
financial controller of each of Bisu Technology Group International
Limited (stock code: 1372) from August 2015 until December 2018
and Sino Golf Holdings Llimited (stock code: 361) from September
2015 until December 2018, both being companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. lee is currently a director of Yongtuo

Fuson CPA Limited.

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) ("Mr. Chew’), aged 48, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 20 December
2018. He is currently the chairman of the nomination committee and
member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee.
Mr. Chew obtained his Bachelor in Engineering degree from the
National University of Singapore in July 1998 and subsequently
obtained his Master of Business Administration from the National
University of Singapore in April 2004. He went on to obtain
professional qualifications, namely, Project Management Professional
(PMP) in June 2010, Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)
Expert in August 2012 and Certified Chief Information Security Officer
in October 2017.
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Mr. Chew has over 10 vyears of experience in the information
technology field. He has been a general manager of OxPay SG Pre
ltd (formerly known as Mobile Credit Payment Pre lid), a payment
technology and merchant service company, since April 2020 and
was its chief technology officer from 2012 until 2017. Prior to that,
he was business support manager for Orange Business Services, a
global telecommunication operator and information technology services

company, from 2009 until 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mok Tang Eng [“Mr. John Mok”), aged 66, joined the Group in
January 2014 as the manufacturing manager. Mr. John Mok is primarily
responsible for monitoring the production flow, increase quality and
stabilisation of production, improve production procedure and reduce
production costing and overhead. Mr. John Mok obtained his Diploma
in Management from the Malaysian Insfitute of Management in January
1992. Mr. John Mok became a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Management in January 1991.

Mr. Loo Soon Hock James ("Mr. James Loo"), aged 65, joined the
Group since January 1985. Mr. James loo has over 30 years of
experience in the snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted
fo senior sales manager where he is responsible for overseeing and
handling direct businessto-business sales with focus on hospitality
and wholesale customers including overseeing the deliveries to the
cusfomers, sourcing for new potential customers and maintaining close
relationship with the cusfomers.

Mr. James Loo is the spouse of Ms. Sandy Lim, an executive Director,
and the father of Mr. Terence Loo, a member of the senior management
of the Group.

Mr. Er Eng Hui ("Mr. Ricky Er"), aged 61, joined the Group since
January 1985, Mr. Ricky Er has over 30 years of experience in the
snacks industry. In January 2017, he was promoted fo senior sales
manager where he is responsible for overseeing and handling direct
businessto-business sales to major supermarket chains in Singapore
including overseeing the promotional activities in the supermarkets and
maintaining close relationship with the cusfomers.
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Mr. Lloo Yong Keong Terence (Lu Yonggiang) (“Mr. Terence Loo”),
aged 37, joined the Group in June 2014 as the finance manager.
Mr. Terence loo is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group's
working capital needs, financial performance, income, cashflow and
expenditure, overall preparation, management and monitoring of
corporafe budgefing, overseeing human resources department and
development of business process and accounting policies. The finance
team led by Mr. Terence loo will provide advice to the Board and
coordinate with the sales and procurement teams to manage financial
and operational risks so that the Group can attain an optimal cashflow
position. Prior to joining the Group, M. Terence loo has worked in
the financial industry for over 3 years. He obtained his undergraduate
degree in Bachelor of Finance from the Australian National University
in July 2011 and postgraduate degree in Master of Professional
Accounting from Singapore Management University in June 2020.

Mr. Terence loo is the son of Ms. Sandy Lim, an executive Director,
and Mr. James Loo, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Lim Sheng Kwong (“Mr. Brandon Llim"), aged 32, joined the
Group in February 2014 as assistant sales manager, subsequently
he was fransferred to being an assistant production manager. In April
2021 he was fransferred back to sales as business development
manager. Mr. Brandon lim obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from
Murdoch University majoring in management marketing in June 2015.

M. Brandon Lim is the son of Mr. Lawrence Lim, an executive Director.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan So Fun ("Ms. Chan"), age 53, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 20 December 2018.
Ms. Chan is currently a partner at the law firm of Michcel Li & Co.,
specialising in corporate finance work including initial public offerings,
mergers and acquisitions and restructuring. Ms. Chan is a practising
solicitor and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in November
2007. She received a degree of Bachelor of Llaws from the University
of london in August 2004. She obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong in December 1998
and she also obtained a degree of Bachelor of Social Science from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1992. Ms. Chan
has been the company secretary of BHCC Holding Limited (stock
code: 1552) since August 2017, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Prior to embarking her legal career, Ms. Chan
has over five years of experience in marketing and corporate
communications.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Board is pleased fo present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and through
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production, packaging
and sale of nuts and chips with frack record of more than 50 years.
The core products include roasted nuts, baked nuts, potato chips and
cassava chips. The products have been sold and distributed to over 10
counfries, including Singapore, Malaysia, the PRC, India, the United
Kingdom and Indonesia.

The particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 32 fo the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 are sef out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2021 are sef out in
the Financial Statements.

After due consideration of the uncertain macroeconomic outlook
ohead as set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, the Board has resolved not fo
recommend any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 even
though the Group was profitable. Nonetheless, the Group's dividend
policy has not changed and the Board will continue to assess whether
to recommend dividend in the next financial period.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 20 December 2018,
which sefs out the approach in recommending dividends, to allow the
shareholders to participate in the Group's profits and for the Group
fo retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company’s ability
to pay dividends will depend upon, among other things, the Group's
current and future operations, financial position, development pipeline,
prevailing economic environment, contractual restrictions, capital and
other reserve requirements, dividends received from the Company's
subsidiaries and associates, as well as any other conditions or factors
which the Board deems relevant. The form, frequency and amount
of dividend payment by the Company are subject fo any restrictions
under the memorandum and articles of association (the “Articles”) of the
Company, the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the
Cayman Islands and any other laws and regulations applicable fo the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Defails of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are sef out in Note 12 fo
the Financial Statements.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote at the AGM 1o be held at 10:00 a.m. on 30 May 2022 af
255 Pandan loop, Singapore 128433, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 25 May 2022 to 30 May 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
non-egistered shareholders must lodge all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar and fransfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Llimited, at level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 May
2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group in the form of a comparative table for the last five financial
years is set out in the section headed “Financial Highlights” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has complied
with all applicable laws and regulations in relation o environmental
protections, including, but not limited to The Environmental Protection
and Management Act (Chapter 94A of Singapore), Environmental
Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009 (Malaysia) and
Environmental Quality [Sewage) Regulations 2009. In 2021, the
Group was not subject to any material claims or penalties in relation o
environmental protection.

Detfails of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
performance for the year ended 31 December 2021 can be found in
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance
with all significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to its business and industry in
Singapore and Malaysia in all material aspects during the year ended

31 December 2021.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is aware that the Group's financial condition, results of
operation, businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group are set out as follows:

(i)  The Group's business is seasonal

The Group experiences seasonal fluctuations in its revenue and
operating income for ifs products. The Group generally records
higher revenue for its products during the holiday seasons, such
as the Chinese New Year, Hari Raya Puasa and Chrisimas.
The seasonal nature of its products causes its production lines o
operate at levels approaching full capacity during certain times of
the year to meet the demand particularly for the holiday seasons.
As a result of these fluctuations, sales and operating results for
any particular period may not necessarily be indicative of the
Group's results for the full year or future periods. The Group's
results of operations are likely to confinue to fluctuate due to
seasonality.

(i) The Group's profitability may be adversely affected by
fluctuations in material prices

The Group purchases all its materials which mainly comprise
various types of nuts and beans including peanuts, cashews,
pistachios, almonds, macadamia nuts, USA walnuts, broad
beans and green peas, as well as fresh potatoes and cassava
roofs from third party suppliers. lts cost of materials accounted
for more than 80% of its cost of sales. The quality and price of
its materials are dependent on the output of the harvest which
may be affected by events beyond its confrol such as natural
disasters, infectious diseases, pest infestations and climate
change. The Group's suppliers may not be able to continue fo
provide materials in sufficient quantities and of suitable quality
at an acceptable price fo satisfy the Group's production needs
should there be a bad harvest. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic,
global supply chain may also be disrupted. Any interruptions
fo its material supplies could materially and adversely affect its
production and business operation.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

FTERRBRIEERE

EXeME AEENPBIN BEXE XK
ERSAERZBARE I EERENZE XK
SEBHOEZEMRETEEREZHIIWT

() AEEXRBIZHUR
AEBEMERPGS REERAFTETHMKE
KB AEERATFNRAFTHESESRSE
mnias - IR R B - PR AN R EEREAS
AEEBEMNFTHEERELIERN —F
Fh ) 3 L By B LA SR AT R B TR KB AR - A
MEBEENRFHTER XRERBTE
PR E B IR SH & SR AR W A AR
REBE2FHARRME A EE - AEEHK
ERENRDEXFTHEZEMKE -

(i) AEENBAELSEZ I EE
BREBN AR E

AEBEEE=ZTHEHRBEMAMN
TEERRBERRLER (BEEE BR-
MLOR BC ERRR XEEN BE=Z
RBG AR FRERARZR EMH
PR AN E8H AR BY80%IA L - M ) &
RERBURRWE  MEREEARAKE &
FULE  BERRIRE (L EFHE L H R
BH 4R E BRI NEREMHER
RARBBEAAEINERERRHEBERR
BEEFEENME ARRAEENLEES
Bo2HEB A EX 20108 REE
RRBRBOHE MR E RS
HBEAEREBLEEENEATHNEE -

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 % 33



Report of the Directors
EEERE

(iii) The Group relies on certain third party suppliers

The Group's purchases from its five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 50.5% of its total purchases for the year

ended 31
suppliers will continue to supply materials af prices and on terms

December 2021. There is no assurance that these

and conditions accepfable to the Group. The materials from its
suppliers may be offected by natural disasters, infectious diseases,
pest infestations and climate change which may expose the
Group fo the risk of price fluctuation and availability of supplies.
Should there be any disruptions in the operations of its suppliers
which affect the supply of materials, there is no assurance
that the Group will be able fo locate alternative suppliers with
sufficient quantities of suitable quality at an acceptable price and
commercial terms, which could then materially and adversely
affect its business, overall profitability and financial performance.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

SHARE CAPITAL

Defails of the movements in the share capifal of the Company are sef
out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are sef out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” in the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Group, as calculated
under the Companies law of the Cayman Islands, was approximately

S$36.5 million.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021,
has made charitable donations of approximately $$162,000 and
S$100,000 respectively.

the Group

34 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2021

(i) XEBRBEETE=ZFHER
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—B1FEE"
7K S 8 1) L T K 1t B R 4 RO SR BB A 4B
BEEM50.5% R R B XS HER S BE
A 4 [ FT 9B S N (B AR A TR IR R R AR it
FENTR o (L RS R MR AT 2 2 B B A S¢
= ERF BERFGECOPE 2T
Be 150 AN £ B T PR (B AR M B R 0 (R FE L gk o
ik Lk B 7R 3 75 o BT T B2 MR - AR
EREAEEBEANRTEZIERREE
G MERtEE TR AEEEEMNM
RIS R OLERS T A AR s B
BRI RS BRREREATHFE-

ERASBHENEMRERR N TEERE -
FREERRRREER] —&-

&N
AR B B A B B S R B IS IR R 24

p=1I13
pun 13
$

GRS
AEEBE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HLFEN
REEPHNMHERER [FARERZER] —-

A 5 7 Ik e ¥
R-B-—F+-A=+—H0 RHSHEAF
FEHE ATHRSETARBEERRNERAS
#9536.57 B i MR -

BH
BE_Z_TFR-_FT-_—F+-A=t+—HL
FEAKE D RIE LA ES B A162,000% i
3 7T F 100,000% hni 7t ©



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately 63.8%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 whilst the largest customer accounted for approximately 31.9%
of the tofal revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2021.

The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 50.5%
of the Group’s fotal purchases during the year ended 31 December
2021 whilst the largest supplier accounted for approximately 24.1%
of the fotal purchases of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2021.

At all times during the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
Direcfors or any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any shareholder (who, to the best knowledge of the Direcfors, own
more than 5% of number of issued Shares) had an interest in any of the
five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20 December
2018. The ferms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Llisting Rules. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme:

(A) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive or a reward fo eligible persons for their contribution
fo the Group and/or to enable the Group fo recruit and refain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
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(B)

(C)

(D)

Participants of the Share Option Scheme
The participants of the Share Option Scheme shall be:

(1) any employee (whether full-time or parttime] of the
Company, any of the subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;

(2) any director [including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(3)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(4)  any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(5)  any consuliant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support fo the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(6] any person who, in the sole discrefion of the Board, has
confributed or may contribute fo the Group or any Invested
Entity eligible for options under the Share Option Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

Under the Share Option Scheme, the total number of Shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all share
opfions to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the number of issued shares as at 14 January
2019, being the Llisting Date, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from the shareholders.

As at the date of this annual report, a fotal of 100,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company, are available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up fo and including
the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of the fotal
number of Shares in issue.
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(E)

(F)

(C)

(H)

Each grant of share options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive Direcfors. In addition, any grant of share options
fo a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Direcfor, or fo any of their associates, resulting in the Shares
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) fo such person, in a 12-month period
up fo and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the Shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting of the Company.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

The period during which an option may be exercised is
defermined by the Board at its discrefion, save that such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

As defermined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option and
the period within which payments shall be made

A consideration of S$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of
grant of an option where the grantee should accept or decline
the offer of grant of an option within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a date not later than
21 business days from the date upon which it is made.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granfed under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified
fo an eligible person, and shall be at least the higher of: (1) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, (2] the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheefs for the five consecufive business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (3) the nominal
value of a share on the date of grant.

(E)

(F)

()

(H)
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()  The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 vyears from 20 December 2018, being the
adoption date, until 19 December 2028.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on
20 December 2018, and there is no outstanding share option as

at 31 December 2021.

As af the dafe of this annual report, there was no outstanding
share opfion granted under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who served for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up fo the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Llim Seow Yen (Chairlady)"
M. Lim Fung Yeel!

Mr. Llim Fung Chor'!

Mr. Llim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai)®
Mr. Zhang Junli®®

Notes:
(1) Appointed as Director on 19 April 2018 [date of incorporation of the
Company) and were re-designated as executive Director on 5 July 2018.

[2)  Appoinfed as executive Director on 5 July 2018.

(3)  Refired on 31 May 2021.

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

Mr. Llee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

Note: All appointed as independent non-executive Directors on 20 December

2018.
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Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, af each annual generdl
meeting, onethird of the Directors, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to buf not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject fo refirement by rotation at least once every three years
and shall then be eligible for reelection. As such, Mr. lee Yan Fai,
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)] and Ms. Lim Seow Yen (Sandy
Lim) will retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming AGM, being
eligible, and offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE AGREEMENT

Each executive Director is appointed under a service agreement for a
term of three years from the listing Date which is terminable by either
party by giving three months” written notice fo the other party.

Each independent non-executive Director is appointed under a lefter
of appointment for a term of three years from the listing Dafe which is
terminable by either party by giving one month’s written notice fo the
other party.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service confract which is not deferminable by our
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation [other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical defails of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 29 to the
Financial Statements, no Director and/or any of his/her connected
entity had a material interest, whether direcﬂ\/ or indirecﬂ\/, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021

Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying

the interests or short positions of the

shares and debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required: (a) fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were faken or deemed fo have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
fo be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be nofified fo
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF SWL LIMITED,
AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMPANY

Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest

BEEnA B0 EmME
Lim Seow Yen Beneficial owner
R/ BEamEBA
Lim Fung Yee Beneficial owner
M5 F BEamEEA
Lim Fung Chor Beneficial owner
7 EmlEAA

Note: SWL Limited held in aggregate 750,000,000 Shares, representing 75%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The issued share capital of
SWL Llimited is legally and benéficially owned as to 24.5% by Mdm.
Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. Lim Seow Yen, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung
Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Chor, 1.0% by Mr. loo Soon Hock James
and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Lliow Wah.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any inferests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company [within the meaning of Part XV of the SFOJ, which were
required: (a) fo be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
fo be entered in the register referred fo therein, or [c] pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Compony] and entities had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of inferest

R A B EEHE
SWIL Limited Beneficial owner
SWIL Limited BEnEA A

Note: The issued share capital of SWL Limited is legally and beneficially owned
as fo 24.5% by Mdm. Han Yew lang, 24.5% by Ms. Lim Seow Yen,
24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Yee, 24.5% by Mr. Lim Fung Chor, 1.0% by
Mr. Loo Soon Hock James and 1.0% by Ms. Ong Liow Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as
the Direcfors are aware, no other persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) or entities had any inferests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company, which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under secfion 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Opfion Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered info or subsisted by the Company at the year ended

31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 were rights fo
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective associates
nor was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a parly fo any
arrangement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, details of the material
related party fransactions undertaken in the normal course of business
are set out in Note 29 to the Financial Statements.

Save as disclosed in Note 29 to the Financial Statements, the Group
has not engaged in any other connected transactions and/or related
party fransactions during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

The Group believes that the remuneration package fo its employees is
in line with local industries. It offers its employees medical insurance
coverage. The Group also offers its employees discretionary bonus
depending on their respective performance and profitability of the
Group which encourages their individual performance and then to
confribute fo their departmental performance as well. The emoluments
of the Directors are reviewed and approved by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to factors including remuneration
paid by comparable companies, fime commitment, job duties and
responsibilities in respect of the relevant positions. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme, defails of which are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest poid
individuals in the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in Note 10 to the Financial Statements. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, there was no arrangement under which
any Direcfor had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the

year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a proTata basis o existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance. The Directors recognise that a
good corporate governance is essential for the Company to achieve
its objectives and drive improvement, as well as mainfain legal and
ethical standing in the eyes of shareholders, regulators and the general
public. The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Corporate Governance Code”] contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board and saved as
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has complied with the Corporate Governance Code which are
applicable to the Company. Please refer to the said section for defails.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct governing the Directors’
securifies transactions and each of the Directors has confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that he/she had complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2021.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation of independence, and the
Company considers that each of them is independent and has met the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors

IN A COMPETING

or their respective close associates had interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant fo the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

SWIL limited, Mdm. Han Yew lang, Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung
Yee, Mr. lim Fung Chor, Mr. loo Soon Hock James and Ms. Ong
liow Wah (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into
a deed of non-competition dated 20 December 2018 in favour of
the Company and the subsidiaries (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to the
Company |for itself and for the benefit of the subsidiaries|, among
others, that, during the period which (i) the Shares remain listed in the
Stock Exchange and (i) the Controlling Shareholder and their close
associates (other than members of the Group] individually or jointly,
are entitfled to exercise, or control the exercise of, not less 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company or control the Board. He/she/it
shall not, and shall procure that his/her/its close associates (other than
any member of the Group) not to carry on or be engaged, concerned
or interested, or otherwise be involved directly or indirectly, in any
business in compefition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business activity of any member of the Group or any business
activity to be conducted by any member of the Group from fime to
time.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders further undertakes that if any
project or new business opportunity which may compete with the
business of the Group is identified by or offered to him/her/it,
he/she/it shall procure that his/her/its close associates to prompily
nofify the Group in writing and the Group shall have a right of first
refusal to take up such opportunity. The Group shall within 30 business
days after the receipt of the writlen notice, notify the Controlling
Shareholders whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal.
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The Company has received a written confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of the compliance with and the enforcement
of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling
Shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2021. All
independent non-executive Direcfors have reviewed the compliance
of the Deed of Non-competition entered into by the Controlling
Shareholders as to whether the Controlling Shareholders had abided
by the Deed of non-Competition. All independent non-executive
Directors also confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had  not
been in breach of the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended
31 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the date of this
annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that its employees are valuable assets for
the Group's contfinuous development and endeavours to provide
competitive remuneration package and various benefits to affract and
refain its talents. Employees are remunerated according to their job
scope, responsibilifies, and performance. Employees are also enfifled
to discretionary bonus depending on their respective performance and
profitability of the Group. Other form of remuneration packages include
medical insurance coverage for all employees and leaves including
marriage, matemity, paternity, childcare leaves and compassionate
leaves.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to recognise
and motivate contributions of its employees. Further defails regarding
the Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

The Group maintains a close relationship with ifs customers and
suppliers. The Group has approximately 30 years of relationship with
its largest customer, which is the largest supermarket chain in Singapore
with a network of over 200 outlets and approximately 20 years of
relationship with its largest supplier, which is a grower, processor and
infernational frader and exporter of nuts and dried fruits.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Singapore and Malaysia law, the Group makes
contribution to the Central Provident Fund and the Employees Provident
Fund which provides for the refirement benefits for eligible employees in
Singapore and Malaysia respectively. Both the employer and employee
are required to make contributions into the employee’s individual
account in the Cenfral Provident Fund or the Employees Provident Fund
at a specified percentage of the employee’s monthly income. As at
the date of this annual report, the Group is in compliance with this
requirement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officers of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profifs
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
domages and expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices.

The Company has taken appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
Directors’ and officers’ liability for the year ended 31 December 2021.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No confract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any subsfantial part of the business of the Company was entered
info or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group redesignated the
investment property located at No. 3, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman
Perindustrian Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Malaysia for Group’s own use and the lease to third party expired
on 31 December 2021. The property was transferred from investment
property to property, plant and equipment on 1 January 2022.
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REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has three members,
consisting of all the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka
Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao). Mr. Chan

Ka Yu is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Commitiee had reviewed this annual report (including the
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 and had submitted
the same fo the Board for approval. The Audit Committee were of the
opinion that the Financial Statements, the results announcement and this
annual report had been prepared in compliance with the applicable
accounting standards, requirements and the Llisting Rules, and that
adequate disclosure had been made.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Company appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Financial
Statements were audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP. Deloitte & Touche
LLP will refire, and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM fo re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LIP as the external auditor of the
Company until the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the
Board to fix their remuneration.

On behalf of the Board
Lim Seow Yen
Chairlady and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
LEEERE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
shareholders and protecting and enhancing shareholders” value through
good corporate governance.

The Directors recognise that a good corporafe governance is essential
for the Company to achieve its objectives and drive improvement, as
well as maintain legal and ethical standing in the eyes of shareholders,
regulators and the general public.

The Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 14 January
2019, being the listing Date. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 fo the Listing
Rules. To the best knowledge of the Board and save as disclosed
hereunder, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance Code which are applicable
to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 (currently known as C.2.1) of the Corporate
Governance Code sfafes that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same

individual.

Ms. Lim Seow Yen is the Chairlady of the Board. As the Chairlady,
Ms Lim Seow Yen manages the board's business and activities and
provides guidance and direction to other board members to ensure
that the Board works effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company.

The Company has no such position as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monitored by the executive Directors as well as the senior management
of the Group. The Board believes that there is sufficient balance of
power and authority as there are four experienced executive Directors
each overseeing various aspects of the business, namely finance and
operations, sales and marketing and production functions. In addition,
there are three independent non-executive Directors who are sufficiently
experienced and capable of monitoring the operations of the Group.
The Board will meet from time to fime to discuss issues arising from
operations of the Group.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Direcfors of listed Issuers as set forth in Appendix 10 fo the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the
Direcfors. Employees of the Group (the “Relevant Employees”] who,
because of their office or employment, are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or ifs securities are also subject
fo compliance with the Model Code. Following specific enquiry,
each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021. No incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by the Relevant Employees was

noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members as follows:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Lim Seow Yen (Chairlady)
M. Llim Fung Yee

Mr. Llim Fung Chor
Mr. Lim Seng Chye (lin Shengcai)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu

Mr. Llee Yan Fai

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao)

The biogrophico\ information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. The relationships between the members of the
Board are also disclosed under the same section.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board af all fimes met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to Code provision A.4.2 (currently known as B.2.2) of
the Corporate Governance Code, every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to refirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Each of Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung Yee, Mr. Llim Fung Chor and
Mr. Lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai), all being executive Directors, is
appointed under a service agreement for a ferm of three years from the
Listing Date which is terminable by either party by giving three months’
written nofice to the other party. Each of Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan
Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao), all being independent
non-executive Directors, is appointed under a letter of appointment for
a term of three years from the Listing Date which is terminable by either
party by giving one month's written nofice to the other party.

In accordance with the Arficles, at each annual general meeting
one-hird of the Directors shall refire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rofation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the
general meefing at which a Director refires may fill the vacated office.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board, led by the Chairlady, Ms. Llim Seow Yen, determines and
monitors the overall strategy and policies, annual budgets and business
plans, evaluates the performance of the Group, and supervises the
management of the Company.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of the corporate
and financial policies, review and assessment of the Company's
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems and
the oversight of the management of the Group's business and affairs.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. All Directors have full and fimely access to all
the information of the Company as well as the services and advice
from the senior management. The Direcfors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Direcfors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Direcfor to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy’) on 20 December 2018, which sefs out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, infegrity, management experience,
technical skills, industry or professional knowledge and experience. All
Board appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates are
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the
Group had achieved board diversity for the year ended 31 December
2021.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board had adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 20 December 2018, which sefs ouf the approach fo defermine
the nomination of Directors, the procedure, process and criteria fo be
adopted for the purposes of selecting and recommending candidates
for diredorship, and shall make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer.
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The Company considered that, in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, the nomination committee of the Board may make
reference to cerfain criferia, including but not limited fo, the experience
in the Compony's principo| business ond/or the indusTry in which the
Company operates, balance of skills, knowledge and experience on
the Board, and various aspects sef out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The nomination committee of the Board had reviewed the Nomination
Policy fo ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience required for the business of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS" CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

A newly appointed Director will receive formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their confribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All Directors were encouraged to attend relevant fraining
courses at the Company's expense.
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BOARD PROCESS

The Group has in place a clear board process. Regular Board
meetings are scheduled at least four fimes per year. Directors receive
ot least 14 days’ prior written nofice of regular Board meetings and
agenda. The Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
background information, are normally sent 1o all Directors at least three
days before the Board meeting. For other Board meetings, Directors are
given as much nofice as possible in the circumstances. Directors may
include any matters they wish fo discuss in the agenda.

Minutes of the Board and commitiee meetings are prepared and kept
by the company secretary of the Group, and are open for inspection
by Directors upon request. All Direcfors have access to the advice and
services of the company secrefary, and are allowed fo seek external
professional advice if needed.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had five

meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the risk management committee (the “Risk Management
Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are posted on
the Company's website (www.taisun.com.sg) and the Stock Exchange's
website [www.hkexnews.hk) and are available to shareholders upon
request. The Board commitiees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their dufies.
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Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Commitiee on 20 December 2018
of the
listing Rules and Code provision C.3 (currently known as D.3) of

with written tferms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21

the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are fo assist the Board in providing an independent view
of the effectiveness of the Group's financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system, to oversee the audit process and
to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Commitiee has three members, consisting of all independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao). Mr. Chan Ka Yu is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chan Ka Yu possesses appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former pariner of the existing external auditors of the
Company.

The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee had
two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021:

° Review and discuss the annual financial statements, results
announcements and reports, the related accounting principles
and pracfices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit

findings;

®*  Review and report on related party fransactions carried out
during the year ended 31 December 2021;

e Discuss and recommend the re-appointment of external auditors.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Group established the Remuneration Commitiee on 20 December
2018 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision B.1 (currently known as E.1) of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the remuneration committee include but not
limited to, (i) making recommendations to the Directors on the policy
and sfructure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (i) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management; and [iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Directors from time fo time.

The Remuneration Commitiee has four members, consisting of an
executive Direcfor, Mr. Lim Fung Yee, and all independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. Llee Yan Fai and Mr. Chew Keat Yeow
(Zhou Jieyao). Mr. lee Yan Fai is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The members of the Remuneration Committee should meet at least once
a vyear. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration

Committiee had two meetings.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021:

®  Review on the remuneration packages for individual Directors and
senior management and made recommendations to the Board;
and

®*  Review on the bonus and salary packages for the executive
Directors and made recommendations to the Board

Pursuant o code provision B.1.5 (currently known as E.1.5) of the
Corporate Governance Code, the annual remuneration of the members
of the senior management (other than Directors) by bands for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is sef out below:

Wi E T -—F+-_A=+—RHLEFE
FNEZESHEITHITIE:

s RISEFNSMEEEBFIGE AES
SRHEEBRRER &M

s BIHITERNRANFMGE YRAES
SREEH

RiFEEATRISTRIMEIB. 1.5 GRAET.S)
o BHE-_T-_—F+_A=1+—RHLEFE &
FHMEES > NS AEEEXRE (EFEHRINKM
FEFMMETINT

No. of

Band of remuneration (HK$) individuals
FEEEE (Bx) A
HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 O E 1,000,000/ 7T 3
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7t E1,500,0007% 7T 2
5

Further defails of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Group established the Nomination Committee on 20 December
2018 with writtlen terms of reference in compliance with Code
provision A.5 [currently known as B.3) of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Commitiee include but
not limited to, (i reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board on a regular basis; [i) idenfifying individuals suitably
qualified fo become Board members; [iii) assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors; (iv] making recommendations
to the Board in relation to the appointment and removal of Directors
and senior management, and on matters of succession planning; and
(v)] making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and/or senior management.
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The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment
of new Direcfors, faking info account a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience, and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy, and assess their effectiveness, and where
necessary, make any revisions that may be required and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee has four members, consisting of
an executive Director, Mr. Lim Fung Chor, and all independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Ka Yu, Mr. lee Yan Fai and

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao). Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou

Jieyao) is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The members of the Nomination Committee should meet at least once
a year. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination

Committee had one meeting.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021

e Review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations fo the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e Assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

*  Make recommendations fo the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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Risk Management Committee

The Group established the Risk Management Committee on
20 December 2018 with written terms of reference, to further
enhance the Group's existing infernal risk management functions. The
primary duties of the Risk Management Committee include but not
limited to, monitoring the Group's exposure to sanctions risks and its

implementation of the related internal control procedures.

The Risk Management Committee has four members, consisting of four
executive Directors, Ms. Lim Seow Yen, Mr. Llim Fung Yee, Mr. Llim Fung
Chor and Mr. lim Seng Chye (Lin Shengcai). Ms. Lim Seow Yen is the

chairlady of the Risk Management Committee.

The members of the Risk Management Committee should meet at least
twice a vyear. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk

Management Committee had two meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Risk
Management Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021

* Review and approve all relevant business transaction
documentation from customers/distributors or potential
customers/distributors from sanctioned countries and with

sanctioned persons;

*  Monitor the use of proceeds from the share offer of the

Company; and

®  Review the internal control policies and procedures with respect

to sanctions law matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS T EE BB AL

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the EHREBERBITHEEATRISFANED.3.1(3]
code provision D.3.1 [currently known as A.2.1) of the Corporate  &A.2.1) 1&AT S8 BE

Governance Code.

o

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and  EBEEFEBZ AR RINEEERBER TR EF
practices, fraining and continuous professional development of Directors BREEENFIRFEZERR KRBT
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on  BF/EREREERTHENBERER  HRE
compliance with legal and regulafory requirements, the compliance of ~ SFRIRIESIMESFIE R R AR B EFREEIRT
the Model Code and the guidelines, and the Company’s compliance  BIBI1ES - AR AP EE G M EF A EEBE R -
with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZECRENEHERLE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the annual general meeting, ‘TEELNARAREBE_T=-_—F+ =8
Board meefings and Board committee meetings of the Company held =+—BIEFERTHRRBFAE E5gT
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the table EREZEZESEZMLFLHEHN TR

below:

Number of attendance/number of meetings held

HERY BTEERY
Risk Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Management General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BEREEZE RRAF
=2 Exg BiKZEE® FHZEE ERZE% 8- PN -{
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Ms. Lim Seow Yen gL+ 5/5 N/AR@ER N/ATER N/ATER 2/2 1/1
M. lim Fung Yee WEFEE 5/5 N/ATER 2/2 N/ATER 2/2 1/1
M. Llim Fung Chor WHELE 5/5 N/ATER N/ATER 1/1 2/2 1/1
Mr. lim Seng Chye [Lin Shengcai) WEFRE 5/5 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 2/2 1/1
Mr. Zhang Junli* REBLAE” 2/2 N/AR@ER N/ATER N/ATER N/ANER 1/1
Indlependent Non-executive Directors: BUHNTEE:
Mr. Chan Ka Yu REFEE 5/5 2/2 2/2 /1 N/AT@ER 1/1
Mr. Lee Yan Fai TEBRE 5/5 2/2 2/2 /1 N/ATER 1/1
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow (Zhou Jieyao) BERLE 5/5 2/2 2/2 /1 N/ATER 1/1
* Mr. Zhang Junli retired on 31 May 2021 * REBEER-ZZE-_—FAA=+—HRE
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According fo article 62 of the Articles, an annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year other than the year of
the Company’s adoption of the Articles. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company held its annual general meeting on

31 May 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
and ensure that they are published in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating fo
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability fo continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Deloitte & Touche LLP was
engaged as the Group's independent auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable fo the independent auditor and its
foreign member firm for audit services and non-audit services in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2021 amount to $$208,280 and
S$5,513 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk
management and infernal control systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure o achieve business obijectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Company had reviewed the need for
an internal audit function. Internal audit function of the Company had
been and will be carried out under the leadership of the Board and the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, due to the continuous
outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic, the Company encountered difficulties
in conducting internal audit to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and infernal control systems of the Group. As a result,
the internal audit function as required by Code Provision C.2.5 of
the Corporate Governance Code has been postponed and will be
conducted later in 2022. The Board expects that a review of the risk
management and infernal control systems will be performed annually.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has esfablished policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and fimely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Procedures such
as limit access to inside information to those who need to know and
requiring external parties fo execute confidentiality agreement have
been implemented by the Company to guard against mishandling of
inside information. The Group also reminds those relevant personnel
and other professional parties to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan So Fun is the company secretary of the Company, who
reports directly to the Board and is responsible for, among others,
providing updated and timely information fo all Direcfors from fime to
time. Ms. Chan is nominated by an external service provider to assist
in company secretarial affairs of the Company. Ms. Chan’s primary
confact person af the Company is the Chairlady of the Board, Ms. Lim
Seow Yen. During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Chan
confirmed that she had faken no less than 15 hours of professional
fraining in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Llisting Rules. Her
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of the Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures to
enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and communicate efficienﬂy with the Company.
Under the Articles and the relevant policies and procedures of the
Company, the shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)  convene an extraordinary general meeting or put
forward proposals:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting, pursuant fo article 64 of the Articles.
Extraordinary general meetfings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, af the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing fo the
Board or the company secrefary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition at the Company's Hong Kong office at Room 901, 9th
Floor, Prosperity Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
fo proceed to convene such meefing, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionisf(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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(i) put forth proposals at shareholders’ meeting:

Shareholders are requested fo follow article 64 of the Articles for
including a resolution at an exfraordinary general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are sef out in paragraph (i) above.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a
refiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and nofice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office of the Company.
The period for lodgment of the notices required will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the nofice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven days prior fo the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be af least seven days.

(iii) put forth enquiries to the Company:

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board's
affention can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the
Company's Hong Kong office at Room 901, 9th Floor, Prosperity
Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relafions and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other extraordinary
general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their
delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.
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The Company’s website [www.taisun.com.sg) provides comprehensive
and accessible news and information of the Company to the
shareholders, other stakeholders and investors. The Company will
also update the website information from time to time fo inform the
shareholders and investors of the latest development of the Company.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:
Singapore Hong Kong

255 Pandan Loop
Singapore 128433

Room 901, 9th Floor, Prosperity Tower
39 Queen'’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

The Company confinues fo enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular diclogue with institutional investors and analysfs o
keep them posted of the Company's developments. Enquiries from
shareholders and investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. Board
members and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available af the
meeting fo answer any questions raised by shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there had been no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.

An upfodate version of the memorandum and the Arficles is available
on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG’) report of TS
Wonders Holding Limited ("We" or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”), ("ESG Report”) addresses a
range of material impacts on the Group, outlining our sustainability
approaches and disclosing our ESG performances during the period

from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

BASIS OF THIS ESG REPORT

This ESG Report is prepared according to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) set out
in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (“listing Rules”).

With reference to the ESG Reporting Guide and the Group's business
operation, this ESG Report divides the relevant aspects and key
performance indicators ['KPI'), which are considered to be relevant and
material to the Group, info seven subject areas:

1. We and the Environment

2. Climate Change Impact

3. Our Supply Chain Management
4. Commitment to Product Quality
5. Occupational Health and Safety
6. Development and Training

7. Coing Back to the Community

A complete index in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide is also
available at the end of the ESG Report for reference. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions sef out in the ESG
Reporting Guide in the Reporting Period.

As a snack food manufacturer, we are committed to delivering high
quality and safe food products and continuously meetfing customers’
expectations and complying with legal requirements.
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R HERELGRSE

THE BOARD AND ESG EXECUTIVE GROUP

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company refains overall
responsibility for the governance of ESG which includes, but not limited
to identifying and evaluating ESG related risks, determining ESG
strategy and scope, setting forth related risk management and internal
control system and approving the disclosure in this ESG Report.

An ESG Executive Group, consisting of an executive Director,
senior management from Finance, Operation and Human Resources
departments in Singapore and Malaysia, is established by the Board
for the purpose of implementing the ESG initiatives, collecting and
continuously monitoring ESG data and preparing this ESG Report.

The key functions, and responsibilities of the ESG Executive Group are:

1. Leadership

The ESG Executive Group is chaired by an Executive Direcfor.

2. Knowledge of Business

All ESG Executive Group members are involved in the daily
operations and management of the business.

3.  Active Involvement

Members of the ESG Executive Group shall meet regularly, no
less than an inferval of annually.
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R HEREBHRE
Right to Access 4. EB#ER
The ESG Executive Group has the rights fo access to all ESG- ESCHIT/ NABESHMBESCIEBEE KX
related facts and information and to engage specialists to assist AR A REZEERBGBMENEHESCE
in the study and preparation of ESG matters at cost of the B BRAAQRIEE-
Company.
Responsibilities to Exercise 5. &#fE
The ESG Executive Group is instructed by the Board to implement ESCHIT NEARBEETERTRERRER
and monitor our ESGrrelated initiatives. ESCHE B tH it
Independent Reporting 6. BYER
The ESG Executive Group has the rights and responsibilities to ESCHIT I EBRFNMNEEBYNESS
report to the Board independently on important ESG matters. EREEMESCEH -
Board of
Directors
Exg
ESG Executive
Group
ESG #1708
An Executive
Director
—EBHITES
Human Resource Finance Operational
Function Function Function
ADERERE B HE B BE EIERRE
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Company has adopted a management approach fo identify,
assess, priorifies and manage material ESGrrelated issues, which has
the following seven elements.

1. Policies

We have established and rolled out company-wide policies to
regulate our ESGrrelated activities.

2.  Commitments

We are committed to comply with all ESGrelated regulatory
requirements in Singapore and Malaysia and ESG reporting
standards applied fo listed issuers in Hong Kong.

3.  Goals and targets

We are dedicated to set redlistic and achievable goals and
fargets, putting info considerations our scale and optimal point
we are positioning in and looking forward to.

4. Responsibilities

We have a top-down governance to manage our ESG acfivifies,
which is primarily driven by the Board of Directors and effectively
executed by our ESG Executive Group.

5. Resources

We have diverted sufficient resources to execute our ESG
activities, including an acceptable financial budget and time
devotion by our relevant departmental /functional personnel,
including but not limited to Operation Department, Finance
Depariment, and Human Resources Department.

6.  Grievance mechanisms

We have monitored the effectiveness of our ESG activities and
welcome feedback from our stakeholders to improve our ESG
initiatives from time to time.

7. Specific actions

We have put in place ISO (“International Organisation
for Standardisation”) certified systems and product quality
management system to ensure related ESG activities adheres to
internationally and industry recognized standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORTING BOUNDARIES AND PRINCIPLES

The Board, with the assistance of the ESG Executive group, has
identified key ESG risks of the Group based on the considerafion of
a series of factors such as business nature and scale, geographic
location, regulatory requirements, operating practices, and stakeholders’
expectations.

The key considerations that the Board has taken with regards to the
business operations of the Group include:

1. Our business is headquartered in Singapore with another two
factories in Malaysia;

2. Our operation involves production, packaging and sale of snack
food products;

3. Our production and logistic arrangement involve emissions and

use of natural resources;

4. Our operation is subject to the various food safety related
regulations; and

5. Our operation is subject fo the various environmental protection
related regulations.

In preparing this ESG Report, the ESG Executive Group has followed
the principles of materiality, quantitative and consistency under which
we believe it has applied a consistent and structured methodology for
defermining the materiality level, measuring in meaningful quantitative
units and reporting our ESG matters in a scope that is relevant and
significant to the Group.

Based on our assessment, the reporting boundary for this ESG Report
shall be set at the management, production, and logistic function of our
Singapore and Malaysia operations.
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The Board and ESG Executive Group have understood, concurred
with and applied the four core ESG principles in the course of sefting
ESG strategy, conducting our ESG initiatives, collecting ESG daita,
caleulating ESG KPI and preparing and issuing this ESG Report. The
four core ESG principles are materiality, consistency, balance and
quantitative.

£ | FEESGER B ~ H#E1TESCHE i - WS ESCEUE -
st HESCRA 3248 BB 13T DA K R B I T1) 38 ZRESGHR
EHBED EEFGRESCAT/NEETH [
BENMEAMNEZOESCRA AER M - — B
FERE(k-

Areas of Focus By Major Activities
BxEE FTEXERED

Management Production Logistic

B HE i

Singapore operation Higher Higher
AN TG &8 BS BE
Malaysia operation Higher Higher
HIRPG R EE Be Be

STAKEHOLDERS" ENGAGEMENT

In order to determine what issues are relevant and material to our
business with respect to sustainability, the Group is aware that the key
is to understand what issues that our stakeholders are concerned most.

We acknowledge that in today’s rapidly changing business climate,
affenfion o ESG issues is becoming crifical fo our longterm competitive
success. Stakeholders” engagement is an integral part of the Group's
business management as it helps the Group to assess potential risks
and business opportunities. Communicating with stakeholders and
understanding their views may befter align the Group's business
practices with stakeholder's needs and expectations and  properly
address different views.
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We have identified the following key stakeholders based on the
mutual dependency and influence. On a regular basis, the Group
communicates with key sfakeholders within and outside the Group

through various channels.

Key Stakeholders
FEROE

Government Departments &
Regulators

BT & B2

Investors & Shareholders

REERER

Employees
8T

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Communication Channels

Regulatory updates correspondence
EERTENER

Inferaction and visits

BEE KA

Compliance advisor

BRER

Government inspections

B AR

Corporate website and emails
N A H8uh K B E

Annual general meeting
REBFERE

Announcements and disclosures
NERHFE

Inferim/Annual Reports

S EERE

Regular management meetings
EHEEESH

Employee suggestion boxes
BIERM

Performance evaluation

KB FTE

Training

=l

BARBEERFEAEZER
& - AEBEHEBZRREBKEEARING
TERNEETEE
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Stakeholders” Main Concerns

BOEXERIEHE

legal compliance

B AR

Food safety

XS

Work safety

THERZ
Environmental protection
RIBRE

Climate change
RIRE(L

Performance and profitability
FEEEN

Scale and capacity

MR G

Market share

M5

Supply chain management
e e e

Reputation

B2

Career development
xR

Remuneration and benefits
=) DNER

Staff training

8T

Work health and safety
THEEREZ S
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Key Stakeholders Communication Channels

FEFHOE BERE

Customers Site visits

TFE B FE
Inferim/Annual Reports
RH S FE RS
Customer hotline
Sales Representative visit
HERKH
After-sales customer service

EREFPIRH

Suppliers & subconsultants  Meeting and correspondence
HEBR D BERE GREAE

Onrsite visits

B E 5

Product quality inspection

EmE SRR

Regular performance assessment

EHRBE

Media, community and Community events
the public HREE
HE - HERAR Employee voluntary activities
BI&RTES
Community welfare subsidies

A [ 48 R B

The Board and ESG Executive Group acknowledge that the
stakeholders’ engagement is an important step to obtain different
views of sustainability development and fo form a basis for us fo
provide feedback. Accordingly, on top of our regular engagements,
we have formulated plans to strengthen our stakeholders’ engagement
process, including the intfended use of an ESG survey and interview
program, from which the information and feedback to be collected
and exchanged, will further enable us to take appropriate actions and
enhance our ESG inifiatives and reporting.
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Product quality
EmEE

Food safety
BEmEE

Product pricing
EmEE

Image and reputation
FRERE
Environmental protection
REGR#E

Climate change

TIRZ

Material pricing
MEEE

Stability and sustainability
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Food safety

BEmTE

Product quality

EmEE

Climate change

TIRZ

Community service
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Environmental protfection
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In the preparation of this ESG Report, our ESG Executive Group gathers
imporfant facts and information through confinuous communications,
including ESG surveys with our stakeholders, particularly those in
relation to our operating practices, employment practices, and
environmental performance/impact. The ESG Executive Group has
further analysed those facts and information, collated them with industry
reference and evaluated them against materiality, quantitative measures,
balance and consistency of this ESG Report. The ESG Executfive
Croup has considered every provision of the ESG Reporting Guide
and identified the 15 most relevant ESG issues for this ESG Report as
presented below.

e Environmental protection IRIZ{RE
* Waste management BEZE Y E I8

Environmental BiE

RIRBCHEBNTE

e Climate change impact on business 5,

RIE HEREGRE

EEMME
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Product quality EmE £
Sustainable income AJ#FEW A
Care for employee BE&T

Labour compliance % T & #8
Staff competency B THED
Green supply chain 4% €5 it fE 8
Stable supply #BEHFE
Operational efficiency & E =

°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
e Care for society B@1EttE

Staff occupational health and safety E THIEERER T2

® Anti-corruption &S5

Governance &8

e Diversity and equality Z Tt RFE

The Board has reviewed and approved the assessment of the ESG
Executive Group and has infegrated the concerned ESG issues into
the overall risk management framework and incorporated into regular
intfernal review or infernal audit plan on a rotation basis.
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WE AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group is dedicated to protecting the environment and
fargefing af being a good environmental steward. In respect of
environmental aspect, we have established three objectives:

1. Full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
relating fo environmental protection;

2. Reduce the impact of business on the environment; and

3. Reduce the use of natural resources.

Overall compliance standing

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
applicable laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including, but not limited
fo the following:

1. The Environmental Protection and Management Act

(Chapter 94A of Singapore);
2. Environmental Public Health Act (EPHA| of Singapore;

3. Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009
(Malaysia); and

4. Environmental Quality (Sewage) Regulations 2009.

We have not been subjected to any material claims or penalties
in relation to environmental protection. The KPI in respect of
emissions and use of resources are presented in the secfion
headed “Environmental Key Performance Indicators”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Emission and conservation measures

The greenhouse gas [GHG') emissions of our Group are mainly
generated from liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") used in our
production and inventory process and the diesel consumed in the
logistic operation in Singapore and Malaysia. Our indirect GHG
emissions are mainly generated from the purchased electricity in
our Singapore and Malaysia operations.

We are dedicated in reducing the emission generated by our
Group and, accordingly, have esfablished relevant policies and
initiatives, including:

1. Promoting the use of proper diesel for our truck team;

2. Sending our fruck team for periodic inspection and repair
for any emission issues;

3. Encouraging our driver to turn off the trucks af prolong
stoppage; and

4.  Considering and planning the use of more environmentally
friendly truck models af next replacement.

Water consumption and waste management

The major water consumption of the Group is mainly for the
production processes in Singapore and Malaysia. A number of
ESG initiatives have been taken by us, including:

1. We have established confrols and procedures fo ensure our
water usage is within the reasonable range necessary for
our productions fo avoid overuse;

2. We maintain a wastewater treatment plant at our
production facility in Johor, Malaysia where liquid waste is
treated before it is discharged; and

3. We have arranged the sludge used for our wastewater
freatment plant to be processed to exiract heavy metals
and recycled for industrial use, or otherwise, disposed to a
licensed processor under the Ministry of Energy, Science,
Technology and Environment and Climate Change of
Malaysia for further processing, such as turning into fertiliser
or other form of safe or non-harmful disposable waste.
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The Board believes our practice and effort fulfils the standards
sef out in the Environmental Protection and Management Act
(Chapter 94A of Singapore), Environmental Quality (Industrial
Effluent) Regulations 2009 (Malaysia) and Environmental Quality
(Sewage) Regulations 2009.

Other water consumption is related to office water consumption,
which is considered minimal in quantity. We have encouraged all
employees to develop the habit of conserving water consciously.
The domestic sewage is discharged info the urban sewage pipe
network.

Non-hazardous waste management

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group's business
activities are carfon and plastic. Such waste is usually collected
and partially recycled. For damaged or contaminated carton and
plastic that cannot be recycled, they are collected and processed
by general wasfe service providers. Since 2021, we have
started maintaining the record of domestic waste disposal.

Use of Resources

The Group is fully aware of the high values of natural resources
and committed fo reducing the wasfe of resources in its daily
operation. Our operation protocol has set out several principles
of saving resources in a bid fo encourage employees to use the
natural resources in an effective way.

However, we are not able to formulate any sustainable
development plan to reduce the usage of natural resources,
especially those non-renewable energy such as diesel, PG,
paper cartons, electricity and water as all these resources are
consumed in tandem with production and sales demand of
finished goods.

The Group is open and eager to explore any efficiency
improvement measure and system to enhance our sustainability
development.
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Water

We often explore effective ways of conserving water in each
segment of our operations such as fixing dripping faps and
leakage immediately, using brooms and mops frequently o clean
the floor in all our working and production premises, advocating
the importance of saving water among employees through
posters and protocols.

In 2021, the Group did not face any issues in sourcing suitable
water, which is supplied by the government.

Packaging material

We adopt standardised packaging materials for finished
products. It is widely acknowledged that the snack packaging
is one of the environmental concerns. To better control the
consumption of packaging materials, we have specific
procurement procedure that allow us to order and use packaging
materials optimally to avoid over-ordering and wastage.

Our Group will continue to look for ways fo reduce emissions
and natural resource impact from our operations. VWe aim to
continually strive to understand and assess our impact and
contributions to all environmental, social and governance issues.

Environmental and natural resources

We are active in promoting environmental awareness among
our employees through encouraging them of the four principles of
"recycle”, "reuse”, “conserve water” and “conserve energy”.

We are dedicated to promote the principles by encouraging our
employees to adopt the following “green” actions, among other
environmental measures mentioned above.

1. Minimise paper usage;

2. Reusing or recycling used paper;

3. Tuming off lights affer office hours and holidays; and

4. Usage of lightemitting diode (LED] lighting in efforts to
reduce energy consumption.
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BARERREHLESERNE WA
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Our Environmental Targets

The Company considers that it has reached an opfimal point
in relation fo emission confrol and use of resources, taking
consideration of our new expansion. The Company sefs a target
of maintaining its emission control and use of resources by
infensity or by revenue and will revisit such target from time to
fime.

BEMNRERER

RETAMOMEBEER ARARSEE
BEpE S R ERER S B ERREKRF -
RRRRE N B IR MR E AR P RE Sl
RERER (BB ERWaETE) WS
EHERAHER-

Environmental Key Performance Indicators BRERBARER
Emission Type Indicator FY2021 FY2020
235 &kl BE —EC--MF —T_THF
Greenhouse gas' Direct emissions — Scope 12 [fonnes CO?) 3,107 3,415
BERE B —EE (M =abik)
Indirect emissions — — Scope 2* [fonnes CO?) 777 1,398
MEER—BE2(E_a i)
Indirect emissions — — Scope 3° (tonnes CO? 296 o9
MEER—BE3 (E_abix)
Exhaust gas' Sulphur Dioxide (SO} - kg 2 2
BER —&81EHR(SO)—F =
Nitrogen Oxides (NO ) - kg 1,667 2,146
BENLDINO)— T
Particulate Matter (PM|] — kg 141 182
FRYPM) —F 5=
FY2021
Major resource consumed Unit FY2021 FY2020 Intensity?
—EBC--BEF
HENETEER B —E--MEF —E_THF 2
Water — processing tonnes 109,729 109,798 1,681
K—pT W&
Electricity — processing kWh 1,903,622 1,995,246 29,165
EN-MT TREF
Diesel litre 1,110,250 1,231,828 17,010
5¢om NF
Fuel litre 57,598 57,598 882
PR T
Packaging materials — carton and fonnes 353 1,219 5
paper
BEM B — A8 kAR Mg
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Notes to above table:

1

6

The calculation of emission is referenced to Guidelines to Account
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings in Hong Kong by Environmental Profection Department
and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(2010 Edition), 1ISO14064 by international standard organization;
The ESG Reporting Guide, and Practical Guide on Carbon Audit
And Management.

Intensity of major resource consumed for every S$$1.0 million of
revenue for FY2021.

Maijor source of Scope 1 emission came from usage of diesel.

Maijor source of Scope 2 emission came from usage of purchased
electricity.

Maijor source of Scope 3 emission came from processing fresh
water and sewage by government departments.

QOur operation does not generate hazardous waste.

DEALING WITH CLIMATE CHANGE IMPACT

In assessing the climate change impact on the Group, the

Company follows recommendations and approach set out by The

Task Force of Climaterelated Financial Disclosure (“TCFD”).

The ESG Executive Group measures the climate change impact

by the following two risk categories:

Transition Risk

e Referring to a situation where the fransitioning to a lower
carbon economy may entail extensive policy, legal,
technology, and market changes to address mitigation and
adaptation requirements related to climate change.

Physical Risk

(]

Referring to direct damage to assets and indirect impact
from supply chain disruption that may have financial
implications for the Group. Physical risk can be event
driven (as “Acute Events risk”) or gradually shifted over in a
period of time (as “Chronic Shift risk”).

RIE HEREGRE

ERRE:

1 AEERERE2ZEFTBRIITHRERF
REREZERRETIREN (BEREY
FUR EREIER BB REMIRE
SI(ZE—FFR) ) -BERSEAEN
ISO14064 - ESCGH & 15 5| A MR BT R E

BEMEE-
2 —E--WES10BEBEMMEITREHE
BNIBZEREE-

3 BENHROEIERRAEMRSH-

4 BEZFHHNEBRRAEMAEENEN-

5 ERESHEARE = B AHRR BB EB T BRI %
KR )FK e

6 ERMHEETEELERTEED-

EHREZCNEE

RABREZELEASENZER K
AAEBREAEMEEEHETIEE
([TCFD |) f i By Ry sk e 03 0% ©

2

ESCHIT/ AT MERBRERN & E
RIRECNRE:

BRERE

o HEAEMKEEE A EESEZHNIK
RORR BRMMEWISEE  ARE
RiIRZCEBERMERINEREK -

HRERAR
o IERIREHAKREELAVMBEENEE

ERBEEMMERETHOREYE -
ERRRATAFHSIE(ERSIRE
EHER]D IR -BRERAZGES
(BAMeuEgRR]) -
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The ESG Executive Group has also considered: ESCGHTT/NETRE BIA TR :
1. Country risk 1. ENEL S
e The overall level of climate change impact in e  HIMEKERARRIERE T
Singapore and Malaysia ErERKF
2. Industry Trend 2. 1IEB®
e The frends and practice of the food industry in e HMEERBERALERMITEN
Singapore and Malaysia B & Ed
3. Group Challenge 3. AEEmHRADE
®  The particular challenges encountered by the Group s ZXEEBEBIMABKEMT
as graphically presented below AR

The ESG Executive Group has also evaluated the possibilities of the four
main impacts led by climate change, namely:

ESC 1T/ MR EFHERIFE L ERMIET BB At - B :

1 Increased wildfires
ik n

2 Declining water supplies
HAED

3 Reduced agricultural yields
BEESRD

4 Health impacts
RELE
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The ESG Executive Group has considered all relevant risks in relation to  ESGEAIT/MEE EEHBSRE L EEBMATE
climate changes impact and believes that the Company is more likely — HHBARE R - W3R A A AR AT REEEG A T @S o
fo be subject to the risks presented below.

Country Risk BEIREE

+ Increasing use of electric cars and  + Crop yield drop in Malaysia due o No direct physical risk at large for
tightened fuel controls rising femperature Singapore and Malaysia
+ BESEEREM - MR N + AR LT B R BREDMS
ERAZRENEETZ EEEEREAR

Industry Trend 17385

- Disruptive technology has not - No industry-specific regulation yet - Not easy to have an alternative market
emerged yet M mAI U TR A _for food industry
- ok R S N ’ ARTRBRERDETES

Group's Challenge 7~ BIH i HI Bk

Intensive concentration of suppliers in Malaysia Rising customers’ awareness of environmental impact

HEESESTESRAR of food industry
EFHRMITENRELEEREE

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 3% 81



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

Application to the Group’s Operations
Climate Change Impact (Singapore and Malaysia)
REBLEXENARZEERE BARAKEEER (FNKERFRAE)

Risk Considerations over

Transition risk

R

Physical risk
BERER

Risk level assessment

[ B ok S R A

Political and legal risk
BUs MOAR AR
Market risk

M5 E R

Reputation risk
BE[E
Technology risk

s EN

Acute Events risk
ZMEMFRR
Chronic shift risk
18 MRS [ b

Political and legal risk
Boa Mos R
Market risk

M5 &R

Reputation risk
BEAR
Technology risk
Pt 2 B

Acute risk
SMEHER

Chronic shift risk
12 R b
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Both

mEIS A

Both

MEHE

Singapore

s

Malaysia's operation

BRODEBLE

Malaysia's operation
BIRFEEMERG 2 E
Both

mEBH

Medium to High
EE5
Llow to Medium, no trend of mitigation/replacement of market
BEFE BERBY BRTS
High
=
Llow to Medium, no trend of disruptive fechnology
for food industry
BEPE RRTEEHREBERN
Low to Medium, no direct threat from sea level rise,
decreased water supplies, wildfire etc.
BERE BREEFE LT HKRDRIWVAENEEZRE
Medium to High

hEES



The Company is considered to be subjected to the following climate
change impacts to which the Company has developed relevant action
plans to manage them as presented in the table below. The Company
will continue its study on climate change impacts, commitied fo on-

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

going monitoring of relevant risks and will update our climate change

impact from time fo fime.

Relevant Climate
Change Risk
HERERESLCAR

Political and legal risk

Political and legal risk

BUAREERER

Reputation risk

BERR

Chronic Shift risk

erEgEk

Driving Forces

B& & N

Singapore requires vehicles to meet Euro VI
emission standards.

AN B SREE AT & BUNPERUR £

Fuel cost may rise or may be subject fo direct
or indirect environmental fax, which may drive
up our fransportation costs.

KREL AR BE LT s AT BE AN B K ]
BIRGN MEr R R ERRA -

Our customers have higher expectation that we
shall operate an “greener” and environmentally
friendly business.

BANEPHEMIZE ] RRERKLENH

2R

Increased CO? will reduce food production,
including crop vyields such as rice, wheat and
maize worldwide.
—EBENSEROERBRER B
K NERERERIEYNES

RIE HEREGRE

ARABERBIZIATRIRELCEE A2FE
HERRTTE R BIARMZERE W TRAR-
ARAGEBTRREZLEE BIFEER
HRARK Y TR EHARRKRE R ENER -

The Group’s Action
AEBENEHER

We have a plan to use Euro VI compliant
vehicle for its logistic activities.

BT EIEANT AN RENERETY
A

We shall be able fo shift a portion of such
additional costs as it is a general situation
applied fo all food industry's participants.
HREEMERMITESBENEHNE
U AR ER — 280 L R ER MR AN o

We are acfive in managing our supplier and
dedicated in engaging environmentally friendly
suppliers.

HPEREEMAER  YROTBRENM
&R o

We will consider putting Environmental
Management System in place, such as ISO
14001.

B ERERRREERS W
ISO14001 °

We have a diversifying supply chain
management plan to diversify our supply chain
within Malaysia and around other regions.
BFIREZ TR R EIEF 8 NER
BAPIE RS 2R FA an 3 A e E At 3t [ ) (B 58
Ziee

We will continue to monitor the crop vyield
situations worldwide and form a holisfic view
of food production rate.

B EEEEERREMERIBRL AT
RERLEERNEREBER-

We will continue to monitor the financial and
operational performance of our suppliers.

BPSREEREERNM R EERR -
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OUR SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Food material supply is critical fo our business and operations.

It is our policy to ensure we conduct business with legitimate
suppliers who maintain good social and compliance standards.
Accordingly, we have adopted and maintained stringent
procedures for the selection and assessment of our suppliers in
order fo manage the potential environmental and social risks that
might arise in the course of business.

In the Reporting Period, our major materials mainly come from
Singapore and Malaysia, collectively known as our critical

HEEREE

RYMRAHEENEMANEE R EEER
EE-

BAOBERERARKMMEE MRS R 1t
g hEHRFEN .:ifﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ?ﬂ@%ﬂ‘& e FE
- AP 2 AR A AR IF BR A HORR e SR kB
G R EE ARy = JJA%T—I%Eiﬂ‘%WM
BREFEANRENMLCSRARETERE-

RBERE RPN EEHMHEZREFM
BERERAD (RRARMMEEHER) -

suppliers.
2021
Locations of our critical suppliers BMWTEHERRTHE T4
Singapore N3 13
Malaysia HRE T 235
Others (USA, China, India, Australia, Vietnam, EABIZR (B A B~ BN M - fE
Germany and Thailand) R R ZRE) 19
Total HEt 267

Supplier selection and continuous assessment

We conduct business with approved suppliers only after they
have passed our initial assessment. To be admitted as our
approved supplier, one must fulfill a number of social and
compliance conditions, including but not limited fo:

1. satisfactory product quality by conducting sample material
evaluation:

2. compliance with food safety regulatory matters; and

3. relevant quality and food safety management system and
certifications.
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Product quality ZEmmE

Inspect and examine samples provided by suppliers by laboratory testing for microbiological and chemical, transportation
and environmental test and accelerated shelf life study.

BAEREMIHHERRHNERETER  SFMEY - L2 - ERRREWUUARREH MR

Food safety compliance BmEZZE#H

Request for and research on efforts adopted by the suppliers on their food safety, production and delivery procedures
and assess if their quality and food safety management system are reliable and sufficient.

BERVYHAEEBERRRE - LENERRZFAHNS) - FEEEENRRZ2EERARETEIENTRN -

Annual assessment FE G

Quality control department will perform an assessment on suppliers based on their product quality, ontime delivery, response
quality and price. The result of the assessment will then be discussed with executive Directors.

MBS REERMAE - EEINER - EHEEL REREERRETIE - BRITESKYETEERETHR

BT RHE TR 35 T - A EBER R
SRR E - WRA —EEEN @ EEH
B R EERNEMmENERENF
EITEEFE LB AR IR B
BHERNAEREENRRLE2REN
B ETMEAEEESCRITHNER 2 —-

Our assessment is also conducted on a confinuous basis. We
perform inspections on incoming materials on a fransaction
basis, and we also have a designated quality control team to
perform an annual assessment of our suppliers over their product
quality and responsiveness etc. These assessments focilitate us
fo understand and monitor the suppliers’ compliance readiness
against the standard of product quality and food safety which is
one of our ESG concems.

In the event when our suppliers are found or potentially perceived
fo have significant deficiencies in relation to product quality and
safety, we would not hesitate in taking appropriate corrective
actions, including termination of services.

Considerations to Environmentally Friendly Products

Using environmentally friendly products or systems that produce
the products is one of the key considerations we adopt in the
selection of our critical suppliers. Nevertheless, it is our policy that
we do not engage with suppliers which constantly or seriously in
breach of related ESG rules and regulations.

HERRMOKER (KR BEATRE)HEE
mEENRETEFEERRE  HFHL
BIEREGEE A Ef 1k - R IR -

BRREmMATHENZE

ERRRERHEMEERS  SHMAER
TEHERKERNEIERNRZ —AMm-
HFOBRR TS RBF BN REERIAMH
ESGHAIRER LR & 1F
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D. COMMITMENT TO PRODUCT QUALITY D.

We are committed to produce high quality snacks which are safe
and wholesome. Due fo the nature of business, our operation
and products are subjected to high product responsibilities,
particularly over food safety and advertising and labeling. On
top of our standard hygiene and safety measure, we manage
our food safety concemn through quality control, packaging and
product recall management.

Quality Control Management

In respect of food safety, we have been accredited with
various infernational quality management certifications for our
production facilities, including but not limited to Hazard Analysis
and Ciritical Control Points ("HACCP") and various 1SO 9001,
ISO 22000 and Food Safety System Certification (“FSSC”)
22000 certificates. All responsible personnel in our operations
department are required fo attend refresher fraining according

fo our HACCP Quality Management system and requirement on
FSSC 22000.

We have implemented quality control throughout our production
process from raw materials to product delivery to ensure our food
safety standards are met. The key quality control measures that
we have taken include, but not limited to:

Materials

e Supplier selection and assessment

. Inspection before accepting goods receipt

e Sample examination on quality

Inventory

e Accepfed materials are labelled and stored accordingly

*  Materials are stacked and stored under firstinirst-out
method

e Temperature of the storage facility is closely monitored
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Production

e Quality sample festing and inspection on semifinished
products are systematically performed during the production
process

e laser sorters are deployed to automatically defect and eject
iregular items based on color, shape and size

Delivery
e All finished products are subject to a final comprehensive

fest prior fo loading for delivery

e Ensure delivery vehicles or containers are free from any
substances that may faint the packaged products.

Packaging management
Our packaging material must also meet the following four criteria

fo ensure the quality of finished products:

1. Barrier Profection 2. Permeability
R ERE BEM BHE

* Moisture barrier « Moisture barrier

3 . Sealing Strength

» Mechanical strength of the

RIE HEREGRE

£E

s RAEBEDRGMUMETEERMAE
B RinE

e KRABXDEH REHAE Wik
UNEEL S PSSl =N

XA
* FAKMEREXNZAETRRN
2ERE

© BREKERATRTAIEEATE
&SRERERNONE
aEEe

RERKEOEE  BPINBRMBIER
AT HIARRAE -

, Coefficient of Friction (COF)
B R R (COF)

« Estimation on the ratio of COF

i) )= seal to ensure no leakage while in motion
« Oxygen barrier « Oxygen barrier and packaging integrity E BB ERRRLLE
maE BB BHOEMEE  BREBFR
. . BETEM
« Ultra violet transmittance
RINBHE
Product recall management EmARERE

We have also established relevant product recall procedures that
enable us to respond to recall incidents in a timely and orderly
manner by our designated recall coordinator. Our key measures
include informing relevant parties such as our customers and
general public on a timely basis, tracing the affected products
through our labelling system, inspecting the affected products and
destroying and disposing them by appropriate means.

BATCHERENERBLRF BFA
B E= R EEMN G O HEE B s kA Fit
ELER BN T EEREE LB
FEARERBL BBRRMANTEHRR
EMTTENER HIXFENERET
BE - WERBABNIDEHEETHR NG

Eo
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Advertising and labelling

We are constantly engaged in markefing and branding of our
products through various advertising platforms including  in-store
displays, social media, outdoor sampling and events sponsorship.
It is our policy to advertise our products and brands in a fair
manner and without mis-leading information.

As for our labelling activities, we require our customers fo provide
us with all necessary information pertaining to packaging and
labelling with respect to local requirements within the sfipulated
territory.

Privacy protection

We are responsible for protecting our customers’ privacy in the
collection, processing and use of their personal data. We are
in compliance with the applicable data protection regulations
and we ensure appropriate technical measures are in place to
protect personal data from any unauthorized use or access. We
also ensure that customers’ personal data is sfored securely and
processed only for the purpose for which it has been collected.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to product liabilities,
advertising and labelling and privacy matters. For the Reporting
Period, we have not been subjected to any material product
recall, liabilities claim or failed regulatory inspection in relation to
our product quality.
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COMMITMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES

We strive to provide our employees with a harmonious and

safe working environment, and development platform. As

of 31 December 2021, we have employed a total of 271

employees (2020: 270] in our operations.

Full-Time (By Gender)
2R (RHERE D)

Male
B
Female
i
Total
et

Full-Time (By age group)
2R (RFRARE D)

Over 50
S50mR A £
30-49
30E495%
Under 30
303 A T
Total

BEt

Full-Time (By geographical areas)

2 (RHE8 D)

Singapore
A
Malaysia
SR P T8
Total

mEt

As of 31 Dec, 2021
R-ZE-—%
+t=A=t—-8
164

107

271

As of 31 Dec, 2021
R=F=—%
+=ZA=+—8H

33

271

As of 31 Dec, 2021
R=-Z=—#%f
+=A=t+—8H
/2

109

271

RIE HEREGRE

WE T A

BB AEERHENEZEL 2N ITIERE
FERFTE W _ZT-_—F+-A=+—
B BMONEBLEESHER2/1REE (=

T -FF2708) °

% to total (2021)

% to total (2020)

HREES L EREED
(ZF=—%) (ZFZ2F)
61% 67%
39% 33%
100% 100%

% to total (2021)

% to total (2020)

ERBE DL E S A=
(Z%=—-%) (Z2=%H)
12% 18%

50% 49%

38% 33%

100% 100%

% to total (2021)

% to total (2020)

EemE AL ERBEA L
(—e=—%) (—E=2F)
27% 24%
7 3% 76%
100% 100%
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Over the Reporting Period, the Company has 4 parttime and RWEE AR X BAEFRB RGN T
temporary works in fofal {2020: 14). They are subject to the (ZZEZFTF:14%) - FE ﬁ*ﬁﬂ K]
same benefits and labour rights. The Company considers that MEBTHEMN KRARRABREHAER
their financial and operofiono| impacts are immaterial to the MBEREEZEEM -

Group.

By category Turnover rate: Management assessment and actions

®rER MK = EEENERTE

Female: 22% Considered as a healthy tumover

ik BRERNREE

Male: 35% Considered as a healthy turnover

St BREFENRAE

Under 30 44% Considered stable

0BT BRBE

Between 30-49 22% The Board considered this turnover rate is within the normal norm of

the industry and the Company's risk appetite while it will continue
fo pay additional attention fo our younger staff's needs and
expectations.

30E495% EEeRR8 WRAERENTEEFRERKRRRNERRLT
HEAN FARAKEERIFESTNTRRBE-

Over 50 15% Considered stable

503% A £ RRBE

Singapore 11% Considered stable

Frong HAEEE

Malaysia 36% Considered in line with occupational norm

Bk TR RAMERELREZE

The overall employee turnover rate of fulltime staff in the E/\iﬁiﬂﬂlﬂq ZREIMNBEREREERAE
Reporting Period is 30% (2020: 18%), with further breakdowns 30% (ZE=FF : 18%) & N X 2570
by different categories as presented below. The ESG Executive EAB R — S Mo o ESGHTT/NMEE B R A
Group has made an assessment and come up with relevant BV Ok AR R I 4R AR RA RO 1T B ET &I

action plan in relafion to our furnover rate.
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Employment and remuneration

We have a comprehensive Human Resources Management
System and Procedure fo determine the optimal size of staff
force that fits our business operation. Our Human Resource
Department manages our hiring process, which is considered
fair and transparent. We generally enter info a standard form
of employment confract with our employees, which contain
confidentiality clauses and standard covenants.

We endeavor to provide competitive remuneration package and
various benefits to affract and refain falents. Our employees are
remunerated according tfo their job scope, responsibilities, and
performance and entifled to discretionary performance bonus.
We also offer other form of employee benefits such as medical
insurance coverage and different kinds of compensated leave
for matters of marriage, maternity, paternity, childcare and
compassionate events.

Equal opportunity

We are committed to building and maintaining a fair workplace
and valuing equal opportunity and diversity, throughout all stages
of emp|oymem, inc|uding in the remuneration, recruitment, training

and promotion of staff.

Our employees will not be treated in less favorable terms or
discriminated against on grounds of gender, sexual orientation,
disobihfy, marital status, moferio\ify, race, re|igion, age,
nafionality or ethnic origin. Our employees are hired, appointed,
promoted and remunerated on a fair scale and in accordance
fo objective measures such as their qualifications, experiences,
hardships, competencies and contributions.

Labour standards

We fully adopt and adhere to the human rights framework
that creafes an environment where human rights issues can be
openly discussed. We are committed fo do the right thing and
we encourage our workers fo engage in candid and respectful
dialogue fo explore feasible solutions.
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Our foreign workers in Singapore and Malaysia are typically
employed on a two-year or three-year basis respectively,
depending on the period of their work permits, and subject to
renewal based on their performance, and are remunerated fairly
according to their work skills and standard of the laws. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, all our foreign workers have
obtained valid work permits. Our Human Resources Department
is responsible for monitoring the validity of work permits of our
foreign employees.

Our Group prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour.
Our recruitment process requires us to inspect the identity
documents and conduct interviews with the applicants. We strictly
comply with the Prevention of Human Trafficking Act 2014 and
Anti-Trafficking in Persons and Anti-Smuggling of Migrants Act
2007.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relevant
to the Labour Standards such as relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare, including, but not limited fo:

1. The Employment Act [Chapter 91 of Singapore;

2. The Employment of Foreign Manpower Act (Chapter 1A
of Singaporel;

3. The Cenfral Provident Fund Act [Chapter 36 of Singapore);

4. The Employment of Children and Young Persons Regulations
(Singapore);

5. The Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Singapore;

6. Cenfral Provident Fund Act (Chapter 36 of Singapore);

7. The Employment Act 1955 (Malaysial;

Q2 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2021
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8. The Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 (Malaysia); and

Q. The Employment (Restriction] Act 1968 (Malaysia).

COMMITMENT TO ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

Anti-corruption

It is our policy to maintain o reputation for honesty, fairness,
respect, responsibility, infegrity and trust. We maintain a strict
anticorruption policy, including but not limited to the following
key codes.

1. We prohibit all forms of bribes, kickbacks or other similar
remuneration;

2. Employees are not allowed to offer or accept gifts and
benefits in the course of their employment; and

3. Conlflict of interest must be avoided or reported to our
directors on a timely and complete basis.

For the Reporting Period, we did not encounter any anti-corruption
confirmed cases, incidents, reporting, enforcements and/or legal
proceedings against our Group, Direcfors and employees.

Anti-money laundering

From anti-money laundering perspective, it is our policy not
fo accept any cash receipt or payment, or any fransfers from
unknown or suspicious third parties, or transfers without legitimate
business relation and purpose.

Whistleblowing policy

We encourage our stakeholders, including our employees,
customers and suppliers to report any suspicious or confirmed
cases relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

In our daily operation, our employees are encouraged fo report
fo their department head or, in a more independent manner, to
our Human Resources Department.

We have also established a whistleblowing policy that allows
our employees and other stakeholders 1o inform us of any kinds
of fraud, misconduct and/or noncompliance with our internal
policy, or laws and regulations.

F.

RIE HEREGRE

8. (—AN—FREREEZX) (FX
PaEE) K&

9. (—ARNERE(RH)E) (FXK
) e

BREBREE AR
RES
RAEMAHRRIENE AT BB HE-

RERAEENBE RAFTEENRE
BE BRETRNATERSTA-

1. RABELE—ORANBER QM E
i FE LU B -

2. BIGITEBEPIBRBAREIE
MM bf R K

3. WMARRMDERIRETEMAE
R

REBEHRE ML BERNEMHHAE
B ExMEEMNDHERRESERME -
W REBUERSORRFR

FORRENE  RANBRR TR EMR
U SRIR B AR A A] 5E S = 77 M AR =X
BREEGHERENZER-

HHEBE

BPEEENE (BEERMANEBT -EFM
HERE) MK MREEMEBR R K
REMERE BB A R REERD -

EHEEED BMASBRERNEMLHATE
HE BEMADEBREFRE

TAIINE HIE BB - FEE REMFD
FHA A AR BEE  TE1TRR 3
THERMHOABERRIEEZERNTR
B AT AP ©

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 % 93



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

Goodwill whistleblowers can file their report to us at email:
whistleblow@taisun.com.sg. Our executive director shall first
review and clear the cases, keep the records, gather further
information and escalate to the Board or Audit Committee or
senior management depending on the independence, complexity
and significance of the matters.

Our whistleblowing policy has a protection clause by which we
prohibit all kinds of harassment and discrimination of goodwill
whistleblowers on the grounds of their goodwill whistleblowing.

Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages and supports our directors and staff to
receive infernal and external fraining to promote operafional

compliance and sustainable development.

Our new employees are required to participate in orienfafion
fraining before the start of their work and undergo on-the-job
fraining. Generally, the training areas are related fo their work
scope and duties of their respective department. The typical
fraining topics involve personal hygiene, food hygiene and
safety, and employee illness and communicable disease. In
addition, our employees’ training needs are identified through
yearly staff performance appraisal, technological changes or any
major changes infroduced fo the management system, equipment
or changes in our product offering.

All our directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have aftended tfraining to reinforce their knowledge
and skills as a director, and knowledge on the latest development
regarding the Llisting Rules, other applicable statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate them
fo discharge their responsibilities.

In the Reporting Period, our employee received 249 hours of
fraining and mainly focusing on production related issues. The
average fraining hours was 0.92.
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Anti-Corruption Training

The Company has rolled out a rotation plan of anticorruption
frainings in the Reporting Period. As of the date of this ESG
Report, we infend to provide anfi-corruption frainings, through
professional organisation, to our Direcfors and Management first.
We will also extend such training fo our staff on a 5-year rotation
plan targeting to aftain a 100% training coverage in 5 years.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Our employees’ safety and health is one of our main concems,
and we emphasize on matters related to work safety and health.

We have implemented procedures and guidelines in relation fo (i)
personal hygiene; (ii] work instructions in handling our machines
and safety gadgets required such as safety shoes and hand
gloves; and [iii) handling of employees illness and communicable
disease. VWe also carry out regular maintenance on our machines
and equipment fo ensure that they are thoroughly fested and safe
for use. We also maintain work injury compensation policies,
group personal accident and foreign worker medical insurance
for our workers.

The Company has developed and implemented systems for
dedling with emergencies. All employees are also encouraged
fo report all accidents, no matter how minor they may seem, fo
prevent future recurrence and proper medical treatment if needed.
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In the past 3 years, the Group has not encountered any work-
related fatalities, which is defined with reference to circumstances
in which the Group, as an employer, is liable for compensation
under relevant employmentrelated laws in Singapore, Malaysia
and/or Hong Kong. In the Reporting Period, there was one
accident that a staff fall sustained 4th rib fracture. There were no
fine or legal case related to the case.

No of work-related fatalities

AIEEEMETHAR

leading fo injuries or illness or disabilities
BYRE IR IR

leading to death

BENT

Resulting loss of working days

BRUBRIIERH

Our Efforts and Measures against Covid-19

In relation to the Covid-19, our Company and operations have
fulfilled all the lockdown and quarantine requirement imposed.
In addition, we have also established necessary precaution
measures, including regularly sanitising our workplace premises,
allowing flexible working arrangements, minimizing socializing,
requiring compulsory mask-wearing and sefting up a reporting
mechanism overseen by our ESG Executive Group fo timely
report suspected or confirmed infection cases of our employees
and their associates.

Certain work safety & health measure are enhanced, some
protocol highlighted below:

e Regular Nasal Swab test done (Rapid Antigen Test] prior fo
work on weekly basis.

e Schedule some staff to work from home if possible.

®  When suspected positive cases noted in the workplace, the
affected team will quarantine at home until case resolved.
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e Conduct body temperature and symptomatic screening fo
all personnel at all main entrance of workplaces.

e Surgical masks are provided to staff, and it is compulsory
to work in all workplaces.

e Workplace cleaning is step up especially at contact points.

A Appropriate protection according fo work nature are
provided fo all sfaff.

The Board had developed the contingency and business
continuity plan for the operations during the period of pandemic
outbreak, including:

. Proactive communicate with sfakeholders [e.g. cusfomers,
suppliers, confractors, employees) to prevent interrupted
supply or delivery.

e Crosstrain employees to perform essential funcfions so the
workplace can operate during the absenteeism of other
employees.

e  FEducate and train employees on infection prevention and
confrol, such as fravel declaration, hygiene management,
physical distancing, and self-quarantine and reporting
requirement

e Identily alternative suppliers
e Prioritise customers’ orders
e Suspend some of the non-essential operations temporarily

The Board will keep closely monitoring the development of
Covid-19 outbreak.
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Overall Compliance Standing

During the Reporting Period, we have been in compliance with
the laws and regulations in Singapore and Malaysia relating
fo occupational health and safety, including, but not limited to

Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994.

We did nof encounter any incidents and accidents that led fo
serious work injury or fafalities, and we did not receive any
material staff claims in relation to work safety and health.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group is committed to giving back to the community
and mainfains close communication and interaction with the
community fo contribute fo community development.

For the Reporting Period, we actively confribute and support the
community by donating to local charitable organisations.

The Group has made charitable donations of approximately
S$100,000 in 2021 {2020: approximately $$162,000).
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE GENERAL DISCLOSURE
(BE HEREABREES) —REE

SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HERERBEES]) —REE

A. Environment
A BRiE

AT Emission

ATEER YD

KPI'AT.1
B AA IR IRAL

KPI'AT.2
BAER A BUEIRAL 2

KPI'A1.3
B MIERA.3

Information on:
BRERMAERBEIEN /K& A HE
BCBEREEEEYNEATN:

[a)  the policies; and

128 SN

(b)  complionce with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating fo air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BITHETARBEAZENHEBER
KO E Y

The types of emissions and respective emissions
dafa.
e R IR S AR R B -

Direct (Scope 1] and energy indirect (Scope

2) greenhouse gas emissions (in fonnes) and,
where appropriate, infensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

B (BE) REREZE (BE2)RERE
HepE (CAEET ) &k (2@ ) =& (2IA
BEEEN FERBAHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
MELAEEREEYMRAE (AEE) R (1
BR)ZE(MASEEEMN BEKME
B

Reference Section/Remark

RIE HEREGRE

Comply or Explain

We and the environment Complied
A EIRIE &7
Environmental Key Complied
Performance Indicators BT
IRIBREIGER

Environmental Key Complied
Performance Indicators BT
RIE B REBURE

We do not have material Explained
hazardous waste produced fiR
HMUYEBECEENEAREGS

EEY
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HERER/BEES) —RKE

KPI AT1.4
RS AR UIRIRAL 4

KPI'AT.5
RSB RUIEIRALS

KPI'A1.6
RS A IR IRAL .0

A2 Use of Resource

A2E R

KPI A2.1
RIS AE IR 1RA2.]

KPI A2.2
RSB MU IRA2.2

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in fonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity [e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

EEAEEZEEYHEE (AMTE) R (1|
BR)ZE(MASESEMN BEKMEE

&) o
Ean

Description of emission targef(s) set and steps
faken to achieve them

RPN HFREER R REDELR
R ERER O 2R

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HIEEBEREBEEEEMN L RIKZ
EEEYNREELTSKR-

Policies on efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BREAER (BIERLIR KREMERME)
R o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type [e.g. electricity, gas or oil] in total (kWh in
'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

WERESMERN HEEER (WE-
RoH) EREE (U TRTRRAE) REE
(WMABESEN BERBH) °

Water consumption in total and infensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
REKERTE (MASEEBEMN BHER

o e
MBET= ) °
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH RE

Environmental Key
Performance Indicators

RIBMBAMIER

We are assessing if any
emission targef can be set
and feasible For details,
please refer to “Use of
Resources” and “Our
Environmental Targets”.

BAEAEFGEREAIFILA

TOHRERRE-HIFFES

B

[BIREM ] & [HFIERRE A

2o

Non-hazardous waste
management
mEEEYER

Emission and conservation
measures

Water consumption and
waste management
BB B HO 18 Je
FMKERERMER

Environmental Key
Performance Indicators

RIEMBAMIER

Environmental Key
Performance Indicators

RIBMBAMIER

Comply or Explain
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Explained
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Complied
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Complied
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HEREARABREES) —REKE

KPI A2.3
FRR A MIE1RA2.3

KPI A2.4
FRRAEMIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
FRER AR MUIEIRA2.5

A3 The Environment
and Natural
Resources

ASRERRKRER
KPI A3.1

BRER AR M IERAS ]

Aspect A4
[EHEA4

Description of energy use efficiency fargef(s) set

and steps taken to achieve them.

TEE LT AT 32 B BE R 2 F A as B AR M sz 5|
EL B RTINS BR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s| set and sfeps faken fo
achieve them.

Fid 2t S ERGE A IR AT B AR AR 8 - A R P RT
VERAKEREBREREIELBFMAR
HRE) P88 -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in fonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.
HEmAARRMHNESE (ANETE) R
(WER)BEEBMEE-

Policies on minimizing the operation’s
significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.
BMERXBEHHERRNRAEREKEAKR
TENBRK-

Description of the significant impact of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the actions faken to manage them.
Tﬁﬂ%%%iﬂ%ﬁ%%&i%ﬁﬁmé
ENEORMNEEFRTENTY -

Policies on identfification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer

Bohl K e B A NPT Re & B
ENERRIEEBEENBE-

TAELE®

R HER

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH RE

We are assessing if any
emission fargef can be set
and feasible
BPEAEFGEEET

I AT {TEY R BE B AR o

For details, please refer to

“Use of Resources” and "Our

Environmental Targets”

HEF2HERER] R [#&

FIERE B 1E]

Water
7K

Environmental Key
Performance Indicators

RIEMBAMIER

Environmental and natural

resources

REMKABIR

Environmental and natural

resources

REMKABIR

Dealing with climate change

impact
JEH RIS (LN TE
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures Reference Section/Remark Comply or Explain
B (RE HERER/BEES) —RKE SEEG RHE RS EEN 22
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related Dealing with climate change Complied
RSB B IEIRAL. ] issues which have impacted, and those which  impact E=r
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken EURIRE(CORE

fo manage them.
WHRER LA EERTAEETENE
ARREFEEE REHTH-

B1 Employment Policies and compliance with relevant laws Commitment to our Complied
B1{E{E and regulations that have a significant impact ~ employees EASH
on the issuer relafing fo compensation and B8 TH#Ga

dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

EAHMREE BEREST TERE-
BRE - FERE 2l REKRAKREAM
FTBRBMNNBERERETHETABERK
TENHEBEREIROINER -

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type Commitment to our Complied
A NIEIEBT .1 (for example, full- or parttime), age group and  employees By
geographical region. B THAS

BIER - EEERE (N2BERE)  Ficd
RRERE D HEE AR -

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group  Commitment fo our Complied
FAHENIETEB].2  and geographical region. employees JEAS
rMR - FiER KRB SNEERRY HEIMAR
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HEREARABREES) —REKE

B2 Health and
Safety
B2RFEEEZ 2

KPI B2.1
R A I 1RB2.]

KPI B2.2
AR A I 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3
FRS A MIE1RB2.3

B3 Development
and Training

B3E & R I3E 3

KPI B3.1
BR 4 A M5 1RB3 . ]

Information on:
BREREELZETER
X=MEERN:

5 N RS R B e B

[a)  the policies; and

1563

(b)  compliance and material non-compliance
with relevant standards, rules and
regulations on providing a safe working
environment and protecting emp|oyees
from occupational hazards.

B MEREERMBBEZE
ke

AR AR AR

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.
BE-F(BRERFRE)SFEAICTHD
AB R & o

Lost days due to work injury

AIBERIEAR

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

W PR BERFEEL 2
BAATRERTA

H il A K AR

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
FRARTEERT IIEBEN MBI
HIBRER - I SR A S

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category

RERREEERESHZIEER DL

R HER

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH RE

Occupational health and
safety
BRERELZE

Occupational health and
safety
BfEmE

Occupational health and
safety
BEREEETE

Occupational health and
safety
g el

Development and training

TR

Development and training
TR B
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EialmE

Comply or Explain
PLAS a2 2

Complied
JLASH

Complied

=n

&=r

Complied

=n

&sr
Complied

A

Complied
EAST

Complied
LAS



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR - HERELGRE

SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HERER/BEES) —RKE

KPI B3.2
RA B AR MIE1RB3.2

B4 Labour Standard

B44s T %A

KPI B4.1
A B 45 IR 1RB4. 1

KPI B4.2
RASR A 5 1RB4.2

B5 Supply Chain
Management

BSLrE MR E IR
KPIB5.1
B 5245 IR 1RBS. 1

KPI B5.2
RA B 4B I 1RBS .2

The average fraining hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
BRI REERRE D SREETKEII
GRSl

Information on:

AR ILE TR T

[a)  the policies; and

BR &

(b)  compliance and material non-compliance
with relevant standards, rules and
regulations on preventing child or forced
labour.

BTRBREZREBEE RAUKR
DI E R -

Description of measures fo review employment
practices fo avoid child and forced labour.
Wil AEEMNEREABRET KA
HI8 T

Descripﬂon of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

B EHRE RGN ERE BB
B8R

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of supply chain.
EIRHEE NIRRT R ARBUR

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
minEE DM EREE -

Description of practices relating fo engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

W ERRERERENES RERNTERH
BOINHEREE  ARBERTRERS
Ao
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH RE

Development and training

TR EE

Labour standards
& T AR

Labour standards
S ITAR

Labour standards
& T AR

Our Supply Chain
Management

HEEEE

Our Supply Chain
Management

HERE R

Our Supply Chain

Management

HEEER

Comply or Explain
RS EEN 22

Complied
FEAST

Complied
LA

Complied
EAST

Complied
FEAST

Complied
LA

Complied
CAST

Complied
FEAST
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B (RE HEREARABREES) —REKE

KPI B5.3
FRS AR MIEIRBS.3

KPI B5.4
R4 A I 1RBS 4

B6 Product
Responsibility
BOEmMEE

KPI BO. 1
BB 45 e 1RBO. 1

Description of pracfices used fo identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Tt A B A R FE 2 B R ER AR RO IR IR Je At
SREMREED  ARBEBRITRERTE-

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

W EREHEEREEZARRER N
RIGEIER] ARMEBEMIT RERNT A

Information on:
FAMREHERNRENERRAZS - BES -
ZHNMILEEE A RER AR

[a)  the policies; and

128 SN

(b)  compliance relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
issuer relafing to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating fo products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BFTHETABERAZENEB LR
KRB E #Y

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject fo recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEXCDEXEmBERTRAR 2 EBEFRRE
mmMADKNE DL -

RIE HEREGRE

Reference Section/Remark Comply or Explain
BEEH HE PLAS a2 2
Our Supply Chain Complied
Management E<F
HregEE e

Our Supply Chain Complied
Management A
HregEe s

Commitment fo product Compliedi& <F
quality

HELE SN AR

We did not have any product  Complied
recalls for safety and health =y
reason in the Reporting

Period

BARmERTEEAL 2R

fEEIEHm ALK ERER-
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R HERELGRSE

SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HERER/BEES) —RKE

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related

R B IETRBO.2  complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
EEENRERKREORFRE AL EY
JE e

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating fo observing

R B MIETRBO.3  and protecting intellectual property rights
R E R RENBEREANED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and

R B MIERBO.4  recall procedures.
B EREERENERBWER-

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection

FHENIETREBO.5  and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HAEEEERRE RALBBE LA RAH
WITRERTA.

B7 Anti-corruption  Information on:

B7R &S BRAM LR B2 - MEFROARER

(a)  the policies; and

BUR &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating fo bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

BTHBETABEAZENHEBER
KRG EHYL -
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Reference Section/Remark

SEEH RE

We did nof receive any
product or service-related
complaints in the Reporting
Period.

AP ¥R 5 B I B AR
B EE fn S IR TS RO %5 o

Adverﬂsing and labelling
B & mRIRE

Privacy protfection

BEALIRE
Product recall management

EmdEER

Privacy protfection

BRALIRE

Anti-corruption training
&5 E

Comply or Explain
RS EE: 2 2

Complied
LA

Complied
FLAST

Complied

A

Complied

A

Complied
LA
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SEHK ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures
B (RE HEREARABREES) —REKE

KPI B7.1
BRI RBY ]

KPI B7.2
AR A I 1RBY .2

KPI B7.3
AR AR IR 1RB7 .3

B8 Community

Investment

BBHERE

KPI B8.1
B8 A I 1RB8

KPI B8.2
B A I 1RB8.2

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the Reporting Period and
the outcomes of the cases
RERFAHETASIEEERLIEH
BB RMNEE RFRER-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

e i By &6 48 b S B RAR 7 A RABBIEIT I

ERIE-

Description of anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff.

imEERE TRENRESHFI

Policies on community engagement fo
understand the community's needs where it
operates and fo ensure its activities fake into
consideration communities’ inferests.

BNt R2EARTHREEMELRTER
MERARBEEGE ELEFIHABR -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

ErXERERE(NHE RREEE - 41H
KR E-8BE) -

Resources contributed [e.g. money or fime) to
the focus area.

EEIERAHAER (NS EHKRE) -

Reference Section/Remark

SEEH RE

We didn't have any legal
case regarding corrupt
pracfices in the Reporting
Period. For defails, please
refer to Anfi-corruption

BN |mE RS BERNE)S
AR FEF2HRES

—#fe

Whistleblowing policy
BEBE

Development and fraining
R B

Anti-corruption training
RES

Giving back to the community
Ol g5 1t &

Giving back to the community
Ol g5 4t (@

Giving back to the community
Ol £ 4t (&
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Comply or Explain
PLAS a2 2

Complied
LAY

Complied

=n

&=

Explained
fRTE

Complied

=n

&=

Complied
CAST

Complied
CAST



Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

To the Shareholders of TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITED

{Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TS Wonders
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 208, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and

nofes fo the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a frue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and of ifs consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing [“ISAs") issued by International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Audifor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants |'IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo
provide a basis for our opinion.

108 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2021

TS WONDERS HOLDING LIMITEDER 5
(RESHBZTME A FR L A])
REMBHRREFLRS

=R

BRMEEZIFNRFEIISAZE208H 2TS Wonders
Holding Llimited (B2 ®]) REMB QA (K&
BAIEEE])ZEFEMBRE EBER-Z
ZH T AT HRZEFEEYBMRAREERE
ZBEFEz2REERREMERRER KE
=B RREEHENER UREEMBR
=M PREERSFBERE-

BPRE BEHEETERRERERE st
AZEEe ([ERSEREBEET])BMAHREE
B REER((RBRFEHRELENDEEMA
i SEEN-_ZT-_—Ft+-_A=+—H
NEEATBMRRAAREEEZZB L FEOLRE Y
BRE GAEZIEHREARERE YBE
BEBARGEHNEEERZ ARE-

ERNER

BB EERE RER LR TSR MOHEER
EAER ([EFREAER D ETEZ - ERFE
AN B EEERMINRE AR X BET 5T
IR AN BRI BAENRE] —&E— it -
REERSHMBXERENEEEIRHESS
AhEE<T Rl (TESBASTRID) - HAIBIRN BE&E
I BB EIESBAST RIFETT H b B R A AE - H A
BE RAMESHEZEERR R LEE S
B E R HER-



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the  1ZARE MR KIS
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI &

RREEXEE

MREZFASRBRMANERHE NELZA

FENGEAVBRRTREENSTE -RMAESE
o8 EtEMERREE LS

FEMIERHEREEBERER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these mafters.

Key audit matter

HEEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAEERPHNERL X

Valuation of properties (Notes 12 and 14)
MEfLE (12K 14)

The Group has freehold land and buildings in Malaysia
of approximately $$7.8 million and a leasehold building
in Singapore of approximately $$6.6 million as at
31 December 2021. These land and buildings which
are used for its own production are measured using the
revaluation model after initial recognition.
R-E_—F+-_H=+—8" SENERAGHE
BRAEE L RBFL7 .88 &I IT & IR
BREREBTROOREBMME T - ZERNBITEEN
T RBTFRGHERREAEGEREAE-

The Group also owns an investment property in Malaysia
with carrying amount of $$2.1 million as at 31 December
2021. This investment property is measured using fair value
model.

R-ZFB-_—F+-A=+—H EBERETRFEXRA:
BRERHER2 1 BEFMETHRENE ZREME
REAAFEEAGTE-

The above properties, constituted 21% of the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2021, representing significant
assets on the consolidated statement of financial position.

biaimEE EEER_T-_—F+-_A=+—REE
BEMN21% REAMBARKANEREE-

Management has engaged external independent valuers
[the “Valuers”) to perform the fair value assessment as at
31 December 2021.
EEECREINBB L EERM ([EERM]) R
+ZA=+—HETAFEFH-

—7—_45'5

As part of our audit, we performed the following procedures,
among others:
RBZBRED RIETUATREF (R EE)

e assessed the Group's process of appointment and
the ferms of engagement of the Valuers entered into
fo defermine whether there were any matters that
might have affected the Valuers’ objectivity or placed
limitations in the scope of their work.

o M BEEEZEMERNBENMIIZOEREK
R AEEREFHEEMAIEFEMEMTERIESK
RS TREEMBMEHHEIER-

e engaged our internal specialists to assess the
appropriateness of the key assumptions adopted by
the Valuers.

s ZEHMNANERFEEEMARKNEIZM

=
HERHEE -

e  assessed the independence, qualification and
competence of the Valuers.

o FHEMERN BT B REE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

Key audit matter

HEEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREERPNEELE

Valuation of properties (Notes 12 and 14)
YEME (ME12R14)

The valuation of properties is considered a key audit matter
as it requires management to exercise judgement and
estimates fo determine the valuation method and the key
estimates which includes price per square feet of market
comparables to be used. These valuations are highly
sensifive to changes in market and economic factors.
MEBERESEREZZTR DAREFEEEFH
Hi R ABEREDNERI 2GR (BERBOE
FHRALBTIHE) ZEFHREHTELEERZED
= E R

e discussed with the Valuers to understand the valuation
techniques and key estimates used in valuing the
properties and the market evidence used by the Valuers
fo support their assumptions.

o HEBEMNBATHRMEEMEZEMELETHE
REANEETEREERFURAIFERE
Pt A B T 355 1858

e  evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation
techniques used by the Valuers for each of the assef
and evaluated the key estimates applied in the
determination of fair value by benchmarking and
challenging the key assumptions used in the valuation
by reference to externally published industry data and
comparable property fransactions, where available.
We also considered whether these key estimates are
consistent with the prevailing market conditions.

e BBZENNBEMZTERBBRAIELBWER
Z(WA) FEGEEMRSBEEEMRGESE
WEEENMRBLLH REREERREZ/RR
EARNEEATFENTEZMGT KMTERZEFH
RESHEERHERBITHR e

We also checked the adequacy and appropriateness of the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

BAMZEGREMBERERAFERBENZTIEREE K-
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company (the “directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial sfatements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibi\it\/ is to read the other information and, in doing SO,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors of the Company and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRS and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as management defermines
is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infends to liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI &

REMBRERRLBABEUN2ESR

ERAER([EF])AHEMERAEEE-H
EMBRER BEARFHENER ETERE
RAEMBRRLRBEMINZBE RS -

BMEHR A B RA MUK 00 B R SR E K 0 4
B TRATE YR AR R EATRAOKE
CLE
RBMOESMBRRTES RO EEAMNE
HipER R EBE AR TGS Y BR
KRR MEBRBRTEEERFEEATH
S EA SR WERMIER DR
N TERAR AR EREAHRIL - RIA
BEEMER Bkt ROLREAEERS -

BRARESRAEENGEMBRRA
AENEM

EFFARRBERMHERE LN REFBQRGK
FIeV IR B RBEEE M AV RRIERN AR
AUBRE NEREBETHRAESEMB®RE
BUEMNBBAANMEE UEZFHGEAVBREK
TEFEHANAFFEERME MM E A RBRAL -

EREGAMBHRRG EFAAENE &%
EREQLENEN U RBEEFELLAENE
H(WER) BRIEEFHE BEXREFRIFL
BE BRI EBELBERATTHORE B
AIERAARERE RERNETE-

EEENMBERERIE

REERRER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion solely fo you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed ferms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

() Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from froud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the audit
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriafe in the
circumsfances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the direcfors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
fo events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw
aftention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease fo continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business acfivities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

B ZATRE

TRRERZERN AL URHEED
BREF HEXFEEY %%‘%IW*BE*T
MAERMEERER -

HEEEMEA ST BRNBE L RIEL
SEHMERTMAERBREN S EE-

HERERAKBELZSHEARNKREN
R & WIRIBFAERNEZERE BE
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oMM RRFEBEXBRALER BEX
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BRI TR

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intfernal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in exfremely rare circumstances, we
defermine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent
audifor’s report is Ms. Tay Hwee Ling.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

31 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEDREMEZEKER
BT —F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

314

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note S$ S$
B 5 1 038 T N T
Revenue g 5 65,269,727 69,562,227
Cost of sales SH & R AR (47,585,347)  (50,878,961)
Gross profit EF 17,684,380 18,683,266
Other income N ba 348,752 923,823
Other gains and losses H bz K18 6b (260,373) (157,878)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS (3,475,292) (2,954,517)
Administrative expenses THAX (2,039,146) (7,475,492)
Finance costs B & Rl 7R 7 (126,627) (148,6906)
Profit before taxation B %4 A0 5 5,131,694 8,870,506
Income tax expense RSB X 8 (1,708,579) (2,039,687)
Profit for the year FERER 9 3,423,115 6,830,819
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hin2mEUz=E (BX)
lrem that may be reclassified subsequently FETE A BEEFT 7 B E 1872 AY
fo profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEGINETSE EHE
foreign operation Cackc] (264,583) 17,614
Item that will not be reclassified BT EER S EE B i
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
Revaluation of property, plant and BEEYE - BWENRE
equipment, net of fax MR T IE 25 292,645 (91,960
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREM2EKE (%)
for the year 28,062 (74,346)
Total profit and other comprehensive FEBMNREMEZEEE
income for the year, net of tax g, RBIE 3,451,177 6,756,473
Basic earnings per share (S$ cents) BRERBF (FIMED) 11 0.34 0.68
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BARBHRAE
As at 31 December 2021 N—E-—F+=-A=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —_EEF
Note S$ S$
e ¥ N3 oo i T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB R&E 12 22,769,087 21,200,795
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13 1,110,966 1,112,811
Investment property REWMR 14 2,078,154 -
Deposit B 17 - 493,384
25,958,207 22,806,990
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 15 12,371,706 10,636,795
Trade receivables =7y S e QL] 16 12,818,625 13,156,360
Other receivables, deposits and EMERTIE -Ze &
prepayments ARt A 17 1,252,943 872,228
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMmIT A 18 41,957 4,545
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNES 19 26,277,352 24,400,875
52,762,583 49,070,803
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B NHMENFRIE 20 9,189,627 6,798,189
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 18 108,234 237,308
Llease liabilities HEaE 21 190,882 180,756
Bank and other borrowings RITREMERK 22 725,115 670,281
Income tax payable FERT TS X 1,479,399 1,824,755
11,693,257 Q.711,289
Net current assets REBEEZFE 41,069,326 39,359,514
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBAEE 67,027,533 62,166,504
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEUBRRAEK
As at 31 December 2021 R-EB-_—F+_-_B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note S$ S$
M e F i3 7o oo
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Llease liabilities HEBE 21 1,076,394 1,076,621
Bank and other borrowings IRITRE M AR 22 3,064,609 1,839,018
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE 23 1,094,993 910,505
5,235,996 3,826,144
Net assets EEFE 61,791,537 58,340,360
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves BRI E
Share capital &N 24 1,725,820 1,725,820
Share premium 19 m B 13,487,471 13,487,471
Other reserve H b fEE (332,000) (332,000
Merger reserve B 299,994 299,004
Revaluation reserve EEHEE 25 11,969,643 11,676,998
Translation reserve VE 5 (1,854,416) (1,589,833)
Accumulated profits gyl 36,495,025 33,071,910
61,791,537 58,340,360

The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 208 were F115E208E 26 M B MEER T =F

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on =A=+—BEEFSERKENE LHT
31 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: JIEERREE:

Lim Seow Yen Lim Fung Yee
R/ 3 I F
Director Director
EFE BE
See accompanying nofes fo consolidated financial statements. BREE VB MRBEN I -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEEREHR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE-—F+=-A=+—HILFE
Share Share Other Merger  Revaluafion  Translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
e 13 %1E Hitfife  AORE Btk ERfE S| ag
5$ $$ $$ $$ §$ 8% §$ §$
MR g g MM g ;g MM Mg
(Note q) [Note b) [Note 25)
(Fizka) (Ftskb)  (Rr&25)
At T January 2020 R-Z-Z5-F-H 1725820 13,487 471 (332,000) 200904 11,768,958  (1,607447) 26,241.091 51,583,887
Profit for the year FRRH = = = - - - 6830819 6,830,819
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ FAE M2 EFE = = = = (91,960) 17,614 = (74,346)
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 i B%8 = - - - (91,960) 17614 6,830,819 6,756,473
At 31 December 2020 it St 33
+=ZA=1+-8 1725820 13,487 471 (332,000) 200004 11,676,998  (1,589,833) 33,071910 58,340,360
Profit for the year FRE = = = - - - 3423115 3423115
Other comprehensive income EREMZENG
for the year - - - - 292,645 (264,583 - 28,062
Total comprehensive income for the year M2 B B% = - - - 292,645 (264,583 3,423,115 3,451,177
At 31 December 2021 R-E--§
+-ZB=1+-8 1725820 13,487 471 [332,000) 209094 11,969,643  (1,854416) 36495025 61,791,537
Note: B 5T
al  Other reserve represents the combined effect upon complefion of share o) EHMEFEEELAEEEEAN —BH  MATeatz

transfer of Treatz Foods Sdn. Bhd. (“TZF") and Tai Sun Llim Kee Food
Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“TSF") to Tai Sun (Lim Kee) Food Industries Pte.
ld. ("TSS") by two individual shareholders of TZF and TSF in April 2018
as part of group reorganisation.

Foods Sdn. Bhd. ([TZF J) K Tai Sun Lim Kee Food
Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd. ([TSF 1) 8938 7 R =
T— N\FEP AMATai Sun (Lim Kee) Food Industries

Pre. Lid. ([TSS])EERETZFRRTSFRR D 12 80 & Of &
E=

EHREBE L -MREERBEEEEETR
BZRABDEBERZBRARENER-

bl Merger reserve represents the difference between the cost of acquisition b
pursuant fo the group reorganisation in prior financial year and the total
value of share capital of the entities acquired.

FRERE MM BB -

See accompanying nofes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHERE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZE=-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E--fF —ZTF
S$ S$
¥ 038 T N T
Operating activities RETH
Profit before taxation R B A& A 5,131,694 8,870,506
Ad|justments for: AR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BE REREITE 1,702,525 1,724,916
Depreciation of rightof-use assets FRELEENE 195,147 195,762
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BE M&EksE
plant and equipment (39,000) (3,444)
Gain on lease modification HE ekl (5,832) (5,423)
Finance costs BE B A 126,627 148,696
Interest income B A (53,952) (259,537)
Fair value loss on derivative MEeRIANQAFESR
financial instruments 47,804 235,630
Fair value loss on investment property BREMEN RV ERRE 264,779 =
Net unrealised foreign exchange [gain) loss REWINE (W) BEFR (277,234) 45,446
Operating cash flows before movements BELESEHIKLERENE
in working capital 7,092,558 10,952,552
Movements in working capital: SELETEE:
(Increase) decrease in inventories F&E (8mn) R (1,559,684) 1,788,204
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 2 5 e R IE R A (38n) 402,750 (781,449
Increase in other receivables, deposits and H A e RIE - & [
prepayments Ta S FRIE I A0 (378,318) (264,439)
Settlement of derivative financial instruments EETEemIT A (214,290) (69,580)
Increase in frade and other payables B 5 N At FE A FRIALE AN 2,433,996 279,855
Decrease in amounts due fo a related party JE AT — 2 BA B 5 SRR A - (6,465)
Cash generated from operations KEELEMNES 7,777,012 11,898,678
Income taxes paid, net of refunds EAFEH  HBR R (1,851,308) (1,204,116)
Net cash from operating activities RETEFIERESTE 5,925,704 10,694,562
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ZERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021  #ZE—

E-—F+-A=+—BIFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —_EEF
S$ S$
o3 T sk T
Investing activities REED
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BELRE
equipment (2,712,989) (1,960,633)
Purchase of investment property BEREME (2,346,676) -
Deposit paid fo purchase of property, ABEYE BB K
plant and equipment RWENRE - (298,994
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BB R&RE
plant and equipment PS5/ IR 50,994 4,000
Interest received B U F B 53,952 259,537
Redemption of fixed deposits HE O] JF HRTF X 3,001,677 10,039,800
Placement of fixed deposits FAEBEFER (8,000,000) (3,001,677)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities REZH (A MERETFHE (9,953,042) 5,042,033
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RIT R E M E RS KIE 2,000,000 203,560
Repayment of lease liabilities EBRHEaE (252,725) (253,872)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EEIRITREAMMER (719,575) (444,756)
Interest paid B 7 B (51,216) (74,672)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities RMETEMES (A RESFE 976,484 (569,740
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERBESEEY D)
cash equivalents EAFEEE (3,050,854 15,166,855
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on the SN DEE R S Y T 15 B HME
balance of cash held in foreign currencies Retmpee g (70,992) (38,197)
Cash and cash equivalents FVNRELREEED
at beginning of the year 21,399,198 6,270,540
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRAESRRASEEY (KFE19)
the year (Note 19) 18,277,352 21,399,198

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

TS Wonders Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
law, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands on 19 April 2018. The Company was
registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as
a nonHong Kong company under Part 16 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance [the “Companies Ordinance”) on 23 May
2018 and the principal place of business in Hong Kong is Room
Q01, 9th Floor, Prosperity Tower, No. 39 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong. lts registered office and principal place of
business are located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and
255 Pandan loop, Singapore 128433, respectively. The shares
of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange’)
with effect from 14 January 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the production,
packaging and retailing of food products. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 32 fo the consolidated
financial statements. Its parent and ultimate holding company
is SWL Limited ("SWL") a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. lts ultimate controlling shareholders are M. Lim
Fung Yee [“Mr. Winsfon Lim"), Mr. Lim Fung Chor ("Mr. Lawrence
Lim"), Ms. Llim Seow Yen ("Ms. Sandy Lim"), Mdm. Han Yew
lang, Mr. Lloo Soon Hock James and Ms. Ong liow Wah, all of
them are family members (collectively known as the “Confrolling

Shareholders”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore
Dollars (“S$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 31 March 2022.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

—REH

TS Wonders Holding Limited ([ARA@]]) A
“E-NFEHATAAREREHRER
ADEE228 (1961 F F35F A0 & & HF
MEFRFASESIMRLARER LR
RIYHRHEREELRARLAA - ARF]
RZZE—N\FRA=ZFT=HREQGEH
([REEBI]) E1680 M & B A R M E
BREBRRFBEBELRR BEZTELEM
U REBFIRERANERI0MREHAIZ
AREOEQOIZE-HEMMERRTELER
& 5 B A Windward 3, Regatta Office
Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islandsf255 Pandan Loop,
Singapore 128433 e KR AR EREE
BAaRXZMERAR (TBA]) R LS
B-ZE-NF-A+HARER-

KRR ABEREERAG EHWBARIEE
RERMEE BERTE-WBRAFTN
FEEBREAVERERWAI2FHEE-
HESRE R&EER AT ASWL Limited
([SWL] —XREBEZES ([REEX
BEFEMKZHAT) H&EKIERERR
ABMFFEE(MREFEE]) HFHE
£ (T HETAE]) WD FRZ I (TR
Z+]) EBARBZI - loo Soon Hock James
SERTEEZLT (RBAERKRRE])
ZEANTHBREKE -

=R R e P WNNTE: 0B A 3 i 17
7C (TF IR TT)) 251

RAEMBRRILARTDEFTFEN_F
—ZHE=A=+—HB#tk-
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

Adoption of new and revised Standards = On 1 January
2021, the Group and the Company adopted all the new and
revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
pronouncements that are relevant fo its operations. The adoption
of these new/revised IFRS pronouncements does not result in
changes 1o the Group's and the Company's accounting policies
and has no material effect on the disclosures or on the amounts

reported for the current or prior years.

New and revised IFRS Standards (“IFRSs") in issue but not yet
effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 fincluding the June 2020 Insurance Contracts?
amendments fo FRS 17]

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS

28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current?

Reference fo the Conceptual Framework!

Amendments o IAS 1

Amendments fo [FRS 3

Amendments to [AS 16 Property Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Infended use'

Amendments o IAS 37 Onerous Contracts = Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract'

Annual improvements fo IFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments fo IFRS 1 Firstime Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards,
IFRS @ Financial Instruments, IFRS 16
leases, and IAS 41 Agriculiure’

Amendments o IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments fo IAS 8

Amendments o IAS 12

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definifion of Accounting Estimates®
Deferred Tox related fo Assets and Liabilities
arising from @ Single Transation®
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 2

(Continued)
U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,
with early application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,
with early application permitted.
Effective date is deferred indefinitely.

The directors do not expect that the adopfion of the Standards
listed above will have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group in future periods.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosures required by the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis and in accordance with the following
accounting policies which conform to IFRSs except for cerfain
buildings and land, invesiment property and financial instruments
that are measured af revalued amount or fair values af the end of
each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of accounting (Continved)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assef
or paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between
market participants af the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is direcily observable or estimated using
another valuation fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characterisfics info account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments, leasing
fransactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16 leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 /nventories or
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in ifs entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assef or

liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are sef out below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group have
adequate resources to confinue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concem
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and company controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when a

company:
. has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its

involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use ifs power to affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
confrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the company gains control
until the date when the company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group's accounting policies.

All infra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating fo fransactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from the production, packaging
and sale of goods. Revenue is recognised fo depict the transfer
of promised goods or services fo cusfomers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects fo be entifled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Group
uses a S-sfep approach fo revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
e  Step 3: Defermine the transaction price.

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

e Siep 5: Recognise revenue when [or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is fransferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods [or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress fowards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

e the cusfomer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs; or

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the cusfomer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alfernative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in fime when the
customer obtains confrol of the distinct service.

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of fime is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Specifically, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised af a point in fime

the control of the goods has fransferred, i.e. when the goods
have been delivered to customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A confract is, or confains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
fo control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a confract is
or confains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessor

leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease fransfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Renfal income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Inifial direct cosfs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operafing lease are
added fo the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straightline basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or confains a lease,
af inception of the contract. The Group recognises a rightof-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straightline basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lessee.

lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise:

e  fixed lease payments [including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate af the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual volue guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain fo exercise the opfions; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated stafement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount fo reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a significant
event, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate;

e  the lease payments change due to changes in an index
or rate or a change in expected payment under o
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating inferest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used); or

* a lease confract is modified and the lease modification
is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The rightof-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and
any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs fo dismantle
and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located
or resfore the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate fo a
rightofuse asset, the cosfs are included in the related rightof-use
asset, unless those cosfs are incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continved)

Rightof-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset, the related rightofuse
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The rightofuse assets are presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to defermine whether a rightofuse
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
as described in the ‘Impairment of tangible assets’ policy.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are
measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates |its functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
consolidated statement of financial position and equity of the
Company are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency
for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual entfities,
fransactions in currencies other than the enfity’s functional currency
are recorded af the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rafes prevailing on the date
when the fair value was defermined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in ferms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
refranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency transactions and translation (Continved)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on refranslation of monetary items are included in
profit or loss for the periods. Exchange differences arising on
the refranslation of non-monetary ifems carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the periods except for differences
arising on the refranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. For such non-monefary items, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assefs and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
expressed in Singapore dollars using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items
(including comparatives) are translated af the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates af the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in a separate component of equity under the header of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation [(i.e. a disposal of the
Group's enfire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
affributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily fake a substantial period of time to gef ready for their
infended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assefs are substantially ready for their infended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised unfil there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related cosfs for which the grants are intended
fo compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statements of financial position and
fransferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
cosfs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments made to Central Provident Fund (“CPF") and Employees
Provident Fund (“EPF"), being defined contribution benefits, are
recognised as expense when employees have rendered service
enfifling them fo the contributions.

Shortterm employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All shortterm employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or
permifs the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave] after
deduction of any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The fax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and
fax laws) that have been enacted or subsfantively enacted in
countries where the Company and subsidiaries operate by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding fax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be ufilised. Such assefs and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assef fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
seffled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Croup expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover
or sefile the carrying amount of ifs assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is fo consume subsfantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sales.
The Group has not rebutted the presumption that the carrying
amount of the investment properties will be recovered entirely
through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in profit or loss, except when it relates fo items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred fax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

For purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the rightofuse assefs and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable fo the rightofuse assefs or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
affributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income taxes requirements fo right-of-use assefs and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant rightof-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of rightofuse assefs and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject fo initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.

Property, plant and equipment

land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values
at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited
fo profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such
land and buildings is charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property revaluation
reserve relafing fo a previous revaluation of that asset.

Asset in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet defermined,
are carried af cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capifalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Depreciafion of these assefs, on the same basis as other
assets, commences when the assefs are ready for their infended
use.

The payments of leasehold building and leasehold land are
separate. leasehold building is fully paid and presented as
"property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated statement
of financial position while interest in leasehold land is paid
over its lease ferm and presented as “rightofuse assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Except for freehold land and renovation in progress, depreciation
is charged so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Confinued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the assef. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or refirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is defermined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or refirement
of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is fransferred
directly to accumulated profits. No transfer is made from the
revaluation reserve to accumulated profits except when an asset
is derecognised.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and
for capital appreciation (including property under construction),
is measured initially at its cost, including fransaction costs.
Subsequent to inifial recognition, investment property is measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property shall transfer to property, plant and
equipment when there is a change in use. A change in use
occurs when the property meets, or ceased to meet, the definition
of investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. In isolation, a change in management's infention for the use
of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

For transfer from investment property carried at fair value fo
property, plant and equipment, the property’s deemed cost
for subsequent accounting shall be its fair value af the date of
change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
periods in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises raw material and where applicable, direct
labour cosfs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the firstin-firstout method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and cosfs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the management of the
Croup reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assefs fo
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assefs are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assefs are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established
or otherwise they are dllocated tfo the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is defermined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units fo
which the corporate assef belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating unifs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets (Continved)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair values less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
fax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
fime value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If
the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than ifs carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit] is reduced
fo ifs recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased fo the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the exfent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required fo seftle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required fo sefile the present obligation at the
end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to sefile the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Provisions (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to setile a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
Group's statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a parly fo the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured af
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15 Revenve from Confracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are
added to or deducted from the fair volue of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly affributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assefs are
recognised and derecognised on a frade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.

31 December 2021

3

FEUBHRFRMEE
—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

BEREFTHEw

BEw

i RABE BB 2 880 2 BB M s T8
HaE=77WmE AIEEE RSN
BB RS REEr S5t B BUHIAED

TWMIA

TREENERABENIRAKEXNSTA
BRERXHET AT B R AS B M BN K

CREENEREBEBVIRATENE I
REBERFBHRELERNEISRETF GO
SZFENKEEFPAEONRENEHE
WRIRRRSN - B BITEREENR SR A
& (RAFEF AR (RAFEFAR
Bm)ZeREERSRABBRINERRE
O HRA IR AT ASHE
ELTBBENAFEANLEE TR (W0
R WBRAFEFABRZEREE
FEMEBEERRENRZIRANERE
B HER

TREE

FMEEREREEEENR S AR LK
IR FHREREEERRBEAHER
RAEBMHRRNKIEFREOFRAN
ZEMEE-FTACHRNEREERRZRR
FERMEERMNBBRBHEAAXKATE

g

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 F3% 141



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Classification of financial assets

Financial assefs that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order o collect
contractual cash flows: and

e the confractual ferms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dafes to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income ("FVTOCI"):

e the financial assef is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting confractual cash
flows and selling the financial assefs; and

e the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dafes to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS
9 (including frade receivables, other receivables and deposits
and bank balances and cash) are subsequently measured af
amortised costs.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial assefs and of allocating interest
income over the relevant periods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) excluding expected credit losses ("ECL"), through
the expected life of the financial assefs, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
assefs on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.
On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.

Inferest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and
at FVTOCI. For financial instruments, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective inferest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assefs that have
subsequently become creditimpaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit impaired, inferest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate fo the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate fo the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Inferest income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method and is included in the “Other income” line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets af FVTPL are measured at fair value af the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss fto the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “Other gains and losses”
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in

Note 28.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assefs that are denominated
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
franslated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
For financial assefs measured af amortised cost that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, and financial assefs
measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, the exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
"Other gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assefs which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9@ (including
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
fo reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets under ECL model (Confinved)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months affer the reporting dafe. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experiences,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the curent
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for frade receivables
and measures the lifetime ECL for portfolios of trade receivables
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The ECL on those
financial assets are estimated using an analysis of assets by risk
level of customers and apply a probability weighted estimate
of the credif losses within the relevant risk type. The probability
weighted estimate of the credit losses is determined based on the
Group's historical credif loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
condifions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as af the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future prospects of
the indusfries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained
from financial analysts and governmental bodies, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group's core operations
namely the production, packaging and retailing of food products.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significanily since
initial recognition:

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debfor’s ability o meet its debt
obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deferioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulafory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continved|

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
ofherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is defermined to have low
credit risk af the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default (i.e. no
default history), ii] the borrower has a strong capacity fo meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criferia are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituing an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as hisforical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

e information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay ifs
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking info
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Definition of default (Continued)

Irespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than Q0
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Creditimpaired financial assets

Financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is creditimpaired includes observable data about the following

events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
or

° a breach of confract, such as a default or past due event;
or

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual

reasons relafing to the borrower's financial difficulty, having
granted fo the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enfer
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptey proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets writien off may still be subject o
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking info account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is o function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on hisforical
data adjusted by forward-ooking information. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assefs’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

defermined at inifial recognition.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for
cases where evidence of significant increases in credit risk at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits are each
assessed as a separate group.)

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management fo ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjusiment fo
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights fo the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Classification of financial liabilities or equity insfruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
enfity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the subsfance of the contractual arangements
enfered info and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity insfrument is any contract that evidences a residual
inferest in the assefs of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cosfs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective inferest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities af FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

liability is held for trading.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchosing it in the near ferm; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages fogether and
has a recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated af fair value with any
gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss to the exfent that they are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any inferest paid on the financial liabilities and
is included in the “Other gains and losses” line item. Fair value is
defermined in the manner described in Note 28.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured af amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, 2] heldfortrading, or 3)
designated as af FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant periods. The effective inferest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts esfimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
infegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts| through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the “Other gains
and losses” line item in profit or loss for financial liabilities that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised af fair value at the date
when derivative confracts are entered info and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution fo the Group's shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are opproved by the
Company's shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank
deposits that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group's management is required fo make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered fo be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty af the end of each
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs within the next
twelve months.

Revaluation of leasehold/freehold buildings and
freehold land (Note 12) and fair value of investment
property (Note 14)

The Group's leasehold /freehold buildings and freehold land are
measured at revaluation model whereas the investment property
is measured at fair value. The valuation was defermined by the
management of the Group by reference to valuation performed
by an independent professional valuer. The valuation involves
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustment. In
relying on the valuation report of the independent professional
valuer, the management has exercised ifs judgement and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the market
conditions prevailing af respective valuation dates affer taking info
consideration the state of the relevant properties. Any changes in
the market conditions will affect the fair value of these properties
of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate carrying amount
of leasehold/freehold buildings and freehold land are
S$14,368,800 (2020: S$$14,572,662) whereas the carrying
amount of investment property is $$2,078,154 (2020: S$Nil).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  (Contined)

Allowance for inventories (Note 15)

The Group's accounting policy requires allowance for inventories
fo be made based on an assessment of the net realisable value
of invenfories. Allowances are applied to inventories where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable
value is lower than the cost of inventories. The identification of
obsolete inventories requires the use of judgement and estimates
on the conditions and usefulness of the inventories. In cases
where the net realisable value of inventories assessed are less
than expected, a material recognition of allowance for inventories
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the
periods in which such recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
are $$12,371,706 (2020: S$10,636,795) and no allowance
for inventories is made in both years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Loss allowance for trade receivables (Note 16)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
an analysis of assets by risk level of customers based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions af the reporting date. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade
receivables are S$12,818,625 (2020: S$13,156,360).

154 TS Wonders Holding Limited | Annual Report 2021

4

ARSI HE AT TITRERZ
B EEZRE w0

FE&E (HE15)

AEENSTRREBRRELFEANER
FEMEZAGHRFERE - MELEET
SHRBREE BRAERFEEREFER
A Rl g FEFh BB -BRERFR
BAE RAEFFERR LB - T
FENRERFERAERD  HARTFERE
REABME AN ERZREHEN RS
R

R-EB-_—+-_A=+—B HFEERE
BAR12,371, 706 M T (—F _FF:
10,636, 7955 ¥ L) RBE-_T-_—%F
MZZ_TFE+_A=+—HULFE #H#E
SAF BRI A -

BEZRBURERBRERE (HEE16)

AEBEERAEERATEEEECHRER
BEFPEBERNEESTHERE 5 ERNR
BHE2HBEREEERE UHEBARERE
T EREERIUARRTEEHCRMK R
RIRAR S 7 A B0 AT A 7 SR 2 - IR IR TR HR(E
EEBEEAELHNRERESBRRES
HWENAEENMASNRERERARE
EEABKINERERECHANESE
e WIRVIAERRA ERF ERAEIR o 4
RRREMELNBHAIEETERIREE
b T3 RIRI e EEE KRERSE -

RZZB-_—F+__R=+—80 BHREINX
155%@@7% 2,818,625¥ KT (ZF =
TF:13,156,360F K TT)



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the sales of food products, which can largely be
grouped under nufs and chips, also represents the revenue from
contracts with customers.

Information is reported fo the executive directors of the Company,
which are also the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM”)
of the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of products sold and in respect of the “Nuts” and “Chips”
operations. In current year, the CODM review the profits by type
of product sold instead of overall results of the Group as a whole
as compared fo prior years. Accordingly, the comparative figure
is disclosed with segment result. No operating segments have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the

Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are
as follows:

(i) Nouts,
[i)  Chips; and
liii)  Others.

Others mainly include items such as disposable towels which are
normally sold together with the nuts and chips products to food
and beverages companies.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

The following is a breakdown of the Group's revenue and results

5 WERDSBER @

PR L E Y E S

LT BRT 2R B85 HAEBKSR

by reportable segments: FERBPA:
Revenue Net profit
R

2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--F —EFF —E--F —E-TF
s$ S$ S$ S$
3N T HNE T 3N T T
Nuts BRE 47,298,366 50,611,699 12,917,938 13,590,663
Chips 2K 16,179,724 17,489,566 4,260,008 4,667,510
Others Hfb 1,791,637 1,460,962 506,434 425,093
65,269,727 69,562,227 17,684,380 18,683,266
Other income E A 348,752 923,823
Other gains and losses H AUz M s 18 (260,373) (157,878)
Selling and distribution expenses ~ $4& & 73§51 &2 (3,475,292)  (2,954,517)
Administrative expenses ITEFAX (9,039,146) (7,475,492)
Finance costs ELE= D #N (126,627) (148,690)
Profit before taxation B B A& 5,131,694 8,870,506
Income tax expense FrisHif & (1,708,579) (2,039,687)
Profit for the year F N 7 3,423,115 6,830,819

The Group derives its revenue from sales of Nuts, Chips and

AEENKEREHERR B REAM

Others where all performance obligations for sales of goods MHEEMNAERNBEEINE KA
BiT-RFA RAIBEFHEERNAA
BRARES BAaNEBRERZERER
(e BE)HBTE-

are at a point in fime. During the year, all the contracts for sales
of goods to external customers are shortferm, and the contract
prices are agreed based on factors such as volume per unit
price.
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31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninved) 5 U R D ZEE @)

Segment revenue and results (Continved) pas 06 E 3T

The accounting policies are the same as Group's accounting GETHR B AT AR B 8 & ST ER AR
policies described in Note 3. Segment profit represents the profit @ o 9 &8 i A48 & 5 &6 MR ER A a5 7] - I A&
eamed by each segment without allocation of centralised other SREMEMW A Hiolzm MEE HE
income, other gains and losses, selling and disfribution expenses, Eo#HRAX THHRAX MBEERLAEH
administrative expenses, finance costs and income tax expense. FXETOR W IRHERD B R BRI
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of A ErEEERREREZFTEAA

resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER
No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is presented HRUTEFTHANARAEEEIZLERKTER
as they are not regularly provided to the CODM of the Group. HoPEEX D HBEABRNSNT AT EZ
SIB R
Other segment information HittnZBEHR
2021 2020
—E-— —T_FF
S$ S$
#h03R T AN T
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB MR EITEUR
equipment and rightof-use assefs: EREEENE:
Nuts S 1,240,475 1,220,066
Chips 2R 424,339 421,610
Others HAth 46,988 35,218
Unallocated N 185,870 243,784
1,897,672 1,920,678
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninved 5 Y2 B 20 BB E B )

Geographical information b & & R

AEBEXTERHFMERGRAD (BRE
SEERNRE)REXK -KAINFE
PO RTIENRIHE PR E - A&
B B IE R BN B B (LA HT NI e S R P ok

The Group principally operates in Singapore and Malaysia,
which are the place of domicile of respective group entities.
Revenue from external customer is based on the geographical
location of the end-customers. The Group's non-current assets are

located in Singapore and Malaysia.

2021 2020
=B —F —EEHF
S$ S$
¥ N3 T s T

Revenue by geographical location of RIZHE PR E 85 H

the end-customers: g

- Singapore — N 41,115,399 39,595,455
- Malaysia — R 14,103,574 15,881,052

— The People’s Republic of China —HEAREME (B1F
[including Hong Kong and Macau) BEENEP) 7,679,659 11,612,353
— Others —Hfb 2,371,095 2,473,367
65,269,727 69,562,227
2021 2020
—E=— —ETF
S$ S$
¥ hn 3 T s T

Non-current assets: FERBEE:

- Singapore — Nk 8,474,608 9,068,592
- Malaysia — 5 R 17,483,599 13,738,398
25,958,207 22,806,990
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

The revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of
fofal revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December

2021 and 2020 are as follows:

FEMBImRME

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

5 BEKkoBEH®
TERFEH
BE-_FT-_—FR-_F-_FTF+=A

=t+—RLEFE  RE@ERIEANE BB YR
0% B P E R -

2021 2020

-5 ZTEF

S$ S$

3 7o N T

Customer A ZEEA 20,810,099 19,372,371

Customer B =FEB 7,117,133 7,378,820

Customer C BEC 6,690,320 Q9,641,929
OTHER INCOME 6A HAW A

2021 2020

—EB-—& —E-TF

S$ S$

¥ 038 T TN

Government grants* AT f Bh 249,560 615,083

Interest income FEHA 53,952 259,537

Rental income Hel A 32,211 11,818

Others HAh 13,029 37,385

348,752 923,823

expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support 1o the Group with no future related

costs.

The government grants received mainly comprise the VWage
Credit Scheme ("WCS”), the Special Employment Credit (“SEC"),
the Jobs Support Scheme ("JSS”), Wage Subsidy Programme
["WSP"), Foreign Worker levy Rebates (“FWL Rebates’) and the
Jobs Growth Incentive ("JGI"), all of them are compensation for

* B YR ER B0 IR A 468 B = B2 B pn vl B AT B
(Mg Bhat &) B RIsh R mRL (5!
SRR B MmRLET S ([EHMRLEt
2)) TEmMBTE ([TEMETEL) -
SMETABEBELDM (IMETABEDH])
Rt R8I ([BLERFE) - 31k
REEENAXHABENHERSEERT
AR B BN B 75 A B (AR KARRIRCA) ©

TS Wonders Holding Limited | 2021 %3k 159



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

6A OTHER INCOME (Confined) 6A B A

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
grants of $$168,056 (2020: $$527,934), under the JSS. Under
this scheme, the government provides wage support fo employers,
helping businesses retain their local employees (including
Singapore citizens and permanent residents) during the economic
uncerfainty caused by the Covid-19.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received
subsidies of $$13,231 (2020: S$43,135), under the WSP.
Under this scheme, the govemment provides wage support fo
employers, helping businesses refain their local employees during
the economic uncertainty caused by Covid-19.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received
rebates of S$Nil (2020: S$29,250), under the FWL Rebates.
Under this scheme, the government provides support fo firms with
workers who are unable to work during the economic uncertainty
caused by the Covid-19.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received
incentive of $$40,952 (2020: S$Nil), under the JGI. Under this
scheme, the government supports employers to expand local hiring

from September 2020 to September 2022.

BHE-_ZT-_—F+ZR=+—HL*#F
E-AEEREBEMAEEERED
168,056 gt (ZFE ZF 4 : 527,934
PN oT) o \RIEZET & BT E20198 Ak
RERBHLCBERTETEZEBEME
TREIEAIH EPCERBEEHE
B (BEINMEARKKAER)

BE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—RHIFE-
AEEBRIETAMANET S0 B A6 3,23]
FME T (ZTE T F 43,1355
7)o IRIEFZET & BN 20198 ks 5%
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ITESRK BB HEMES -

BHE_T-_—F+-A=+—HLFE"
AREFRBINETIAREQNKIES
TN T (Z =T 52 29,2508 I
T0) o iRIRFZET B 201 9 MMim S &
BEHLBEENTREEZZ2HBMIAEE
TEMRRRE -

BE-_ZE-_—H+-A=+—BHIEE"
AEBIRE R 2 TR E| 7 8)40,952
BT (ZE_TF T T) 1R
BEREIEAHE BRAR-_ZE=-_ZFNA

ECECFAARRERHESE EX

AN FREE FRAE
6B OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6B HfthmKkEiE
2021 2020
—E-——F —ETF
S$ S$
¥ h0 3% T o
Gain on lease modification HE sk 5,832 5,423
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BE RRE 2 W
plant and equipment 39,000 3,444
Foreign exchange gain, net HINGEE FEE 3, Uk 2% 5 BB 7,378 68,885
Fair value loss on investment property REWMEZ XN EBRE (MiE14)
(Note 14) (264,779) -
Fair value loss on derivative PESRIAZAFEEE
financial instruments (47,804) (235,630
(260,373) (157,878)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRTMEE
31 December 2021 —E-—F+-HA=+—H
FINANCE COSTS 7 ®ERA
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEHF
S$ S$
¥ b T ¥ o
Interest on: ATREIEZHE :
— Bank loans —RITER 51,216 74177
- Lease liabilities —-HEaE 75,411 74,519
126,627 148,696
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8 MEHEAX
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
S$ S$
i3 7o N T
Tax expense comprises: RERX8HE:
Current income fax BNERFT1S HX
Current year KEE 1,571,102 2,087,469
Over provision in prior year BAEFEHBBEREEG (54,629) (74,843)

1,516,473 2,012,626

Withholding tax BT IA 3,660 3,962
Deferred tax (Note 23) EIERIE (M5E23)
Current year KEEZ 125,003 (66,292)
Under provision in prior year BEFERBTR 69,500 97,126
Effect of revaluations of assets EHEENBRETE
for taxation purposes (6,057) 7,735)
188,446 23,099

1,708,579 2,039,687
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

8 |NCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8

Singapore Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") is calculated at
17% of the estimated assessable profit, determined based on
financial year end date of the group of companies. Singapore
incorporated companies can enjoy /5% tax exemptfion on the
first S$10,000 of chargeable income and a further 50% tax
exemption on the next $$190,000 of chargeable income.

In Malaysia, the standard corporate tox rate is 24% for the year

ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

The income fax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
0ss and ofher comprehensive income as Tollows:

\ d oth preh foll

FrEHAX @
SR ([DEMEH] )R
JERER R A M 7% T EY BEREB A 7 B

B 45 B EETE » AT AN G A SZ B X B8y
Ji& =R T Y A & 10,000 A 3% 7T 7 #4 %2 4 4M
75%eN B 18 - H 18 190,000% hi3K 7T &) & &R
T AT HE — P ER R BARSO%R TR IR ©

RERAT BE-T _fﬁ)&_? ——f
TZA=ZT " HLEFENEERRRER
24% °

AEENFAEHAXEFEREREMGS
i as R AR ADE A BRI T

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
S$ S$
¥ h03% 7T g
Profit before taxation i 74 A 5,131,694 8,870,506
Tax at applicable tax rate of 17% HB17%HE AR E T E A 872,388 1,507,986
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FERE ﬂ%%lﬂ:ﬂ%« =Nl 1NN
operating in other jurisdiction TR KRN E 147,913 222,929
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAIHMBHAS R E
for tax purpose 600,835 351,248
Tax effect of income not taxable AT A BB 7% 52 2
for tax purpose (46,834) (110,137)
Reversal of tfemporary differences from BRORENEEREZE BE
fransfer of investment property fo property, NRBEFEREEZR
plant and equipment - (64,013)
Effect of tax concessions and B 2 R o B U ER 2 B 2 &
partial fax exemptions (59,925) (82,885)
Under provision in prior year BEFERBETR 14,871 22,283
Effect of revaluations of assets EHEENBGTE
for toxation purposes (6,057) (7,735)
Withholding tax BT IR 3,660 3,962
Others HA 181,728 196,049
1,708,579 2,039,687
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2021

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting:

FEUBHRFRMEE
—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

F R
FEREFIEINGR (GEA) A THER -

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
S$ S$
¥ hn3% 7T N3 T
Depreciation of property, ME - WELREITE
plant and equipment 1,702,525 1,724,916
Annual audit fees: FERHER:
— Paid to auditors of the Company — XN FARBZEE 176,500 169,000
- Paid to other auditors — X FH AL ERRD 31,780 28,888
Non-audit fees: BB
- Paid to other auditors — S F E A EAD 5,513 18,080
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EES (MIEE10) 3,463,906 3,515,000
Other staff costs Hfh B TR
- Salaries and other benéefits e kEMET 6,267,262 6,366,446
— Contributions to CPF and EPF —HRAEENEEAESHER 502,821 483,573
Total staff costs 488 TR A 10,233,989 10,365,019
Inventories recognised as cost of sales HRAHEERANTE 39,441,065 43,009,326
Gross rental income from investment property 2 & )55 8910 & W A 4858 (32,211) (11,818

RiEFFRIZNEEEBIRER
(RBEBRPHRELRNFEIOSRNRTEHE)

Amount recognised in profit or loss relating fo leases

[Disclosure required by IFRS 16)

2021 2020

—EB-—F =S

S$ S$

¥ h03% T Frnig T

Depreciation expense on rightofuse assets  FREEEFTEEF 195,147 195,762
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEFNERX 75,411 74,024
Expense relating to shortterm leases CHEFHEMRBRX 46,892 25,198

The total cash outflow for leases amount to S$299,617 (2020: HEZRESMEREER20006178 FE T
5$279,070). (ZZE=ZTF 2790705 ML) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —E-—F+-A=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEM 4L R 12 H

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company AEBEBETEBENKENEARREEH
by entities comprising the Group are as follows: BT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z_—H+-A=1t—HLEE
Contributions
Discretionary  Salaries and ~ to retirement
Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Total
EHRER
e [ FE K2R BE LA st
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
33 T 33 T 3N T g 33 T
Executive Directors BITEE
M. lawrence Lim MAERE - 478,356 561,942 12,360 1,052,658
Mr. Winston Lim MEFRE - 478,356 561,942 9,480 1,049,778
Ms. Sandy Lim ML - 478,356 546,342 9,480 1,034,178
M. lim Seng Chye WER A = 88,111 128,475 17,340 233,926

Independent Non-Executive BIFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chan Ka Yu BRFEE 31,122 - - - 31,122
Mr. Lee Yan Fai ZEETE 31,122 - = - 31,122
Mr. Chew Keat Yeow [EERELAE 31,122 - = = 31,122

03,366 1,523,179 1,798,701 48,660 3,463,906
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FEMFBHmTRMEE
31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' 10 EEMAL REEHFM
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEME w
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZT-ZTF+-A=1+—HILFE
Contributions
Discrefionary  Salaries and fo refirement
Fees bonus allowances  benefit scheme Total
RIREF
e WL e k2 AR @Er
S$ s$ s$ s$ $$
T g g T i) 1B
Executive Directors BITES
M. lawrence Lim WHELE = 570,003 467,378 13,260 1,050,731
Mr. Winston Lim MFEFEE = 570,003 467,378 9,180 1,046,651
Ms. Sandy Lim WL - 570,093 451,778 9,180 1,031,051
Mr. lim Seng Chye WER A S 99,300 131,230 17,340 247,870
Mr. Zhang Junli (Note] REELE (&) = - 42,676 - 42,676

Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Chan Ka Yu BRFEE 32,007 = = = 32,007

M. lee Yan Fai TERELE 32,007 - - - 32,007

Mr. Chew Keat Yeow AR A 32,007 - - - 32,007
96,021 1,809,579 1,560,440 48,960 3,515,000

Note: Mr Zhang Junli has resigned as a executive director on 31 May ME: RECBAEER-ZT_—FRA=1+-—

2021. HEERTES-

No chief executive had been appointed during the years ended BE_Z_—FRkR_Z_FF+_H

31 December 2021 and 2020. =+—HIEFE TEEEESTHRAR-

Discretionary bonus was determined by reference to the duties BBREANKE2ZRBALIRAEENRE

and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group BERBEEURARRBINRBRERE -

and the Group's performance.
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No other retirement benefits were paid to directors of the
Company in respect of their respective services in connectfion with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Employees’ remuneration

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
four (2020: four] were directors of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021

in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining one

whose emoluments are included

(2020: one) individual was as follows:

10

EEMEREEFM o

EEME w0
BMEERANZEERNEEARASHN B
NANEEMRENREM ARSI ME
o RARIE T o

EXFATRBTEENOMENHREERR
REARAEEEBARERRBE M AT -

EXFARELERITETOME IREF
BEARBESMEHRMRE M-

& & % N
BHE-_EZ--—-F+-_A=+—B1LtEE"
rEEBREZESHFMALFR HH(ZE=
TE MB)AARFREE FENISH
REXBEZR - BT —R(ZE_ZF:—%F)
AT R F BT -

2021 2020

—EB-—F —EEHF

S$ S$

¥ b3 T ¥t

Salaries and allowances Fre KOER 150,651 153,000
Discretionary bonus FEIEAT 90,000 90,000
Contributions to refirement benefits scheme  BAREFIFT L 5K 7,650 7,650
248,301 250,650
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10 DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'

11

EMOLUME NTS (Continued)

Employees’ remuneration (Confinued)

The emoluments of five highest paid individuals (including
directors) fall within the following bands:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2021 —E-—%F+=H

10 EEMEREEFHFMHN w

EBEEHM =

hEEEHMAL (R
NS

=+-8

BRES) cHHEE

Number of Employees

EEAZ

2021 2020
:g:-qﬁ — 7 E'E

Emolument bands i i &2 =
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001%& L2 1,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7t 26,000,000/ 7T 1 3
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7 26,500,000/ 7T 2 =
5 5

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals {including direcfors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. None of the direcfors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended

31 December 2021 and 2020.
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company (S$) (¥ hnsoT)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

Basic earnings per share (S$ cents)

11

BERTEBBINEFHH

FRERBR (F0E D

BHE-_Z-_—Fk=ZZT=FF+=H
—t+t—HLEFE AEESERRRRES
A ERe WAL (BEEERES)X
FERFB EAMAARER P INALRE
BN RBSIERAEREE B E T = —
FR-ZZBE-FFF+-_A=Z+—HLFE:
MEEZRENRENETAHH-

ARG ARAEFE T

BREF

2021 2020

—E-—F —_E-F
S$ S$
03 7T AN 7T
3,423,115 6,830,819
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
0.34 0.68

The calculation of basic eamings per share for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 is based on the profit for the
year affributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of shares in issue.

No diluted earnings per share were presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended

31 December 2021 and 2020.

HE-_Z_-_—FR-_Z_ZFF+ A
=+ BULEE BRERBIDEREAR
RIEE ATEMEFE NG R N B 317 R hnE
FHEETE -

HRAEEREE S -_—FR_ZT_ZF

FT_A=+—"RLFEIEELED BT
TRk Y EZ7|SREERA -
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FEMFHRTRMEE
31 December 2021 —E-—4®F+_-_A=+—H

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥ -BERRZRE

Leasehold Freehold Freehold  Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building land building  machinery  and fittings vehicles i progress Total
KAEE  KA%E
HERF T BT HBRER#ZE HAREE 5§ #HPIR EHY
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
Mg T R AT st Fn Sign BnEn
Cost or valuation: RS fEE:
At 1 January 2020 R=B=%F
-A-H 6,900,000 4,197,300 2,650,062 10,696,078 3,809,105 1,283,956 - 29,536,501
Transferred from investment BRANEER
property {Note 14) (HizE14) = 672,956 607,300 = = S - 1,280,256
Additions NE S = = 921,586 = 26921 1012126 1,960,633
Disposal HE S = = (35,000 = = = (35,000)
Revaluation loss EHER (200,000]  {196,906) (65,711) S = = - [462,617)
Exchange difference A8 - 4130 3,531 8,803 939 160 3,482 21,045
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2F
+=ZA=+—-8 6700000 4,677,480 3,195182 11591467 3,810,044 1,311,037 1,015608 32,300,818
Additions NE - = - 2,346,252 154,329 219,922 485870 3,206,373
Disposals L& - = = (11,674] = (61,698) = 73,372)
Reclassification BFNE = = - - 384,387 - (384,387 -
Revaluation gain/(loss) BiEE/ (FE) (100,000 90,799 (58,371) - - - - 167,572)
Exchange difference ELER = (81,103) (55,187) (183,912 (27,677) (4,792) (17,759)  (370,430)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
+ZRA=+t-8B 6,600,000 4,687,176 3,081,624 13742133 4,321,083 1464469 1,099,332 34995817
Comprising: B
At 31 December 2020 RZB=2F
+ZA=t+-H
At cost B AR - = - 11,591,467 3810044 1,311,037 1015608 17,728,156
At valuation BHER 6,700,000 4,677,480 3,195,182 = = = - 14,572,662
6,700,000 4,677,480 3,195,182 11591467 3,810,044 1,311,037 1,015,608 32,300,818
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%
+=B=1-A
At cost B ARG = = - 13,742,133 4,321,083 1,464,469 1,099,332 20,627,017
At valuation &I ER 6,600,000 4,687,176 3,081,624 S = S - 14,368,800
6,600,000 4,687,176 3,081,624 13,742,133 4,321,083 1,464,469 1,099,332 34995817
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 12 ¥ -BERREREw®
Leasehold Freehold Freehold  Plant and Furniture Motor  Renovation
building land building  machinery  and fittings vehicles in progress Total
KARE  XARE
HERTF i BF HERRHE HKARKE BH BHTIR #st
s$ s$ s$ s$ s$ s$ 5% s$

MIET  IRT O MIBRT O MNRT O MIET MBI M MR

Accumulated depreciation: R E:

At 1 January 2020 R=B=2F

-A-H S S - 7030868 1691720 1,044,590 - 9,767,178
Charge for the year FRFEAX 287,496 - 77,889 935,004 311,458 112,979 - 1724916
Disposal HE - - - (34,444) - - - (34,444)
Exchange difference R AR = - 2] 6,776 778 204 - 7779
Eliminated on revaluation BIEKEHE (287,496 - (77,910 - - - - (365,400)
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-E%

+=ZA=+-H S = - 7938294 200395 1157773 - 11,100,023
Charge for the year FRFAX 287,496 - 83,226 916,261 320,688 04,854 - 1,702,525
Disposal HE - = = (8,950) = (52,428 - 61,378)
Exchonge diference B3 25 - - S w457 M7 s VYAE]
Eliminated on revaluation BEKEH (287,496 - (83,226) - - - - [370,722)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--%

+=ZA=+-H = = - 8,718,148 2312927 11950655 - 12,226,730
Carrying amounts: REE:
At 31 December 2021 WZB-—%

TZA=+—B 6600000 4687176 3,081,624 5023985 2,008,156 2683814 1,099,332 22,769,087

At 31 December 2020 RZZ_FF
TZA=+t—H 6,700,000 4,677,480 3195182 3653173 1,806,088 153,264 1,015,608 21,200,795
The above items of property, plant and equipment (except for Py -BEEREEE (TEEKAE
freehold land and renovation in progress) are depreciated on W FEITTR B TR ) HEE BRI
a straightline basis at the following useful lives after taking into BEERTIANERFHANABERETE
account the residual values: E:
leasehold building - Over the land lease term till 2044 HEBF - RIwBHEHANEZR
(Note) GES; —TmEEF
Freehold building - 50 vears KAREETFT —  50F
Plant and machinery - 10 vyears BB N & 104F
Furniture and fittings = 3-10 years RARKE 3Z10%F
Motor vehicles - 5 years B 5%
Note:  The building which is owned by the Group is located on MiE: AEEEANEFLER-—BERZ=2Z
a leasehold land expiring in 2044. The leasehold land is Y E S BRI EE i F o AHE T
separately recognised as rightof-use assef in Nofe 13. RHE I3 EBRRAREAEEE -
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 ¥ -BERSEZEw

The Group has pledged leasehold building, freehold land and
building with carrying amount of $$12,491,340 to secure
general banking faciliies granted to the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2021 (2020: S$12,744,493).

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and
buildings

The Group's land and buildings are stated at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation. For year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers not related to the Group, Premas Valuers &
Property Consultants Pe ltd and MacReal International (|B) Sdn.
Bhd., who have appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the fair value measurement of the properties in the relevant
locations, to perform the valuation as at 31 December 2021
and 2020. Management has assessed that the key inputs and
assumptions used by the valuers for valuation dafe 31 December
2021 and 2020 remain applicable and reasonable as at year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards.
Where the external valuer is engaged, the management of
the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers 1o
establish the appropriate valuation fechniques and inputs to the
model.

The fair value of the land and buildings were determined based
on either the transaction price and/or the direct comparison
approach that reflects relevant transaction prices for similar
properties, adjusted for differences in the nature, location and
condition of the land under review. There has been no change to
the valuation technique used during the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group's land and
bUiIdiﬂgS (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value as ot

RATEEZATE
Valuation
2021 2020 Technique
—BC--F ZZCRE fhERH
S$ S$
;KT Eip
Level 3
E
leasehold building: 6,600,000 6,700,000 Direct comparison
255 Pandan Loop, Singapore approach
HERT: BERUBE
255 Pandan Loop, Singapore
Freehold building A: 1,068,210 1,103,490 Direct comparison
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
KAERETFA BERLBE
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrion
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
Freehold building B 776,880 839,970 Direct comparison
No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
KASEETFD BERUBE
No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mclaysia
Freehold building C 647,400 658,802 Direct comparison
No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
KARRETFC ERLBE

No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrion
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia

FEMBRRME
—%+=A=+—8

=

31 December 2021

12 ¥ -BERREREw®
AEELTHREFNATFETE@w

I\
e

ZEMERN

ISERIRAS-SE R E /NSRS
EeBEMRERGRAERKRE-

o

Sensitivity
HEE

Significant unobservable input

EATUBRBARE

Averoge market price of 2021: $$261.89 (2020: 5§265.85) per
square feet offer adjusfing for age, location, condifion and surrounding

The higher the market
price, the higher the

faciliy. fair value.
mgeR B MRRARREARRETARIATES: mEdE ATEY
ZEC 061 QOMMETT (B 265 85 MBKT) e

Average market price of 2021: $$26.16 [2020: $$27.02) per square
feet after adjusfing for age, location, condifion and surrounding

faciliy.

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair value.

mELS ATEL

astenk g RARBERERBLETHRTYTES:

ZRC-F: 26060 MER (ZF2FF: 7,000 MKTT) - Be

Average market price of 2021: $$27.96 [2020: $$30.23] per square  The higher the market
feet after adjusfing for age, location, condition and surrounding price, the higher the
facilty. fair valve.

eSS ATEL

E]o

SRR B RAREEREABLETARTEMES:
ZE 7 068 T (Z T T 30.238 I )

Average market price of 2021: $$23.30 [2020: $$23.71) per square
feet dffer adjusfing for age, location, condifion and surrounding

faciliy.

The higher the market
price, the higher the
fair value.

mEds ATEY

=

anER B RAREARREARGSTARTSNES:
—E 3308 KT (C B BE 23715 KT )
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2021 Z—ZE=—

F+-—A=+—H

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s land and

buildings (Continued)

Fair value as at

12 ¥ -BERZRE®

AEETHREFNATFETE@W

RUTEEZATE
Voluation
2021 2020 Technique Significant unobservable input Sensitivity
—8=-F “RCRE fHERE EATUBRBARE HEE
S S$
MR R
Freehold building D 589,134 592,920 Direct comparison  Average market price of 2021: $$43.37 [2020: $$43.65) per square  The higher the market
No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman approach feet after adjusfing for age, location, condifion and surrounding price, the higher the
Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, faciliy. fair value.
Johor Darul Tokzim, Malaysia
KAXERTD ERHEE ARk LE WARERREARRETARTATES: mEdS ATEYS
No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman ZEC-E 3 S7EMET (ZE B E 43055 MET) o B
Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram,
Johor Darul Tokzim, Malaysia
Freehold lond A 1,618,500 1,647,000 Direct comparison  Average markef price of 2021: $§25.62 [2020: $$26.08] per squore  The higher the market
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindusfrian approach feet after adjusfing for age, location, condifion and surrounding price, the higher the
Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, faciliy. fair volue
Mlaysia
KARBLHA ERNRE Eogk B RAREEREAREETARTHHER: mEds ATEE
No. 7, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian ZEZ-F 5 020 MBET (2S5 F : 20085 MK ) ° &e
Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
Freehold land B 1,230,060 1,169,370 Direct comparison  Average market price of 2021: $§28.22 (2020: $§26.82) per square  The higher the market
No. 8, Jalan Isfimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian approach feet after adjusfing for age, location, condiion and surrounding price, the higher the
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, faciliy. fair volue.
Mlaysia
KARELHB ERHEE ARk LE WARERREARRETARTATES: mEdS ATEYE
No. 8, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrion CECF 0820 (ZS 2 BE 26825 ML) ER
Cemerlang 81800 Uly Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
Freehold land C 1,230,060 1,169,370  Direct comparison  Average markef price of 2021: $§28.22 [2020: $$26.82) per squore  The higher the market
No. 6, Jalan Isfimewa 1, Taman Perindusirian opproach feet after adjusfing for age, location, condiion and surrounding price, the higher the
Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, faciliy. fair volue
Mlaysia
KARBLHC ERNRE Eogk B RAREEREAREETARTHHER: mEds ATEE
No. 6, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian ZEI-F 08200 M (2B 2R F 20828 MK L) ° Be
Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Mlaysia
Freehold land D 608,556 691,740 Direct comparison  Average market price of 2021: $$31.96 [2020: $$36.33] per square  The higher the market
No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman approach feet after adjusfing for age, location, condiion and surrounding price, the higher the
Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram, faciliy. fair value.
Johor Darul Tokzim, Malaysia
KARBLHD ERHEE ARk LE WAREARREARRETARTATES: mEdS ATES
No. 6, Jalan Maju Cemerlang 3, Taman B3] 06 BT (B EE 36 33 M) - =
Perindustrion Maju Cemerlang 81800 Ul Tiram,
Johor Darul Tokzim, Malaysia
14,368,800 14,572,662
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

13

Fair value measurement of the Group's land and
buildings (Continued)

Any significant isolated changes fo the inputs would result in a
significant change in fair value measurement.

The properties’ fair value hierarchy is based on level 3, and
there were no fransfers between the fair value hierarchy levels
during the year.

Had the properties been carried under the cost model, the
carrying amounts of the properties would have been the

following:

Under cost model REAEAIET
Leasehold building HEBT
Freehold building KAKEEF
Freehold land KA

FEMBRTMEE
31 December 2021 —E-—F+-HA=+—H
12 ¥ -BERREREw®

AEELTHREFNATFETE@w

BABBNETEEEASBERAT
EHENEARD

MERAFERBRDERE=BHL BENF
N AFEBRZELEHRES -

M E UK AER T2 B ENREEN
T

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
S$ S$

03 T AN T
383,332 400,000
2,446,561 2,550,555

2,784,598 2,833,632

5,614,491 5,784,187

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE)

The Group leases leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation
for staff and motor vehicle. The lease term is in range of 2 to 30
years, some with average option fo extend 2 years.

13

CREEE(XKEFREH
A)
AEEEAEELH AF BIEERE
W BN FOF B30F  HEBH A EE
FEHF -
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE)

(Continued)

The Group has no options to purchase any of its leased assets af
the end of the lease term. Other than the leased motor vehicle,
the Group's obligations are not secured by the lessors' title to the

13 ERREE (AEEFEREEAN)
(%)
7SR 50 T O R AR R (T
AEAE-RESEM FEE2BEL
EALAASERBE 2 HELENEE

leased assets for such leases. E A -
Leasehold Motor
land Warehouses  Accommodation vehicle Total
HELH RE BE EH @t
S$ s$ S$ s$ s$
g gL EiiIb g g
Group r5E
Cost: B
At T January 2020 R-Z-ZF¥—f—H 1,007,252 478,468 248,782 105,789 1,790,291
Additions NE = 111,053 21,433 - 132,486
Written Off il = = (12,622) = 12,622
Exchange difference EXER = 643 119 = 762
At 31 December 2020 RZT-ZF
+-A=+—H 1,007,252 540,164 257,712 105,789 1,910,917
Additions NE S 101,970 96,561 - 198,531
Exchange difference R - (9,530) (2,748) - (12,278)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%F
+-A=+—H 1,007,252 632,604 351,525 105,789 2097170
Accumulated depreciation: R HE:
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZF—f—H 181,864 206,921 119,802 105,789 614,376
Charge for the year FRHEX 33,575 107,138 55,049 - 195,762
Written Off s - = (12,622) - (12,622
Exchange difference ERER = 494 96 = 590
At 31 December 2020 RZT-ZF
+-A=+—H 215,439 314,553 162,325 105,789 798,106
Charge for the year ERHY 33,575 105,836 55,736 - 195,147
Exchange difference (R - 15,633 (1,416) - 7,049
At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—4F
+-A=+—H 249,014 414,756 216,645 105,789 986,204
Carrying amount: BREE:
At 31 December 2021 RZZB=—
+-A=+—H 758,238 217,848 134,880 - 1,110,966
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF
+-A=+—H 791813 225,611 95,387 = 1,112,811
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (GROUP AS A LESSEE) 13 fFRAREEE (AEBEEAAHEAN)

(Continued) (&)

HE_Z-_—4+_A=+—HLFE" H
REEETRERES —S-—FFHA#E
BEEHMIOSSINFMBFIT(ZE_FF:
132,486 03 L) °

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there are
additions of right-of-use assets of $$198,531 in 2021
(2020: S$132,486) from cerfain leases for warehouses and

accommodation.

At 31 December 2021, the Group is committed to S5$14,832
(2020: S$35,864) for short term leases.

RZBE-Z—F+-_A=+—8 AE@ZE
HHEERERI4832FMFE T (T ==
35,864k oT) ©

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14 REY=

Completed
investment
property
EXIREWE
S$
¥ o

At fair value: BATE:
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZEBE-_TF— A —BHN&EH 1,283,880
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 12) BREYE WEKEE (KE12) (1,280,256)
Exchange difference PE =58 (3,624)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZE_EF+_A=1+—BW#Ee =
Additions NE 2,346,676
Loss from fair value adjustment (Note 6b) NEEFREEE (MiFob) (264,779)
Exchange difference PE 5 =% (3,743)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZBE-_—F+_A=1+—BH&% 2,078,154
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

14

INVESTMENT PROPERTY' (Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group's investment
property

The Group's investment property is stated at fair value. The fair
volue measurements of the Group's investment property as af
31 December 2021 were performed by MacReal International
(B) Sdn Bhd, an independent valuer not related to the Group,
who has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
fair value measurement of the investment property in the relevant
location. The valuation conforms to International Valuation
Standards. Management has assessed the key inputs and
assumptions used by the valuers for valuation dafe 31 December
2021. The fair value of the investment property was determined
based on direct comparison approach that reflects relevant
fransaction prices for similar properties adjusted for age, location,
condition and surrounding facility. The investment property fair
value hierarchy is based on level 3, and there was no transfers
between the fair value hierarchy levels during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the property is
redesignated for the Group's own use, and transferred from
investment property fo property, plant and equipment.

Fair value as at

RUTEEZATE

14 BEWE w
AEEREVENAFEFTE

AEEREMEZAFEINE AEEE
EMER_ZE_—F+_A=+—H82R
FEFEHERNEE W EBHNB G
{EETMacReal International (|B) Sdn Bhdi1T
HEHEBESEE R BREAMEREDEE
TRV EFERI LR  ZHEFTE R
HEER -BEEECHHEMNR T =_—F
T A=+ HAGHERHERANEZH A
IR RBRBRETH G - REMEN A TER
BEELBEET ERMEER (LB iR
AR ESEEEAEENEUYENEBER
SER -BEMELATEERAEE=ZE B
FRNATEEHR 2B EmER -

NEE-F-FET-A=+—-BEE:
CUES Rt R T
ELESTEN 1T

2021 2020 Valuation Technique ~ Significant unobservable input Sensitivity

“E--F C—IZT-TF HEEM
S$ S$
M T FMH T

Level 3

$ZE

Investment property:

No. 3, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman 2,078,154 NA  Direct comparison
Perindustrian Cemerlang 81800 Ulu approach

Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, Malaysia

REME:

No. 3, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman TER ERLEE
Perindustrian Cemerlang 81800 Ulu

Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim, Malaysia

EXTAEERAYE HRE

Average market price of 2021: $$74.79  The higher the market price,
per square feet of gross floor area afier  the higher the fair value.
adjusting for age, location, condition
and surrounding facility.

Sk 1R RAURBERERRE TELE ATELE.
SEHRREERTYTES: =%
7479 MK
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

15 INVENTORIES 15 78
2021 2020
—E—— —E-FF
S$ S$
¥ b T ¥ o
Raw materials ER R 7,508,241 6,079,183
Packaging materials BEME 1,463,653 1,434,884
Work-in-progress RS 1,216,957 1,236,093
Finished goods BB i 2,182,855 1,886,635
12,371,706 10,636,795
16 TRADE RECEIVABLES 16 EZERIIE
2021 2020
—EB-—& —E-TF
S$ S$
F N3 7o N3 T
Trade receivables B 5 W FIE 12,818,625 13,156,360
As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables amounted to R-ZZE-_ZTF—F—H BZREKZKEAS

S$12,377,622.

The Group grants credit terms to customers typically ranging
from 7 to 60 days from the invoice date for trade receivables
and cerfain sales require payment in cash upon delivery. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented

12,377 6225 A3 T ©

AEERFEESREFRENERE AL

BTEFNF7EOOXE

o
aH

Hi-maE T

EEXNRINEURS MR- AT RERE

HIRBBEEBH (KL

REH) 27

based on the invoice date which approximated the revenue BE 5 IR BR iR D
recognition date at the end of each reporting period:

2021 2020
—F-—F —E-FHF
S$ S$
03 7T AN T
Within 30 days 30BA 7,158,711 8,003,947
31 days to 60 days 31HZEO6OH 4,552,030 4,045,961
61 days to 90 days 61HZEQOH 1,004,537 1,101,376
Q1 days to 180 days 91HZE180H 103,043 4,771
181 days fo one year 181HZE—% 304 305
12,818,625 13,156,360
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Confinved) 16 EZEWRIRIE @

The carrying values of trade receivables approximate its fair
values.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potfential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limit to each
cusfomer on individual basis. Limits affributed to customers are
reviewed when necessary. The maijority of the Group's accounts
receivables that are past due but not impaired have no history of
defaulting on repayment. As at the end of each reporting period,
the Group does not charge inferest nor hold any collateral over
the balances.

The Group applied the simplified approach to provide the
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9. The impairment
methodology is set out in Notes 3 and 28(b).

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
assesses the impairment for its customers based on different
group of customers which share common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms. There has been
no change in the estimation technique or significant assumption
made during the current reporting period.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on  hisforical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forwardooking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The directors of the Company
considered that the expected credit loss allowance is immaterial.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

17 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 17 HitpEWEIE -2 R A EhE
PREPAYMENTS

2021 2020
—E=-—F —T-FF
S$ S$
3 on3E T ¥ T
Current M ED
Advances to suppliers BT HERER 434,438 543,496
Advances to staffs MTEIHERR 3,000 3,000
Deposits (Note i) e (MIEED) 579,007 111,999
Prepayments TR RIE 103,092 116,870
Goods and services tax ("GST") receivables  FE UL B & K& IRFE T
(IEmREREH]) 103,937 11,258
Grant receivable & W 15 B = 68,603
Interest receivable FEULF B 28,318 15,851
Others (Note i EHab (FIFED) 1,151 1,151
1,252,943 872,228
Non-current IERE
Deposits for purchase of property, BEDE BELRREBNZRE
plant and equipment (Note ii) (B =Eii) - 493,384
Note: B sE -
(il The management considered that the ECL for deposits and others (i) EEERA RZTE_—FR-ZZT_ZF
is insignificant as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. TZA=+—B ZREREMHEREE
BRI TEK-
(i) Tofal purchase of property, plant and equipment for the year ended (i) B2 -_—F+-_A=+—HLFE"
31 December 2021 is $S$3,206,373 (Note 12) and $$493,384 BEYE BERREBLTEE3,206,373%
has been paid in the year ended 31 December 2020. 7T (M 5E12) 493,384%7 hnsk ot 0 48
BRECREE T _ZTF+_A=+—
HBIEFEXfTe
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

18 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18 fT4€mMIT A
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ N T
Foreign exchange option contracts AREP ST REBEPETHN
not designated in hedge accounting BRATEFENIINEHRES LD
relationships carried at fair value CFRamE
(Net seftled)
Current assets MBEE 41,957 4,545
Current liabilities nEaE (108,234) (237,308
(66,277) 232,763)

During the vyear, the Group had entered into several foreign
currency option contracts with banks and financial institutions fo
reduce ifs exposure to currency fluctuation risk of setlement from
frade payables that are denominated in Australian Dollar (*AUD")
or US Dollar ("USD"). These derivatives were not accounted
for under hedge accounting. The contracts are subject to net
sefflement af each maturity date and were measured at fair value
af the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBRRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+=-A=+—H
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  (continued) 18 fTHAE€MIAEw
The maijor terms of these foreign currency option contracts were ZEIINERRSNNERRTAT
as follows:
Foreign currency option contracts SNEHIRES Y
Notional Amount Maturity Date Exchange Rate
EREH ZEHA =
2021
—E-—F
Buy AUD and sell SGD:
BEABRTRBELF MK
AUD200,000 or AUD400,000 22 March 2022 S$1.015/AUD
200,000;8 75 3400,000/2 7t —E-_H=F-+=-H 10155 b T 1R T
Buy USD and sell SGD:
BAEZTRELF KT :
USD200,000 or USD400,000 15 June 2022 S$1.315/USD
200,0002& 7t 5400,000% 7T T FXA+HAA 1. 3158 TR 1% T
Buy AUD and sell SGD:
BABRTREBELFIKIT:
AUD200,000 or AUD400,000 15 June 2022 $$1.006/AUD
200,000} 7t 5400,000/2 7T T FXA+THA 1.006%T i3 7T 3 1R T
2020
— i
Buy USD and sell SGD:
BAZTRE LI IT:
USD200,000 or USD400,000 15 March 2021 S$1.3355/USD
200,0002& 7t 5400,000% 7T —E-—F=A+HAH 1.33555 TR 1 £ T
Buy USD and sell SGD:
BAZTRE LIS IT:
USD300,000 or USD60O,000 17 May 2021 S$1.3928/USD
300,0003 7T 5:600,000% 7T —E-FAA+LEHA 1.3928F MK T A 13T
Buy AUD and sell SGD:
BRI RE EE NI
AUDT00,000 or AUD200,000 15 June 2021 $$0.965/AUD
100,000} 7T, 5 200,000;2 7T —E—FXATHHA 0.Q655 N T H 1R T
Buy AUD and sell SGD:
BRI REEEF NI
AUDT00,000 or AUD200,000 15 November 2021 $$0.965/AUD
100,000} 7T, 5 200,000,2 7T —E—F+—H+HA 0.965% 1 I3 7T %, 1R T
The fair value of derivative financial instruments has been arrived PMESRTIEMNAFEERERITEE M
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at the end of the HENRERRATETZEEER

reporting period by banks and financial institutions.
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FEMFHRTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

19 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

19 RITEHRRE

2021 2020
== —E-EF
S$ S$
1 h0 3% T N T
Cash at banks R{TE S 17,750,524 20,872,974
Cash at hand FHEES 34,514 34,006
Bank deposits RITIE K 8,492,314 3,493,895
26,277,352 24,400,875
less: Fixed deposits with original BB R R =18 B AR
maturity more than 3 months TE BRTF 3R (8,000,000) (3,001,677)
Cash and cash equivalents in the HEBRERERANRES R
consolidated statement of cash flows HWEEEY 18,277,352 21,399,198

Other than fixed deposits of $$8,000,000 (2020:
$$3,001,677) which has maturity of one year {2020: between
six months and one year), the remaining bank deposits of the
Group represent shortterm bank deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less. Other than the bank deposits which carry
fixed interest rate, the bank balances carry inferest at variable
market rafes as follows:

Range of inferest rate per annum: FHXRBE:
Bank deposits RITIFHX
Bank balances RITREER

2021
—_E-—F

0.04% to 1.85%
0.04%%1.85%

0% to 1%
0%ZE1%

B-—F(CZ2_ZEF NFAREAZ—%F)
HA 7F B 77 3k8,000,000% iyt (ZF =
3,001,677 ITT) ) NEEEERIR
THEFXERBIHAR=ZEAXARNNE
HIRITER - BRRITERREE N XL
SN RITAEBRIR A T AT B IS M R G 8.

=

2020
—E-FF

0.1% to 3.1%
0.1%%3.1%
0% to 2.28%
0%%2.28%
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FEMIBRRMEE
31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+=-A=+—H
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BE5 R EMENKIER
2021 2020
=== —ZEETF
S$ s$
03 7T ¥ N T
Trade payables B 5 EMNFIE 4,603,668 3,151,033
Accrued operating expenses JEET 2 ERX 3,403,998 3,043,484
Other payables: H At A~ 5RIA -
— Deferred grant income — IR B W R - 110,833
— Advances from customers —EFBEAR 45,496 29,872
— Deposits received —Blizse 33,088 11,601
— GST payables — A RIS 155,714 172,304
— Others —HAfb 947,663 279,062
4,585,959 3,647,156
Total st 9,189,627 6,798,189
The credit period on purchases from suppliers is between 7 to 30 A ERRBNEERR/REIOR  HRN
days or payable upon delivery. At B A 2 o
The following is an aged analysis of frade payables presented NTRREREPRREZAHNEINE
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period: 5 R FRIABRER AT
2021 2020
— —ER-FH
S$ s$
03 7T AN T
Within 30 days 30BA 3,476,148 1,981,482
31 days to 90 days 31HZEQO0H 1,069,076 879,328
91 days to 180 days Q1HZE180H 58,444 290,223

4,603,668 3,151,033
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

21

LEASE LIABILITIES

21 HEAE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
S$ S$
03 7T ¥ N T
Within one year —FRK 190,882 180,756
Within a period of more than one year —FREMFRNERRE
buf not exceeding two years 158,590 143,074
Within a period of more than two years S SERTE L
but not exceeding five years 145,440 133,780
Over five years hFE 772,364 799,767
1,267,276 1,257,377
less: Amount due within one year W RREEEETIIRE
shown under current liabilities —FANEI A (190,882) (180,756
Amounts shown under non-current liabiliies R IEREN B EE 5 /RAIFIE 1,076,394 1,076,621

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard
fo its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within
the Group's finance function. The above represents leases for
leasehold land, warehouses, accommodation for staff and
motor vehicle of the Group. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate was 5.3% per annum. The Group's lease
does not contain variable lease payments and accordingly no
expense relating fo variable lease payments is included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. Certain leases of the Group
contain extension periods, for which the related lease payments
had been included in lease liabilities as the Group believes that
they will exercise these extension options.
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

22 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 22 RITRHEAMEBR
2021 2020
= —BoFF
S$ S$
% 7o N3 T
Secured at amortised cost BiEH (REBHEAATTE)

Bank loans SRITER 3,789,724 2,509,299

Less: Amount due for seftlement within R+ @A NEIH A E 08
12 months (725,115) (670,281)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+ @A BRI PEEFE 3,064,609 1,839,018

The above bank and other borrowings are sec

ured or guaranteed

by first legal morigage over the Group’s leasehold building,

freehold land and freehold building.

The carrying amounts of the above bank and other borrowings

ERRITREMEFAAEERER TN
R AEE T FOKAEEETOE D)

FE SRR RIS E AR

L SR1T N OE 18 SR BR A A T B

are repayable: (EXRIE
2021 2020
—2-—F —TTF
S$ S$
03 7T TN T
Within one year —FRX 725,115 670,281
Within a period of more than one year —F 1B E RN AR
but not exceeding two years 655,414 522,910
Within a period of more than two years M 1218 T 5 (A HRA A
buf not exceeding five years 1,569,762 932,287
Over five years R F% 839,433 383,821
3,789,724 2,509,299
The effective interest rates (which are equal to contracted inferest REBERZERFIE (JMESEREHFIE)
rates) of the Group's borrowings are as follows: LUNNE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF

Effective interest rates (per annum)
variable-rate bank borrowings

FRRITERZER ()M X

1.17% to 4.02%
1.17%%4.02%

2.48% to 5.02%
2.48%%5.02%

At 31 December 2021, the Group had available S$1,064,451
(2020: S$1,872,202) of undrawn committed borrowing
faciliies in respect of which all conditions precedent has been
met. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
cancelled the available facilities amounting to $$3,482,936.

RZE-Z—F+_A=+—8B ££H
EAEMASAARRERREA#ZEERE
7% 064 A5TFMPE L (ZE T F:
1,872,202% i3 oe) - 81 2 A RBE M BT B o
/?%ﬂMtFi’JELEX HE-_Z-_ZF+=A
=t+—HULFE AEECEEASARME
3,482 Q36T I T
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

23 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and the movements thereon:

23 EERERE

NTAREBRANEEEEHIEEBEREE
& :

Revaluation

of freehold

building,

freehold land
and investment Accelerated tax

property depreciation Total
KAKERT
KAFRELH
REBREMHE
EFfEE MNERRAE L
S$ S$ S$
¥ AN T AN T N T
As at 1 January 2020 W_ZE_ZTF—H—H 373,710 518,411 892,121
Credif fo other comprehensive RENTAEMEEEA
income for the year (Note 25) (MI5E25) (5,251) - (5,251)
Underprovision in prior year BEFERETR
(Note 8) (KzE8) = Q7,126 Q7,126
Credit to profit or loss RERNFTAER (FIEE8)
for the year (Nofe 8) (7,735) (66,292) (74,027)
Exchange difference ME S ERR 185 351 536
As at 31 December 2020 RZE_ZEF
+TZA=+—H 360,209 549,596 210,505
Credit to other comprehensive RENTAEME2EEA
income for the year (Note 25) (FizE25) 10,505 - 10,505
Underprovision in prior year BEFEEBTE
(Nofe 8) (P =E8) = 69,500 69,500
(Credit] charge to profit or loss R EF W (FrABE)
for the year (Notfe 8) Bk (FI5E8) 6,057) 125,003 118,946
Exchange difference fEHZE%R (6,254) (8,209) (14,463)
As at 31 December 2021 R-T-—F
+=ZRA=+—H 359,103 735,890 1,094,993

The deferred tax liabilities are resulted from temporary taxable
differences arising from (1) accelerated depreciation in relation
fo capifal allowance claims on qualified assets in accordance
with prevailing fax law in Singapore and Malaysia, and (2)
revaluation of freehold building, freehold land and investment
property in relation to the fair value uplift as computed by the
external valuers and the book value of the freehold building,
freehold land and investment property.
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FEMBImRME

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 BRA
Number of
shares Par value Share capital
RHOBE REE (&N
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised share capital of ARAVEERA :
the Company:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December  RZZE_FTF—H—H-
2020 and 2021 —BRER-F-_F
+-H=+—~H 5,000,000,000 0.01 50,000,000
Number of
shares  Share capital
RHEE &
$$
TN T
Issued and fully paid of the Company: RAFIBEETRER
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZE-_EF—H—H"
and 2021 —ECEFER-T_—F
+Z—HA=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,725,820
25 REVALUATION RESERVE 25 Efhf#EE

The revaluation reserve records increase in the fair value of
freehold land and buildings and leasehold building, net of tax,
and decrease to the extent that such decrease relate to increase

ERfHEESFEKAREL M EEF AR
BFRRFEE N MBI IE) - MR E
Hp RN EtmEEEENERNR—BE

on the same asset previously recognised in other comprehensive KRB -
income.
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
S$ S$
3 N3 7T TN T
At beginning of the year REA 11,676,998 11,768,958
Increase (Decrease) on revaluation of B KAEXEDEREEETF
freehold properties and leasehold building 2 3& 0 OF4>) 303,150 (97,211)
Deferred tax on revaluation of freehold BOKAE R E 2BELERIE
properties (Note 23) (FfH5E23) (10,505) 5,251
At end of the year RER 11,969,643 11,676,998
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31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

26 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 26 ERATIBBIRREREE
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
S$ S$
¥ hn 3% T TN T
ASSETS AND LIABILITY EEREE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBRRIZ®E 14 14
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 3,713,886 4,350,682
Other receivables H b fE Y IE 35,375 9,558
Bank balances and cash RITEHR RS 8,058,495 8,878,222
11,807,756 13,238,462
Current liability REEE
Other payables H At &S FRIR 786,905 160,950
786,905 160,950
Net current asset RBEEFE 11,020,851 13,077,512
Total assets less current liability, BWEERRBEG PEEFE
representing net assets 11,020,865 13,077,526
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves RA R #E
Share capifal (Note 24) A& A (Bt 5E24) 1,725,820 1,725,820
Share premium f& 10 &8 13,487,471 13,487,471
Accumulated losses REETEE (4,192,426) (2,135,765)
Equity attributable to owners of RATEEAELER
the Company 11,020,865 13,077,526
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FEMFBHmTRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

26 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 26 ZEATBBRAERRES o
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY  (Confinved)

A summary of the Company's share capital and reserves are as RAFHRAE R FEEEENT
follows:
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
(LN R0 E RitE#E Ast
S$ S$ S$ S$
IR CIIE e e
At T January 2020 R-B-EHE
—H—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (1,380,416] 13,832,875
Total comprehensive loss FAZHEREHE:
for the year:
— Loss for the year —FEREE - - (755,349) (755,349)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-2F
+=—B=+—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (2,135,765) 13,077,526
Total comprehensive loss FAZHEBREERE:
for the year:
— Loss for the year —FREE = = (2,056,661) (2,056,661)
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-—F
+=—A=+—H 1,725,820 13,487,471 (4,192,426) 11,020,865
27 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 27 BXREE
The Group manages ifs capifal to ensure that it will be able REEERAEER UBEREASEKEEESR
fo confinue as a going concern while maximising the return fo FEEE RREBE(CEEEER ZHN
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity FERRREREANDR  LHERAEEE
balance, and to ensure that all externally imposed capital SFRHRAINSEMAEARRE - BE_T-—
requirements are complied with. The Group's overall strategy FTZA=+—BIEFE AEENEESE
remains unchanged for year ended 31 December 2021. BE AR HF AN o
The capital sfructure of the Group consists of debt, which includes AEEBNERARBRESR (BT RERT
bank and other borrowings and equity attributable to owners of NEMER) ARAREBREEG ARLEER (2
the Group, comprising share capital and reserves. The Group is BRARFEE) EK - BE_T-_—FR=
in compliance with externally imposed capital requirements for Z_EFET_A=Z+—BHILEFE XEEB
P y 1mp P g
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. BFHNER AN B AR E -
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

27 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (confinved)

The management the Group review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management consider
the cost of capital and the associated risk with each class of
items in the context of capifal structure, and take appropriate
actions to adijust the Group's capital structure. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance ifs
overall capifal structure through continuity of funding of cash flows
from operating activities.

27 EXREE @

AEBERETHRIEANRE - ERREF
Hm—®y BEEBEEEEARBIAEEE
AR R EEFRIE B AR AR - WEREUE
ENERBABRAKENEARE - RIEEE
BHER AREKBAKEEEEH 2F
BRIREVYHHEERBEARE

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 €@ T ARUKERERE
MANAGEMENT
Categories of financial instruments TMIAEDE
2021 2020
=B —F —EEF
S$ S$
¥ N3 T s T
Financial assets ERMEE
— Amortised cost — B fE K
Trade receivables Z 5 W EIE 12,818,625 13,156,360
Other receivables and deposifs Hih el B ke 579,451 129,001
Bank balances and cash WITHEBNIRS 26,277,352 24,400,875
— FVIPL —ZnFEFGFAEZ
Derivative financial instruments TEemT A 41,957 4,545
39,717,385 37,690,781
2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
S$ S$
¥ N3 T b T
Financial liabilities Eot =R
— Amortised cost — B8k K
Trade and other payables B o5 NEMENFRIA 8,968,930 6,485,180
Bank and other borrowings RITRE MDA 3,789,724 2,509,299
— FVIPL —ZnFEFGFAEZ
Derivative financial instruments TEemT A 108,234 237,308
12,866,888 9,231,787
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31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 4R TERUMERKREE &

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, bank and other borrowings and derivative
financial instruments. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

[a)  Market risk management
Inferest rafe risk management

Inferest rafe risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Management has assessed
there is minimal exposure of the interest rate risk on the
variable rate bearing bank balances and bank and other
borrowings. It is the Group's policy fo raise borrowings at
fixed-rate or variable-rate according to business needs and
as o minimise the fair value and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an inferest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rafe risk
exposure and will consider inferest rate hedging should the
need arise.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
over the bank and other borrowings and all other variables
were held consfant, the Group's:

e Profit for year ended 31 December 2021 would
decrease/increase by S$10,504 (2020:
S$$10,126). This is mainly attributable to the
Croup's exposure o interest rafes on ifs variable rate
borrowings.

MBRREEEERBER

AEENTFECHTIAREEHEWIE-
HiEURER RS RITERLES &
7 REA R R - SRIT R EMERRITE
EMITR -ZFRITANFITSNIERM
ARE-EREFeRTIAGHENARBRED
SRk (MR MEERR) EERR
Ko E & E R o anfa P (K 5% % B B9 B R
FNTX -BEREERRERZERR LA
BERMBABBHNITEEEE-

() THIHERERE
Ve =

MERBRATHMNEEES K RE R
TRAZRAFEIRKEZRENIH
Rk RERENE FERITER
A R SR 17 B EL A 15 5K H e 69 1) 2 e ez
HM-AEEsBRERRBEEBRE
BEBNFEEERBF URERKE

RNFERREREN XER

7R 5 (88135 B 4R ) SRR R © PR -
EEEBERNEEAR UKL ER

ZRAETTH R E -

1I\Jlﬂ/fﬁf?&ﬁ1ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ\ﬁl\]ﬂﬂj$iﬂ-§k—ﬁﬁﬁ
SOIEES: - TIFA LB BRETE
RNEH:

s HE-_ZET-_—F+-_A=+—
B 1 F = /9% F w18 0
10,5045 i L (ZE =2 4F
10,1265 ML) EBERA
ESEmRZEERFIERR -
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(o) Market risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continved)

The directors of the Company consider the sensitivity
analysis fo be unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as
the exposure at the end of each reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

No sensitivity analysis is presented on the interest rate
risk on bank balances as the directors of the Company
considered that the exposure is minimal during the year.

Currency risk management

The Group fransacts business in various foreign currencies,
and has cerfain monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in US Dollar {“USD"), Australian Dollar (*AUD”), Hong Kong
Dollar {"HKD"), Malaysian Ringgit ("MYR"), Euro ("EUR"),
British Pound Sterling (“GBP”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”) other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities,
which exposes the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.

The carrying amounts of the significant Group's monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies af
the end of each reporting period are as below:

28 eRTEAERUMKRRERE w

BHEREEREREEm®

(a)

mERERER (@)
Fl = 2 g & FE (48)

ARAEERS AREBEHRD
(i N N = N s =
BN F R RERIT EAKM

HRARAREERRANFEMEE R
TTHRAENERREN RL LR
TTRHNXREBREGURE ST -

EEE R E 2

AEBATRINEETEBR S I
HmHETUET ([E7T]) R (DR
) B (DET]) BRAEZME
B (IHRBEMRTRH]) BT (TR
) EBE(TREDHRARE(TA
R#%]) (PFRREERNIEER)
FHENBREERBE SAKET
e SNEE LB

AEBBEETNERIINEERNES
EIEER -

REREHR AEEIASNEETED
TBREREERAGBNOKREENT

2021 2020
== T ETF
S$ S$
1 h0 3% T N T

Monetary assets EREE
— denominated in USD —AZEITEHE 1,842,394 1,176,271
— denominated in AUD —LUBRITEHE 4,030,903 126,969
— denominated in HKD — LB TTEHE 10,500,026 11,208,487
— denominated in MYR — B R EMNERFE - 853
16,373,323 12,512,580
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 4R TERUMERKREE &

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEZEREE @
(Continued)
(o) Market risk management (Continued) o) TMiZRAREIRE @)

Currency risk management (Continued) B E B (am)
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
S$ S$
#1037t AN 7T
Monetary liabilities BERaE
— denominated in USD —AETTEHE 2,262,921 860,386
— denominated in AUD —DUBRITEHE 435,118 606,747
— denominated in HKD — A TLETE 462,018 59,937
— denominated in MYR — LA SRS i Rt E 32,692 22,378
— denominated in EUR — ABUTEHE = 169,546
— denominated in GBP — A EEEEE 8,460 -
— denominated in RMB —UAREEHAE 692,596 -
3,893,805 1,718,994
The Group comprise of a number of invesiments in foreign REBEBINIERRERZIRRE -
subsidiaries, whose net assefs are exposed fo currency MZEFINHE R RN E EFE TR
translation risk. The Group does not currently designate its B BE 5 R o AN £R B IR B 3 B FE E
foreign currency denominated debt as a hedging instrument ASNEFHEM BB ERE M IR A
for the purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign B INETS O R o
operations.
Further details on the forward exchange derivative BHEEHINETET A ZE—TFE
instruments are found in Note 18 to the financial IR A B HRRMIZE8 -

statements.
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 ¢RI TERUMERBREE &

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERAREEEZEREE @
(Continued)
(o) Market risk management (Continued) (o) WMZRARER &)

Sensilivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the relevant foreign currencies against the
functional currency of each respective group entity. 10%
is the sensitivity rafte used when reporting foreign currency
risk infernally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetfary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensifivity analysis includes external loans where they gave
rise to an impact on the Group's profit or loss.

If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against
the functional currency of each Group entity, Group's profit
or loss during the year will increase [decrease] by:

Profit or loss i A 3 g 1

— USD impact —XTHE

— AUD impact —RTHE

— HKD impact — BT E

= MYR impact —SRATNEFTE
— EUR impact —BTeE

— GBP impact *Eﬁﬁ 2

— RMB impact —AREBRE

TRAMARINELSEEERNDY
%E%’iﬁ%ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ %R BREZ I
%%F%IW*BF?IEMEJ\E\E
WONERE R ERZHREL X TK
REEEHERAEHAZAEED
ZHE-BRESMEBREAREE L
SNEDIEE R IEAE TR EIRIEI0%
ZERESEFHELE - WS E R
AEBESELTE NGREDN
TREFEIMNBER

BRNEHASREERNIEERR
1E10%  RII A5 B A AN 68 2 & )i ) 3K
B R 0 CRid) -

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
S$ S$

03 T s T
28,051 (24,325)
(239,858) 36,946
(669,589) (858,505)
2,181 1,658

= 13,056

564 —
46,200 =
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(al

(b)

Market risk management (Continved)
Sensitivity analysis (Continved)

A 10% strengthening of relevant functional currency
against the above currencies would have had an equal
but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain

constant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
derivative investments in foreign currency forward and
option contracts. The foreign currency forward and option
confracts change with the exchange rafe and no sensitivity
analysis on such risk has been prepared as the directors
of the Group considered the carrying amount of derivative
instruments are insignificant fo the Group.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that o counterparty will default
on its confractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. At the end of reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure fo credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due fo failure to discharge an
obligation by the counferparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assefs as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk af
31 December 2021 on frade receivables from the Group's
top five major customers accounted for 79% (2020: 76%)
of the Group's trade receivables. The major customers of
the Group are certain reputable organisations.

31 December 2021

FEUBHRFRMEE
—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

28 R TEARUMKERRERE w

BEEREEEEREEm®

(a)

mZRRER (@
B Z T (%)

REMAELMEEERTE  HEED
BEERN D EBEI0%EH X
IrRERRELSRERRNTE -

w3

3

EEERR ARNFEBNINERR
Y AEERBRRAFEABHERR 8
GURE DT T RER KR E B HMNE R -

A 18187

REBE HERIMNE R ES NITER
& 1 [ e 2L (B AR R R o i HASNE I
HEAVBEXZES aRARAE
ER/TETANEEESAEEM
BXTEXR BAUEREERRRER
BURE DA

EERRER

EERREHFHERGHATER
AEBEFBERNER RREHK
AEBEAMEENEERAKREEALT
AEBTEEMELEMBERNRES
EERE  TIRANGE B BMRREK
PRSI EIRE R SR EEREE -

R-E-_—E+-F=+—0 K&
EEEREAEERAARFPNESE
WHRERNEPEERRE  HEREN
AEBEHERFEN/O%U(ZZE =
TFE76%) AEENETERFPAE
Tz 485 -
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk management (Continved)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company has delegated ifs finance team to develop and
mainfain the Group's credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according fo their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group's own hisforical repayment records fo rafe
its major customers and debtors. The Group's exposure
and the credit rafings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

The Group's current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

28 eRTEAERUMKRRERE w

BHEREEREREEm®

(b)

FERBRERE &)

REAREREFERR ARARE
SERREMBNDEE RGEFAE
B e (EE AR FRAREE QR RIE
EHEBETOE UK PEERR
A SHMMBERRARE A S BHE
ERCHHETIBERP MMEBAETT
FR-AEERBERABEERS
HBFNEETERBEEERR HHE
BEREREZXSHFRETOHE-

AEEREFNEERRFRERH A
TR :

Basis for recognising ECL

BRARHEEERENEE

12-month ECL (other than trade
receivables without significant
financing component)

12EAEHEEREE (TEE
ABEK D E ZEWFRIR
BR5M)

Lifetime ECLnot creditimpaired

E2HEHEEBR-BEER
{I=1

Lifetime ECl-creditimpaired
EHIFAREEBE -HLREE

R

Amount is written off

Category Description

Eobl) it

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any pastdue amounts.

R&f RHHEFEHARK 8RR KA

Doubitful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

] &¢ B R - E 5 AR B E LN

In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired.

EQN EPRRPAEEHREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery.

% 3H BERRRABHEABABRENHBRE B ALE
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31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 4R TERUMERKREE &
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEZEREE @
(Continued)
(b)  Credit risk management (Confinued) b) EERKREIE &)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group's TERFVNAEBEREENEEL R
financial assets, as well as the Group's maximum exposure NRZREERBITRESHAKEK
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. SiEERRE-
Internal credit Gross carrying
Note  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount !
ME RABEETR 12B5R2HEHEEEFE SREAZED
S$
3 03K T
2021
—E-—F
Trade receivables 16 (q) Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 12,818,625
g5 R (a) 2HRMEESE (FLRE)
Other receivables and deposits 17 Performing 12m ECL 579,451
Hh e IR R IR © R 2R RBEERE
13,398,076
2020
e 32
Trade receivables 16 |q Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 13,156,360
g5 RAFIR (a) FHRGEEEE (BLhE)
Other receivables and deposits 17 Performing 12m ECL 129,001
Hth e IR R IR © R 12 AFEHEEEE
13,285,361
(1) The gross carrying amount is equivalent fo the net (1] ARAEERBE_T_—F
carrying value as the Group has no loss allowance M_Z_ZEF+-_R=+—H
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. I FETEBERE SRmAE
RENREFHE -
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk management (Continued)

For frade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in IFRS @ fo measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
expected credit losses on these items by using an
analysis of assefs by risk level of customers, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
af the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For other receivables and deposits, the Group
has assessed the credit profile and background of
the counterparties and concluded that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of the counterparties
since initial recognition. The ECL for these financial
assefs is measured at 12-month ECL, which is
considered fo be insignificant based on the Group's
assessment on the risk of default of that counterparty.

Other than concentration of credit risk on bank deposits and

balances placed in 4 banks in which the counterparties

are financially sound and on trade receivables from top 5
customers, the Group has no other significant concentration
of credit risk on other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter

difficulties in meeting its financial obligations as and when
they fall due. In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monifors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management fo
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(c)

Liquidif\/ risk management (Continved)
Non-~derivative financial liabilities

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both inferest and principal cash flows.
The adjustment column represents the possible future cash
flows affributable fo the instrument included in the maturity
analysis which is not included in the carrying amount of the
financial |Iobi\if\/ on the consolidated statement of financial

FEMBImRME

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H
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position.
Weighted
average
effective  On demand or Within Carrying
inferest rate~ within 1year ~ 2to5years  Affer Syears  Adjusiments amount
ME¥s RERS,
BRAE RIER 2858 SE# il REE
$$ $$ $$ $$ 5§
R Eb o Eb o R Eb o
31 December 2021 R=B=-%
+ZR=1-H
Floating rate - bank and SRR R -SRI REM
other borrowings & 1.17%4.02% 774916 2,316,963 852,035 (154,190 3,789,724
Fixed rate - lease liabilfies BEME-HERR 5.30% 254,697 482,572 1,168,953 (638,946) 1,267,276
Trade and other payables BHREMENFE - 8,968,930 - - - 8,968,930
Tolal &5t 9,998,543 2,799,535 2,020,988 (793,136) 14,025,930
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 ¢RI TERUMERBREE &

MANAGEME NT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
[c)  Lliquidity risk management (Confinued)

Non-derivative financial liabilifies (Continved)

Weighted

average

BHEREEREREEm®

MEBESRRERE®

TR B E (#)

effeciive  On demand or Within Carrying
interestrate within 1year 210 Syears  Alfter 5 years Adjusiments amount
MEFS BEXH
BRI RIER 255F SER& HE BEE
8% 8% 89 89 89
R R R R MR
31 December 2020 RZB-%2F
+ZA=+-H
Floafing rate - bank and FEME-RTRAM
other borrowings B 2.48%5.02% 732,923 1,566,599 390,830 (181,053 2,509,299
Fixed rate - lease liabilities EEfx-HERE 5.30% 243,645 458,309 1,235,433 (680,010) 1,257,377
Trade and other payables EHREMEMNFE - 6,485,180 - - - 6,485,180
Tolal b 7,461,748 2,024,908 1,626,263 (861,063) 10,251,856

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable inferest rates differ from those estimates
of interest rates defermined at the end of the reporting
period.

Derivative financial liabilities and assets

All derivative financial liabilities and assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are due
within one year. Details of derivative financial liabilities and
assets are as disclosed in Note 18.
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31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 ¢RI TERUMERKREE
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEZEREE @

(Continued)

(d)  Fair value d) R¥E
Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financiol IR B EL N EE R
liabilities that are not measured at fair valve on recurring EETHEER TR BN FE
basis
The management of the Group considers that the carrying FEBERBERR RAaPB®mETP
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded BEER AT RENEREERERE
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BEMERABEBHEE AT ERS-

approximate fo their fair values.

Fair valve of the Group's financial assets and financial A I B EL LN FEFGTER A EEH
liabilities that are measured at fair valve on recurring basis THEERTHME BN FIE

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities rEEHX > eREERTBREBERNS
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting WEMRRATFEFE - TREIE
period. The following table gives information about how the B ETATRIAN A FEZ
fair values of derivative financial instruments are determined BEr(CHEEMEAMGHERSNT LG
(in particular, the valuation techniquel(s| and inputs used). ABIE) o
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIALRISK 28 ¢RI TERUMERBREE &
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERAREEEZEREE @

(Continued)

(d)  Fair value (Continued) d) 2XFE@m
Fair valve of the Group's financial assets and financial A E B E L NP EFE R A EE
liabilities that are measured at fair valve on recurring basis THEERTHE BN FIE &)
(Continued)

Fair value as at

RT3BEHz2AVE Significant
31 December 31 December  Fair value unobservable
2021 2020  hierarchy Valuation technique(s); and key input(s| input(s)
—EC--F ZTZEF
+=A +=A EXFABER@A
=t-H =+—-R AYEE# EERMRBARBARE L
$$ s$
3R AT
Assets: Assefs:  level 2 Fair value is based on spot exchange rates (from observable — N/A
Current - Curent- FZ& spot exchange rates af the end of the reporting period) and &M
41,957 4,545 contracted forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
BE: BE: credit risk of various counterparties.
- mE— RHELRAORER (RERESAROTERNAER) L L
41,957 4,545 TEBEXHE YRRBERFEFEERBNMEE
o
Liabilifies: liabilities:
Current - Current -
108,234 237,308
af: afE:
RB- mE—
108,234 237,308
There were no transfers between levels of the fair value RER RFEERZHLEHRE
hierarchy during the year. %o
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FEMIBRRMEE
31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+=-A=+—H
29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BBAERS
Some of the Group's transactions and arrangements are with AEEBETRGRLTHETIERBE TR
related parties and the effect of these on the basis determined RN EEREEITUNZER S R H
between the parties are reflected in these financials statements. W EN AR BHRRARR - BB T HERE
Related parties refer to entities in which directors of the Group EEENETHAER#ENER-
have a beneficial interest in it.
The Group entered into the following fransactions with related REED BRI ATRS
parties:
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
S$ s$
N3 T N T
Transactions with related parties BTN S
Rental charged (Note) BE@EE (M) (120,633) (122,117)
Note: This perfained to rental paid to Tai Sun Lim Kee Trading Sdn. Bhd. fizx: E8ELENFTai Sun lim Kee Trading
The Group leases warehouse buildings for an average lease term of Sdn. BhdW & FHA-KNEEHEER
2 years with an opfion fo extend another 12 months. In current year, EEFNTHHEPAEME L a]EE
the rental charged amounted to $$120,633 (2020: S$122,117) BTEHI2EA-RAFE - REME
pursuant fo the lease agreements. Under IFRS 16, the Group EHMZEHES A120,0633F M T
recognised ROU asset of S$217,848 (2020: S$225,611) (ZZEZZF 1221178 m%x) »
and lease liability of $$228,377 (2020: $$236,322) as BREBRBRTBEREEREIONR A&
at 31 December 2021. Correspondingly, a depreciation R-ZB-_—F+-A=+—-HH®ER
of $$105,836 (2020: S$107,138) and finance cost of ERAEEE27,848%5 MIET (= F
S$18,659 (2020: S$18,586) were recognised during the TEFE5611HME T REES
current year. fE228 377 MK T (T T F:

236,322%T AN TT) - EFEH - REBR
NEERERITE05,836F M T (=
T-FTE:107,138F MK T) KA E
AR18,65908 ML T (ZE_FF:
18,5865 i 7T )
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31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the years were as follows:

29 BEBARSZ wm

EELEMEBEEABRMEFENF
B 5T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
S$ S$
¥ h03% T s T
Short term benefits 52 HR 4@ A 4,587,729 4,245,596
Postemployment benefits BEER 1248 A 119,040 105,435
4,706,769 4,351,031
30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 30 EKBEFETE

As prescribed by the Central Provident Fund Board of Singapore
and Employees Provident Fund of Malaysia, the Group's
employees employed in Singapore and Malaysia respectively,
who are Singapore Citizens or Permanent Residents and
Malaysian Citizens or Permanent Residents, are required fo
join the CPF and EPF scheme respectively. For the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group contributes up fo
17% and 13% of the eligible employees’ salaries to the CPF and
EPF scheme, with each employee's qualifying salary capped af
$$6,000 per month and no cap respectively.

The total costs charged to profit or loss, amounting to
S$551,481 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
S$532,533), represent contributions paid to the refirement
benefits scheme by the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, contributions of $$144,436 (2020:
S$161,762) were accrued. The amounts were paid subsequent
fo the end of the period.
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31

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The fable below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

FEMBImRME

31 December 2021 —ZTE-_—F+=-A=+—H

31 MEEHMEAREBENYHE

TREJAKEERELDIELAEN
HEHFE BRASMIFRSEY -HER
PRELRABERERABRNAEESZAR
ERERNDBABRERDMELRSRE
MRERERRKREREZAE-

Bank Lease

borrowings liabilities Total

RITER HEAE st

S$ S$ S$

T s T s o

At 1 January 2020 RZE_TF—H—H 2,750,495 1,312,300 4,062,795

Financing cash flows MERERE (315,373) (253,872) (569,245)

Non-cash changes FREBE

New lease liabilities FHEARE - 132,486 132,486

lease modification gain HE sk - (5,423) (5,423)
Finance costs recognised EHRARMEXAR (M)

(Note /) 74177 74,519 148,696
Exchange difference fEH =% - (2,633) (2,633)
At 31 December 2020 RZZTEZETF

+=-—A=+—H 2,509,299 1,257,377 3,766,676
Financing cash flows MERESRE 1,229,209 (252,725) Q76,484
Non-cash changes FRTRE
New lease liabilities FHEAR = 198,531 198,531
lease modification gain ME B - (5,832) (5,832)
Finance costs recognised (Note 7) B HEREE KA (HFE7) 51,216 75,411 126,627
Exchange difference PE R ZER - (5,4806) (5,486
At 31 December 2021 R —F

+=—A=+—H 3,789,724 1,267,276 5,057,000
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FEMBImRMEE

31 December 2021 —ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H

32 PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are sef out

below.

Name

L]

Tai Sun Holding Limited
("TSH')
Tai Sun Holding Limited
(ITSH1)

188
188

TSF
TSF

TZF
TZF

TS Group Investment Limited
('TSCI')
TS Group Investment Limited
([TSGI1)

ZC China limited ("ZCC")
ZC China limited
(fzech)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

Place of
incorporation/
operation
EMARL
Eenwk

BVI
RBRAME
Singapore
s
Malaysia
HRAE:

Malaysia
BRAEE

BVI

E7) e

Hong Kong
BA

Paid up issued capital

BERE
us$10
10%7T

$$300,000
300,000%7 i3 7T
MYR 2,300,000
2,300,000
SRADHER
MYR 500,000
500,000
SRATHER
Us$1

[E

HKD 1
18T
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32 MEBATRIFE
ARBRZF-_—FR-_F-_FF+_-A
ST -HEERBMERAONBARFE
HHWT e
Group's effective Held by the
inferest Company  Principal activifies
AEEN LN
BRER FEREE TEER
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% - Packing and refailing of food products
RmBERTE
100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dealers in nuts
BREER REBHLIRHE
100% - Producers, manufacturers of and dedlers in chips
EREER RERNRSH
100% - Inactive
EmeE
100% - Inactive
EELE

Bt :

BENBARARFERBETENEESE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2021

FEUBHRFRMEE
—E-—F+=ZA=+—H

BANKERS" GUARANTEES 33 MRITER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEETF
S$ S$
¥ b T ¥ o
Bankers' guarantees with cusfomers RITHEPAER 129,769 269,213
The balances represent the performance guarantee provided by EREBEASEUNETRP R ARH
the Group in favour fo its customers. RIBAER-
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34 BRESE

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written
resolution passed by the shareholder of the Company on
20 December 2018 [the “Share Option Scheme”), the Company
may grant options fo eligible directors of the Group, eligible
employees of the Group and other selected participants, for the
recognition of their contributions, fo subscribe for shares in the
Company with a payment of HK$1 upon each grant of options
offered.

The exercise price of the share opfion will be not less than the
highest of:

[i)  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date (the
"Offer Date”) of grant of the particular option, which must
be a business day;

[i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date of the
option; and

liii)  the nominal value of a share on the Offer Date.

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period
of not more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to
the terms and condifions of the Share Option Scheme, or any
conditions sfipulated by the Board of Directors.

BREARRARRR-_ZE-NF+_A-+
38 38 B & DR 3 5 P A 0 B AR AT B
(MEREE ) ARAARAEESE
REF AEREERAMEET2EERH
BREASERSNER REIREEKR
RN ETTARBARRRD -

BREZTEETSERATRRE

) REOESTBREZA ([ZHEH]-
ARERXRB)EBXMEBRARERN
HEORRARRH UK E :

(i) EXBREEHHHMAEZXAHE
B 32 P B RE RO FH WK
mE: &

(i) MEBHBHNROHEE-
RIBBIRET S 2GR R G REFTEH

FTE AR - AR AT RN T B B AR R
THRIB 1 F 2 B A BERF 1T o
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34

35

36

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares
of Company. Unless further shareholders’ approval has been
obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Share Option
Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which, if all the
options granfed to the person (including both exercised and
outstanding options] in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum
entilement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of
Company.

Up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, no options have been granted or agreed fo be
granted pursuant fo the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share opfions
have been granted nor exercised and there is no outstanding
share option of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

34 BBRETE w

ARF A HEOBRER S kRO BE
FRAEBBARTRMEEI0% RIS
AR B B E R 8P 51 R 1 5 1T IS ARt
BRI REER G A BE T 2{E A 83
BA HWETF—RBALTHNBERE (BEDTT
ERERITENERE) E2HTESENR
HBANTERBG ERBEARNAR BT
BRDEB 1% BITAImZE A LR D BR
fEo

BEERGAMBHRERTNERD HERERE
IR BRI KRR ER LA E R -

BHE-_EZ-—+-_A=+—RILtEE"
BEERECERHNKTE MR =—
F+-AZ+—H ARQRRABENKTEN
R -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35 BEREE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
s$ s$
3% T TN T
Commitments for acquisition of property, WHEM % M B Kk iz AR
plant and equipment - 3,029,086
Commitments for renovation of BT 2 A
factory building 195,468 805,975
195,468 3,835,001

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group redesignated the
investment property located at No. 3, Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman
Perindustrian Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul Takzim,
Malaysia for Group's own use and the lease to third party
expired on 31 December 2021. The property was fransferred
from investment property to property, plant and equipment on
1 January 2022.
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36 HEHKEE

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HB#% X
EEBUNBERATHNEEYZE(No.
3,Jalan Istimewa 1, Taman Perindustrian
Cemerlang 81800 Ulu Tiram, Johor Darul
Takzim, Malaysia| R E/EARSE B A - M
HE=ZFITVMNBELHER_E_—F+=
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